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3% GROWTH IN REVENUE
>> STEADY OPERATIONAL PERFORMANCE

>> INCREASED AVERAGE SALE PRICE

MEASURABLE PROGRESS IN BUILDING WIND PORFOLIO
>> OPERATING: Mynydd Clogau (15MW)

»>>»> CONSTRUCTION: Lissett (30MW)

>> CONSENTED: Glenkerie and A’Chruach (62-73MW)

>> IN PLANNING: 7 sites (7TOMW)

>> IN PRE-PLANNING: (248MW)




@vera energy

CHAIRMAN’S REPORT
“Novera is in a sound financial position and well placed to strengthen

its presence within the renewables market.”

Business Overview
| am pleased to report that Novera Energy continued lo make good progress in 2008 in delivering its strategy,
ending the year confident of future expansian and success despite the turmoil in global financial markets.

Novera's strategy is to maximise the financial and operational performance of its generating assets and to
rainvest the cash generated in the devalopment of new renewable energy assets, with a focus on UK onshare

wind.

Operational performance improvements continued during 2008 with ingreased in-house maintenance of
engines and the introduction of new performance monitoring and data collection systems. Revenue increased
by 3 per cent on a pro forma basis to £35.5 million, due to higher sales prices compensating for a 2 per cent
decrease in generation to 554GWh (2007: 564GWh). Gross profit before depreciation and amortisation also
incraased by 4 per cent (on a pro forma basis) to £16.6 milfion due to increasing revenues and continued
focus on cosl control.

The Group also made substantial progress in developing its wind business. Construction of Lissett Airfield
Wind Farr (30MW) was largely completed during 2008, with first production achieved in February 2009, This
was just over two and a halt years after the planning application for the project was submitted, making it one
of the quickest onshore wind farm developments aof this scale successfully delivered. Lissett is on track to
have all turbines operational in March 2009 and the project is expected to be completed under budget,

During the year, Novera was granted pfanning consents for two wind farms in Scotland, taking the total
consented wind capacity to a potential 118MW, depending on turbine selection. The newly consented wind
farm sites, which have a combined potential capacity of 62-73IMW, are Glenkerie (Scottish Borders) and
A'Chruach (Argyll and Bute). Furthermore, the Group currently has seven sites in planning, 13 sites in pre-
planning and a number of additional, less-advanced sites under evaluation with a potential capacity of
approximately 70MW, 250MW and 300MW respectivaly.

In July 2008, Novera raised £15.0 million through a share placing to fund the Group’s wind development
programme. The Group ended the year with a cash balance of £20.4 million of which £6.1 million was in
restricted bank accounts. The Group has two non-racourse, long-term (14 and 15 years) finance facilities in
place: one for existing operations of £83.3 million; the other for the Lissett Airfield Wind Farm, which will be
_ approximately £29.5 million on project completion.

Outlook

Novera is in a sound financial position and is well placed to strengthen its presence within the renewables
macket. With the successes we have achieved to date in implementing our onshore wind development
programma, we can look forward with confidence 1o making a significant contribution to a growing, low carbon
economy and further successes for the Group.

Employees )

2008 was a challenging year for the Group, and staff responded with a positive attitude and a strong work
ethic that delivered another good resuit. On behalf of the Board and all shareholders | would like to take this
* opportunity to thank them for all their efforts.

g%gs,L\\-

ROY A FRANKLIN
CHAIRMAN
20 February 2008
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. CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S REVIEW

“Novera had a successful year in 2008, with operational improvements implemented in the landfill gas
generation business and significant progress achieved in our wind development pipeline including
the construction of the Lissett Airfield Wind Farm.”

Novera had a successtul year in 2008, with operational improvements implemented in the landfill gas
generation business and significant progress achieved in our wind development pipeline, including the
consiruction of the Lissett Airfield Wind Farm (30MW)} which is scheduled to be fully operationa! in March
2009. '

Novera has an established, diverse portfolio of renewable energy assets with a total capacity of 118MW in
operation at the end of 2008: landfilt gas (87MW); hydroelectric (16MW); and wind (15MW). Whilst the
majority of our operational capacity is currently fuelled by landfill gas, aver the next few years our strategy is to
deliver a significant level of growth frorm onshore wind.

Our wind development portfolio currently comprises sites across the UK at various stages of development
from early investigation through to construction, giving us confidence as we work towards our growih targets.

OPERATIONS .

The Key Pedormance Indicators ("KPIs') for our operations are based on power generation, revenue, costs
and gross profit. The 2007 comparative figures are presented on a pro-forma basis as explained fully within
the Financial Review,

The Group's revenue increased by 3 .per cent with higher contract prices more than compensating for a 2 per
cent decline in production, further datails of which are set cut below. These prices wara achisved due to the
higher one-year Power Purchase Agreement ((PPA") price, inflationary increase to the UK Government's Non
Fossil Fuel Obligation ('NFFO" contracts, and a decrease in the proportion of less profitable energy
generation sold under NFFQ contracts, B7 per cent of Novera's 2008 power output was sold under long-term
cantracts (2007: 90 par cent). As these contracts expire Novera can expect to achieve market prices, which
are currently higher, compared to Novera's 2008 average sales price of E60/MWh.

The main risks to our operations relate to asset performance, health & safety and environmental standards
and the impact of weather, Operational parformance is now monitored in real time with the establishment of a
24-hour control which assists us in identifying improvement opportunities and managing risk. Environmental
and, health & safety risks are key priorities for Novera and we have appeinted dedicated resources to assess
and manage these risks. The geographical spread of our porlfolic and weather predictions included in our
financial models facilitale our assessment of the impact of weather on our results.

LANDFILL GAS

Novera's landfill gas portfolio generated 468GWh during 2008 (2007: 487GWh), During 2008, we
experienced a series of operational issues, common to the industry, such as delays to capping and over-
tipping carried out by the waste companies at certain sites in our portfolio. We are working with waste
operators to overcome these issues. Our majaor partners in the waste industry are: WRG, Sita and Viridor, as
well as with Clarke Energy, the main third parly provider of external operations and maintenance services to
the Group's fleet of engines.

Further progress was made during the year with the Group's operating improvements programme. In-house
engine maintenance was increased to include an additional 16 engines, previously out-sourced, to improve
qualily control, cost management and engine availability.

HYDROELECTRIC .
The 16MW hydro portfolio performed well in 2008 generating 51GWh (2007: 49GWh). The increase was
largely the result of higher tevels of rainfall.

WIND
Generation from Mynydd Clogau (15MW} increased by 25 per cenl to 35GWh (2007: 28GWh) as a result of
favourable wind conditions.

INDUSTRIAL AND WATER SERVICES

Novera ts the UK's largest independent aperator of sludge drying and dewatering facilities. The Group
manages the operations and maintenance of sludge drying and dewatering plants in Cardiff, Newport and Port
Talbot for Kelda Water Services, a role we have fulfilled for the last ten years. Novera also operales and
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maintains a sludge drying facility in Edinburgh for Veolia Water Services. Revenue from this activity was up 2
per cent to £2.4 million.

WIND DEVELOPMENT

The KPis for Novera's development arm are based on megawait targets established on an annual basis for
each stage of the planning process: appraisal, pre-planning, sites into planning and consent. Progress
against all of these measures is tracked on a monthly basis. :

CONSTRUCTION .
The construction of our 12-turbine, 30MW Lissett Airfield Wind Farm was underway throughout 2008 under a
turnkey design and build contract with turbine supplier, Nordex, and project managed by Novera's in-house
consiruction team. Lissett started generating in February 2009, just over two and a half years after the
planning application for the project was submitted. We are not aware of any olher development of this size
reaching first production in this timeframe. The project is axpacted to be completed under the budget of £38.5
million.

CONSENTED SITES

During 2008, we were granted consents for two further wind farm applications: 11-turbine Glenkerie (22-
27MW) in the Scottish Borders; and 20-turbine A'Chruach (40-46MW) in Argyll and Bute. Work is underway in
respect of construction plans and financing for Glenkerie.

IN PLANNING

The Group ended the year with eight wind farm sites in the planning system with a total capacity of
approximately BOMW. One site, Fleeter Wood {(10MW), has since been withdrawn while concerns regarding
radar are addressed in ligison wilth National Air Traffic Services. Planning decisions on the remaining seven
applications are anticipated during 2008

PRE-PLANNING AND APPRAISAL

Our pipsline remains sirong with 13 sites in the pre-planning stage, with a total potential capacity of
approximately 250MW. For each of these sites we have completed a scoping study to confirm its suitability
for a wind farm and have initiated a 12-month bird survey. We also have a number of additional, less-
advanced sites in the ‘appraisal’ stage with an additional, combined potential in excess of 300MW.

Novera's wind development team expanded in 2008 in line wifh the growth of our portfolio. This has also
allowed the Group to take elements of the specialist environmental impact expertise in-house.

ENERGY FROM WASTE
Novera holds the exclusive UK licence for a proven gasification technolegy which may be utilised at the
consented East London Sustainable Energy Faclliity { ELSEF’} project.

In May 2008, a 15-year fual agreement for the supply of 98,000 tonnes per annum of Solid Recovered Fuel
was agread with Shanks Waste Management Limited. in July 2008, an agreement was also signed with Ford
Motor Company Limited (‘Ford’) for the supply of up to 13MW of electricity generated from ELSEF to use at
their Dagenham Estate, and for the use of the land in Dagenham for the construction and operation of ELSEF.

In December 2008, the Enargy Bill was passed into taw confirming that Novara's gasification technalogy will
be classed as ‘Advanced Gasification’ and qualifies for two Renewables Obligation Certificates ('ROCs") under
the proposed banding by the UK Government.

The pre-development work on the ELSEF project is now nearing completion and Novera is' currently in
discussion with potential partners to take the project forward to financial close.




Cutlook

Under the European Union's Renewable Energy Directive, the UK has been sel a target of generating 15 per
cent of its energy from renawable energy sources by 2020, The UK Government has reported that, in 2007,
only 4.9 per cent of total electricity generation came from renewable sources while recent targets published in
the UK Renewable Energy Stralegy call for this to increase to 30-35 per centby 2020, highlighting the
urgency to move quickly towards a lower carbon economy,

At the end of 2008, we are confident in our ability to deliver further improvements from our new Operations
Centre and retain our strong track record in achieving planning consent for our wind sites. Generation from
our wind portfolio will increase with the start of production from Lissett Airfield, with the prospect of Glenkerie
and A'Chruach to foliow.
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OPERATIONS

Novera's portfolic comprises landfill gas, hydro and wind assets at 57 sites across the UK. The Group's
renewable capacity at the end of 2008 was 118MW and this will rise to 148MW on completion of Lissett
Alrfield Wind Farm.

— gross profit
—- ravenue
average sales price
generatiori

B R N T W NPT N Y
dow R e N D

1.1

Indexation to 2005 performance

© o
L W -

2005 2006 2007 2008

During 2008, revenue from operations increased by 3 per cent in 2008 to £35.5 million and gross profit (before
depreciation and amortisation} increased by 4 per cent to £16.6 million. It is expected that generation from
our landiill assets will remain on plateau and then decline. :

- Novera is addressing this movement by:
o Achieving higher average sales price as NFFO contracts explre;
o Delivering operational improvemenls by increasing in-house O&M:;
o Enhancing performance monitoring and cost-saving initiatives; and
o Increasing up generation from our wind portfolio.

2006; Identifying operational improvements post-acquisition of the Novera Macquarie Renewable Energy
('NMRE") operations business.

2007: Re-location of the operations headquarters to premises with in-house engine workshop; improved
management of external engine maintenance conlracts; the optimisation of engine use to maximise the time
between overhalis; and the renegotiation of lower royalty rates.

2008: During the year, various cost-saving, quality control and availability improvements were impiemented.
QOne of the main drivers was bringing the day-to-day operations and maintenance of 16 previously out-sourced
engines to our in-house maintenance facitity in Warrington. Hera we are also able to undertake major rebuilds
onhseveral engines. The faster turnaround times have led to fuither benefits through increased availability
achieved.

o A new 24/7 control room was established to remotely monitor the engines to allow them to be
remotely restarted.

o Novera's bespoke engine and site automation system was also exlended to cover an additional 26
engines, alowing full-engine fault diagnesis and remote restarting capability.

o New controls were fitted to nine engines which replaced out of date systems, bringing the benefit of
connecting into the Navera Autornation system.

A Novera Operations intranet was established to facilitate the electronic weekly reporting of key environmental
and site-related data. The facility has provided management with a clear overview ol site aclivities. A new
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half-hourly electrigity data collection system was also introduced, allowing day +1 generalion analysis and
raporting to ensure resources are focussed where required.

Finally, in response to the changing profile of gas production across our portfolio of siles, we continued with
our programme of fleet optimisation and relocated a number of engines, maximising generation from the same
installed capacity.

POWER SALES AND TRADING

Novera's average price for power sales in 2008 was £60/MWh (2007: £57/MwWh), an increase of 5 per cent.
Our generation is soid under Power Purchase Agreements ('PPAs'), under which a customer takes all the
electricity generated from specified assets for the contractual period, whether short term {one-year} or long
term {15 to 20 years). 87 per cent of Novera’'s energy generation was sold under long-term contracts in 2008
(2007: 90 per cent). .

In 2008, 56 per cent of our generation was from sites developed under the UK Govarnment's Non Fossil Fuet
Obligation (‘NFFQ'} programme (2007: 59 per cent). Output from these sites is sold via the Government's
Non Fossil Purchase Agency ('NFPA'). The percentage of Novera's output sold under these NFFO contracts
is expected to continue to fall as these contracts expire and, based on current market pricing, our average
price is expected to rise as a result. The average price for cur NFFO sales in 2008 was £46/MWh (2007:
£a4/MWH), an increase of 2 per cent, reflecting the RPI indexing of these contracts.

31 per cent of generation in 2008 was sold under fong-lerm contracts to energy retailers such as EON and
Centrica under Renewable Qbligation PPAs. In April 2010, the Centrica PPA contract prices will change from
fixed prices to market-based prices.

The remaining 13 per cent of generation in 2008 was sold under a one-year PPA al a sales price of £98/MWh
compared to £81/MWh in 2007. In July 2008, Novera announced the sale of 81GWh at a price of £136 per
MWHh under a one year PPA for the period 1 April 2009 to 31 March 2010

The PPA for generation from the Lissett Airfield Wind Farm is a 15-year contract with Scottish and Southern
Enargy, under which prices will be set annually on market-based prices from March 2009.
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Lissett Airfield Wind Farm
“Propellers back at Lissett.” Rev. Ken Skidmore (ex Flight Engineer at Lissett)

The first turbines at Novera’s Lissett Airdield Wind Farm In the East Riding of Yorkshire were erected in
December 2008 and the remainder completed in February 2009. Energy generation from the first turbine was
achieved in February when commissioning of the turbines commenced. The project was under construction
throughout 2008 under a turnkey design & build contract with the turbine supplier Nordex UK Ltd, project
managed by Novera's in-house construction team.

The project has involved the construction of roads, crane platforms, turbine foundations, a site substation and
on-site slectrical and communications network, in addition to the wind turbines. Health and Safety has been
given the utmost importance throughout and the Construction {Design and Management) Regulations 2007
have been rigorously adhered to by Novera, acting in its role as client.

Works were mobilised at site in December 2007 with the start of the construction of the new road network and
crane platforms to gain access to the turbine locations. Difficull undertying ground conditions meant that deep
foundations were required; all 12 of the bases had to be piled to depths of up to 30m through bands of sand
and gravel to the underlying chalk with each base requiring a minimum of 30 pre-cast driven piles to be
installed in order to carry the wind turbine loads.

Works were suspended at the start of March 2008 in line with the planning consent conditions which stipulated
a bird breeding season restriction.

On re-mobifisation works continued on the piling and road construction before works started in earnest on the
construction of the pile caps and foundations. After installation of the electrical and communications network,
erection of the wind turbines commenced in late November 2008 when the project took delivery of the 1000"™
N9O turbine produced by Nordex. The 2.5MW Nordex NSO wind turbines have a hub haight of B0m and 90m
diameter biadas requiring the combined operation of a 500-tonne and 250-tonne crane for their installation.

Yorkshire Electricity Distribution Limited ("YEDL'), the local elsctricity company, supplied the grid connection
works for the site via 12km 66kV underground connection from their existing grid supply point at Driffield.

Challenges have been encountered and successfully overcome throughout the year. These included
balancing the competing needs of the construction works against activities on an intensely farmed arable sits,
as well as the need to accommodate problems encountered from munitions left over from the site's previous
use as a former RAF bomber command airlield.

The scheme is Novera's second wind farm site and the first that it has project managed directly. The Group
currently has generation capacity of 118MW from renewable sources and this rises to 148MW on the
integration of Lissett Airfield into the operational portiolio.

Development timaline

2005 ’ Site identification
Exclusivity and Access Agreement with Landowner
2006 July Planning application
2007 February Planning consent granted
QOctober Financial close

December | Project construction commenced
2008 November | First turbines delivered

2009 February First production

March Due to be fully commissioned

Project Fact File
Budget £38.5m
Power 74.5GWh
Main Contractor Nordex UK Ltd
Grid Contractor YEDL
Technical Advisor | Entec
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RAF 158 SQUADRON

During the Second World War, Lissell was home to the Royal Air Force '158" Squadron, RAF Lisselt Airdield
was built between 1941 and 1943 and was the closest Yorkshire bomber airfield to Germany during WwWil. As
well as the 3-runway airfield, there was accommaodation for around 1,800 personnel on and around the site.
Around 250 raids were made from the aifield during the war. 144 Halifax Bombers failed to return or were
destroyed in operational crashes with the loss of over 800 aircrew from Lissett Airfield.

MEMORIAL SCULPTURE

Given Lissett Airfield’s fascinating history, Novera was pleased to include in its planning application the
construction of a memorial to the 851 members of 158 Sqguadron who died in aclive service, and a site
intarpretation board explaining the airfield’s history.

In consultation with the 158 Squadron Association and East Riding of Yorkshire Council {'ERYC", Novera
held a design competition for a memorial sculpture as tribute to the contribution that the Squadron made to the
war elfort during its operation. The memorial unveiling ceramony for RAF veterans and members of the
Squadron Association will be held in 2009,

NAMING OF THE TURBINES

At the suggestion of 158 Squadron Association, eleven of the turbines erected at Lissett wili be named after
aircraft that flew with the 158 Squadron: Friday the 13th, Goofy's Gift, Lili Marlene, Jane, Xpress Delivary, Tha
Menace, Blondie, Zombi, Maosi Chief, Git up dem Stairs and Minnie the Moocher. The twelfth will
commemarate the six aircraftmen wha perished on 2 July $1943.

The six who perished, due to the Bomb Dump incident, were Corporal Leslie Fielding, Aircraftman Lewis
Moore, Aircraftman William Mithan, Aircraftman Kenneth Taylor, Aircraftman Robert Mills .and Aircraftrman
Jack Laycock.

Official naming of the turbines will take place as part of the annual reunion of 158 Squadron Asscciation in
September 2009,

COMMUNITY FORUM

Novera's approach as a responsible developer and operator of renewable energy invoives consulting widely
with local communities and others with an interest in the development. As socon as projects enter the
construction phase, a Community Liaison Forum is established primarily as a vehicle for disseminating
updates to the wider community.

At Lissett, the Construction Director, Gregor Bryce, and Communications Manager, Sarita Bansal, managed
the Forum throughout 2008, alternating months between issuing a newsletter updates to over 12,000
residents iocal to the site and holding open Forum meetings at the local village hall.  This ensured that any
concerns could be dealt with as soon as they arose,
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WIND DEVELOPMENT EXPERTISE

Curing 2008, Novera increased its wind development resources by six staff 1o include in-house expertise in
the specialist areas of site selection, planning, grid, ecology, environmental impact assessment, construction
and operations and maintenance.

The strengthening of the team has increased the Group’s efficiency of project management and decrsased
the dependency on external consultancies.

CONSENTED SITES (62-73MW)

GLENKERIE .

The 11i-turbine Glenkerie site lias betwaen two tributaries of the River Tweed in the Scottish Borders. The
planning application was submitted in December 2007 and was approved by both Scottish Borders Council
and the Scottish Government in September 2008,

The wind farm site is well elevated, remote from residential properties and used for sheep-grazing. Gilenkerie
will have a capacity of 22-27MW, encugh to power approximately 16,400 households®. This is the equivalent
of over 30 per cent of the population of Scottish Borders local authority area.

Detailed design work on the connection to the grid has started and Novera is In discussions with several
turbine suppliers to provide wind turbines for Glenkerie as well as for other sites in the Group's portfolio.

A'CHRUACH

A planning application for the 20-turbine A'Chruach Wind Farm in Argyll, Scotland, was submitted in
Dacember 2007, consentad with no statutory objections five months later in May 2008 and the planning notice
issued in September 2008.

The wind farm will be constructed on land owned by Forestry Commission Scotland (‘FCS') which is securad
under an option and lease agreement. National Grid and Scottish Hydro-Electric Transmission Ltd are
concluding work to determine the timing of a connection.

Depending on turbine selection, A'Chruach will have a capacity of 40-46MW and the renewable energy
expacied to be generated is equivalent to the average annual electricity demand of approximately 25,000
households®, representing more than 64 per cent of the population househalds of Argyli and Bute.

* Based on 4,700kWh average annual household electricity consumption, recommended by BWEA and
sourced from BERR (previously DTI) Digest of UK Energy Statistics, 2005).

1M PLANNING (70MW)

Novera has seven wind farm sites in the planning system. All of the locations were selected as having a
number of attributes which allow for the development of a wind farm with minimal environmental effects. The
selected areas will typically have excellent potentiat due to their exposed nature and high wind speeds and no
designations on the site. The planning decisions for these seven applications which have a combined
potential capacity of approximately 70MW are anticipated during 2009.

PRE-PLANNING (248MW)
There are currently 13 sites for which feasibility studies have been undertaken and bird surveys have
commenced. Several of these sites are anticipated to be taken forward into the planning stage during 2009,

APPRAISAL (300MW)

Further site search activity to identify new areas potentially suitable for wind farms has been ongaing and has
already yielded resulis with a number of sites now under appraisal by the Group with a combined patential
capacity of 300MW.
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IN PLANNING

Wingates 12-15MW 5 TURBINES 110M BLADE TIP HEIGHT

Application to Alnwick District Council: December 2008

The sile is located approximately 6km south of Longframiington and dkm north of Netherwitton in
Northumberland. Situated on farmland used for sheep grazing and some recently plantad mixed broadieaf
woodland, the land is relatively {lat and open with a mixture of wire fences and hedges forming the principal
land divisions.

Gordonstown Hill 10-12.5MW 5 TURBINES 100M BLADE TIP HEIGHT

Application to Aberdeenshire Council: Decernber 2008 ’

The land currently comprises agricultural farmland at Gordonstown Hill, near Kirklon of Auchterless and
approximately Skm south of Turriff, Aberdeenshire,

Sififield Wind Farm** 6MW 3 TURBINES 110M BLADE TIP HEIGHT

Application to South Lakeland District Council: September 2008

The site is adjacent to the main transport corridor of the M6 (640m from the nearest turbine) and 2.5km from
Endmoor in South Lakeland, Cumbria. The landowners have been investigating the possibility of a wind
energy development on their land since 2003, as a form of diversification,

** Siflfield is owned by a foint venture between Novera and an independent developer and which will be 100
per cent owned by Novera, should consent be granted.

Todd Hill 8-10MW 4 TURBINES 10tM BLADE TIP HEIGHT

Application to Castle Marpeth Borough Council: December 2008

The site lies on agricultural land horth of Pigdon and east of Stanton, some Bkm northwest of Morpeth, in
Northumberland. The site is dominated by intensively grazed grassland and arable farmland. -The site is
bordered by hedgerows, with areas of woodland and commercial forestry plantation.

Bullamoaor 10-12MW 4 TURBINES 130M BLADE TIP HEIGHT

Application to Hambleton District Council: December 2008

The exposed location on a broad ridge, elevated above surrounding ltand which typically creates good wind
conditions is situated approxirmately 4km northeast of Northallerton and 2km southeast of Brompton in North
Yorkshire. The site is mainly managed farmland bordered by hedgerows.

Mynydd Clogau 2 16MW 19 TURBINES 81M BLADE TIP HEIGHT

Application to Powys Gounty Council: March 2008

The site is adjacent o Novera's operating wind farm in mid-Wales, approximately 10km northwest of Newtown
in Powys.

Mountboy 6MW 3 TURBINES 105M BLADE TIP HEIGHT

Application to-Angus Council: January 2007

The site is tocated approximately 6km south west of Montrose in Angus, Scottand. The application is currently
the subject of a public local inquiry. .
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CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER’'S REVIEW

“In 2008, we strengthened the Company'’s balance sheet and increased
our investment in our wind development pipeline.”

FINANCIAL REVIEW

In 2008, wa strengthened the Company's balance sheet and increased our investment in the wind
development pipeline. Highlights for 2008 were:

Raising £15.0 million (before costs) in cash through a piacing of 19.5 million shares to tund the continuing
investment in our wind portfolio;
- £20.4 million cash in bank at the year end, of which £6.1 million was restricted cash;
Net debt at £70.5 million at the year end,
- Secure, long-term finance facilities in place;
- £14.2 million Invested in construction of 12-turbine Lissett Airfield Wind Farm (30MW); and
Significant cash flow {rom operations available to be re-invested in development activities.

FINANCIAL OVERVIEW

The consolidated results of the Group are prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards {IFRS) and includs the following ligures:

31 Dec 08 31 Dec 07

m e b AR R n o g ewr g - ——— g 000 — e 2'000 -

Revenwe T o T T 3ssie 32,148
Cost of salgg__' R (18,944) (1 7.239)

Gross profit before deprec:atlon and amomsatlon . 1sS570 14909

'Admlmstrallon cosls - ) _“" i . o i _ (4 187) (3,480)
,“Prﬁe;q_qr_u_s_tl'u_qtlon costs e o . (2,120) (1,179}
EBITDA i 10,263 10,250
“Net loss after tax o o o {3,544) (1,958)
“Tangible & ntangible assets "7 7T {88,262 T T150,056
Cashbalance 77T TTTTTa038s 10,803

Borrowings _ T T T T T (soeay” T (87,910)
TNetassets T T T e 57229

For the purposes of comparison the Directors have also produced the 2007 results of the Group on a pro-
forma basis which better reflect the underlying performance of the businesses comprising the Group. The
2007 comparative period assumes 100 per cent ownership of Novera Macquarie Renewable Energy
{'NMRE'}; the Group actually owned 50 per cent of NMRE until 22 January 2007.

31 Dec 08 31 Dec 07

£'000 Pro forma

£'000

U , s Aunaudited)
Revenue ) - B ) 35,514 34,440
Cost of sales . (18,944) (18,449)
Gross prohi before deprecnatlon and amortasatlon . 16,570 15,991
Administration costs o T (aaeTy " (3,562)
Pre-conslrucuon costs (2,120) C{1,179)
EBITDA 70,263 11,230
Tangible & intangible assets | o 168,252 159,056
Cash balance : " 20385 10,803
Borrowings . oL .. (e0832) 0 (87.910)
Net assets ) ] 58,292 57,229
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On a pro-forma basis the key finangcial highlights for the year ended 31 December 2008 include:

s Annual revenue of £35.5 million up 3 per cent:
« Landfill Gas increased by 1 per cent to £27.2 million
* Hydroelectric increased by 7 per cent to £3.4 million
= Wind increased by 31 per cent to £2.5 million
«  Water services and indusirial increased by 2 per cent to £2.4 million

* Average sales price across the portfolio increased to £60/MWh in 2008 (2007: £57/MWh}. Higher
prices were achievaed due to a higher average one-year PPA price and an inflationary rise on
NFFQO contracts. The increase in revenue also reflects the evolution of the Group's contract
structure, with the proportion of our production being sold under lower value NFFO contracts
falling from 59 per cent in 2007 to 56 per cent in 2008.

» Gross profit {before deprecialion and amonrtisation) increased by 4 per ¢ent to £15.6 million due to
increasing revenues and continuation of cost-saving measures.

* EBITDA decreased by 9 per cent to £10.3 million due te increased investment in our development
pipeline, increasing pre-construction expense, and one-off administration costs (£0.5 million) in
the first half of 2008 relating 1o approaches from 3i Infrastructure Limited and Infinis Acquisitions
Limited.

«  Pre-construction expenditure incurred in cash was £4.3 million (2007; £3.0 million) ¢of which £2.5
million {2007: £1.8 miltion) was capitalised and £1.8 million was expensed {2007: £0.6 million). A
further £0.3 million of pre-construction ¢osts in the Income Statemenit relates to previously
capitalised projects that are no longer moving forward and have baen expensed. Pre-construction
expenditure is capitalised when the operational and financial viability of the project has been
established with reasonable cerlainty and the decision made to take the project forward to
planning.

= Wind cash expendilure increased by £1.6 milion fo £4.0 milion (£2.5 million
capitalised), reflecting the increase of activity with five planning applications submitted
during the year. ' :

»  ELSEF-related expenditure was £0.3 million (2007: £0.6 million}.

PLACING TO RAISE £15 MILLION

In July 2008 Novera placed 19.5 million shares with institutional and other investors and Directors at a price of
77 pence per share, raising a total of £15.0 million before costs.

The proceeds of the Placing are being used to further the Group's wind development programme:

To submit additional wind farm siles into planning;
To fund reservation fees to secure wind turbings;
To fund future wind projects; and

For warking capital purposes.

CONSTRUCTION OF LISSETT AIRFIELD WIND FARM

The Lisselt Airfield Wind Farm was substantially constructed during the year, with completion expected in
March 2009, Capital cost {including accruals) incurred in the year was £14.2 rnillion, bringing total incurred for
the project lo £22.3 million. The project is expected to come in below budget of £38.5 million.

The first draw down on the loan facility was made in October 2008, and at 31 December 2008 £7.1 millien had
been drawn down. The remaining debt is due to be drawn down during the first quarter of 2009 as the project
is completed. The remainder of the capital cost was funded from existing cash reserves.

CASH POSITION AND FINANCE FACILITIES

At the end of 2008 Novera had a closing ¢ash position of £20.4 million {including £6.1 million in restricted
cash), and all debt funding of £90.9 millien under Project Finance arrangements.
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The Group had two non-recourse long-term project finance facilities in place: £83.3 million for existing
operations with 14 years remaining; and £7.1 million drawn down lor Lissett Airfield Wind Farm, with 15 years
remaining. No refinancing obligations are attached to either tacility. There is also & balance of £0.5 million
held in a monthly, revolving VAT facility for the Lissett construction.

The existing operations have a syndicated loan facility secured by a floating charge over the assels of Novera
Energy (Holdings 2} Limited Group. The debt is 99 per cent fixed until 31 December 2009 and 82 per cent
fixed until 2014 with a weighted average interest rate of 6.2 per cent.

The Lissett Airfield Wind Farm has been financed by a combination of equity and debt. The equity amount
(£9.0 mitlion) has been fully funded. The total debt is expecied to be approximately £29.5 million on project
completion, with the remaining debt due to be drawn down during the first quarter of 2009 as the construction
of the project is completed. 95 per cent of the debt is fixed at an intsrest rate of 6.13 per cent over the term of
the fagility.

The mark-to-market an the interest rate swaps in place over the Novera Energy Holdings 2 loan has moved
from an asset of £0.6 million in 2007 to a liabiiity of £5.9 million in 2008 due to a fall in long-term interest
rates. In addition to this, the interest rates swaps entered into financial close in November 2007, for the
Lissett facility reprasent a liabifity of £3.7 million on the 31 December 2008 Balance Sheetl,

Novera focuses on operating cash flow to maximise shareholder value over the long-term. Novera is in the
fortunate position to be able to use cash generated by our operational business to invest in our development
pipelina. Once operational, Lissett Airfield Wind Farm will provide a step increase to the Group's operating
cash flow. Options for financing future wind farm sites include debt, equity and asset sale of whole or part of a
consented or operating site.

POWER SALES AND TRADING

Novera has entered into various PPAs under which a customer takes all the electricity generated from
specified assets for the contractual period, typically between one and 15 years.

The Lisselt PPA is over 15 years with the price being fixed annually based on market price. These
arrangements are simifar in nature to operating leases with no minimum committed payments. Revenue from
PPAs and the relevant assets used to generate the electricity are reported in the segment relevant to the type
of asset used to generate the electricity. Revenue is recognised as electricity is generated at the contracted
rate on the date of generation, except where that rate cannot be determined with reasonable accuracy in
which case It is recognised when the rate can be determined with reasonable certainty.

RISK MANAGEMENT
The Group’s activilies expose it to a variety of financial risks such as market, economic, interest, and credit
risk. A risk management plan is prepared regularly and reviewed by the Board.

Movera's risk management programme inciudes the predictability of revenue and contrgl over costs to
maximise financial performance. lLong-term PPAs ard generation forecasts provide predictability of revenue.
Actual operational and financial performance is monitored against budget on a monthly basis to optimise
performance and address any areas of risk. The renewable energy industry is supporied by legislative, long-
term renewable energy targets,

Intérest rate swaps are used to manage exposure to interest rate fluctuation. All deposits are held with an AA-
financial institution. Novera's custorner base comprises mainly of large electricity retailers and water utilities,
and the Government's NFPA. The risks faced by Novera are discussed in further detail within the notes to
these accounts.

DIVIDEND
The directors are not proposing to pay a dividend.

DAVID FITZSIMMONS RORY QUINLAN
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
20 February 2009 20 Fabruary 2009
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Sustainability Review

As a leading independent renewable energy company, central to Novera's strategy is the generation of green
efectricity. Novera strives 1o maximise production of clean energy and minimise energy consumption in order
to reduce our overall carbon dioxide emissions. Novera is committed to the continual improvement of its
sustainability performance.

Novera's approach to sustainability encompasses all aspects of the business, from office recycling initiatives
and car sharing incentives through to stalf welfare schemes and communily engagsment programmes for
development programmes.

HEALTH, SAFETY, ENVIRONMENTAL AND QUALITY MANAGEMENT

Novera seeks to operate its sites to the highest industry standards at all times. Procedures have been
implemented for an Environmental Management System to meet the requirements of ISO 14001 the standard
to which it became fully compliant in August 2008.

Novera also holds certification standard 1SO 8001 accredited by British Standards Institution ('BSI') and,
during the year, was also awarded the Occupational Health & Safety Assessment Series 18001 standard.
Novera employs dedicated stalf to manage the health, safety and environmental standards of the Group and
furthermore, has achieved BSI| accreditation for our respective OHSAS, Environmental and Quality systems.

ENGAGING WITH KEY STAKEHOLDERS

Novera recognises the importance of consulting early with the local community in its wind development
programme and commenits by local residents provide important local knowledge which contributes to the final
planning application. Consultation continues after a planning application has been submitted and, if granted
planning consent, during the construction and throughout the operational life of the asset.

Prior to submitting its planning application for the Lisset Aidield Wind Farm, Novera consulted with the East
Riding of Yorkshire Council, professional entities with a direct interest in the proposed wind farm, the local
community and potential local construction partners. Before construction started a Community Liaison Forum
was established to provide representatives from naighbouring Parish Councils with regular updates an the
conslruction process.

As a direct response to comments from the local residents and the Community Forum, Novera has made a
contribution of £20,000 to HEYwoods a local initiative whose purpose is lo plant trees in the East Riding of
Yorkshire. .

Novera is a member of the British Wind Energy Association, the Renewable Energy Association and Scottish
Renswables. The Group is also a Corporate Patron of the Royal Society for the Protaction of Birds ({RSPB').

CONSULTATION: A RESPONSIBLE APPROACH TO WIND DEVELOPMENT

All of Novera's planning applications are accompanied by a detailed assessment of the suitability of the site
for the proposed wind farm. Important areas of assessment include the impact on local wildlife, in particular
local bird populations. Bird surveys are conducted over a period of at least 12 months before assessment by
experienced ornithologists. Consullation with Natural England and the RSPB aiso form part of this
assessment.

The RSPB Conservation Officer reported on Novera's approach to the development of Lissett:

“I would also like to take this opportunity to pass on my sincere thanks to Novera Energy... for the
considerable time and effort they have invested in this proposal in order to try to ensure that the wind
farm will be a positive example of sustainable development which delivers the environmental benefits
of renewable energy whilst safequarding the considerabla biodiversity and conservation interest at
the site.”
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“Novera actively encourages using local contractors for construction,

operation and maintenance work.”

LOCAL EMPLOYMENT

Novera actively encourages using local contractors for construction, operation and mainienance work
wheraver possible. For axamnple at Lissett Airfield we sourced local aggregates and concrete from the quarry
adjacent to the airfield. Novera is pleased to be working with a local artist, Peter Naylor, on the Lisselt
memorial, the construction of which will involve materials and resources of a locally-based firm, Campbells.

COMMUNITY FUNDS

The Trust set up at Mynydd Clogau Wind Farm in Wales has funded educational projects and equipment for
the local youth football team. Beneficiaries to date include Adfa Village Hall, Cwm Llanliugan Community
Centre, Tregynon Dragons Football Team, Adfa Chapel, St Mary's Church, Cefn Coch Training Group,
Tregynon Luncheon Club, Bethany Youth Group, Ti a Fi Rhiwbechan, Rhiw Valley Youth Club and Ysgol
Rhiwbechan. Also, a number of students have received financial support to assist with their course costs.

Once Lissett Airfield Wind Farm is fully operational, Novera will make a donation into a local Trust Fund to
ensure thal some of the revenue generated by the wind farm directly benefits the local community through
investment in local initiatives.

Similar Trust Funds will be established for the next round of sites, post construction. In Argyll and Bute where
Novera's 40-46MW A'Chruach has been consented and a fund will also be established, we are proud to have
been a supporter of the annual Lantern Festival for the past two years and we look forward to making a
contribution to ather cultural and community-based initiatives in the area.

with all Novera's Trust Funds, the contributions are managed by local people and used for sustainable, local
projects and initiatives of their choice.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

As a renawable energy company, Novera recognises the importance of suppering positive, community
initiatives and we strive to be active in our community involvement. Novera will donate t0 sligible
organisations with consideration given to those in the fields of education, community, health care and
sustainability.

HUMAN RESOURCES POLICY

Novera Energy is commitied to investing in staff across the business through ongoing training and
development and by means of a range of employee benefits to promote slaff retention. HR policies including
performance review, recruitment planning and equal opportunities are continuously rafined in-line with
business needs. Regular communication on company issues remains central to engendaring Novera's
culture of continuous improvement and growing our talent,
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Roy A Franklin OBE, Chairman
Roy is Chairman of Novera Energy plc; he is also Non-executive Director and sits on the Group’s Nomination
Commities. .

Roy was formerly Chiel Executive of independent oil company Paladin Resources plc, prior lo which he was
Group Managing Director of Clyde Pelroleum plc. Before joining Clyde in 1991, he worked at BP for 18 years,
latterly heading up BP Exploration's acquisition and divestitures group.

Roy is also a non-executive director of StatoiiHydro ASA, the Norwegian oil and gas company, Santos Ltd, the
Australian independent oil and gas exploration company and Keller Group ple, the FTSE 250 ground
engineering specialist. He is a member of the StatcilHydro and Keller Audit Committees,
the Keller Remuneration Committee and the SANTOS Environmental Heailth Safety and  Sustainability
Committee. He is also Chairman and a non-executive director of both AlM-listed Bateman Litwin N.V., and TS
Marine Lid, an Aberdeen-based private oilfield services company.

David Fitzsimmons, Chief Executive Officer

David joined Novera in October 20035, since which time the company has complated its transition from
Australia to the UK, acquired the remaining 50 per cent of its previous JV with Macquarie and established a
strong portfotio of davelopment opportunities. Before joining Novera, David spent 27 years with BP. There he
held senior positions in all core businesses, including CEO of BP's oil trading, President of BP Asia and
Commercial Director for BP's Gas, Power and Renewable businass.

David brings to Novera in-depth knowledge of enargy markets together with proven management and
strategic skills, and experience in leading growth businesses.

Rory Quinlan, Chief Financial Officer

Rory has extensive experience in the development, structuring, financing and management of complex enargy
infrastructure businesses. In addition, he has substantial M&A, equity market and public company
experience. Prior o joining Novera, Rory held senior positions with Ergon Energy and Xstrata (MIM
Holdings).

Rory commenced with Novera in 2004 and has since led all of Novera's corporate and commercial initiatives
to date including all acquisitions, and debt and equity financings.

Michael A Cairns OBE, Non-executive Director

Michaet is an experienced executive having held positions as Chairman, CEQ. COO and naon-executive
director of a variety of private equity, government and listed public enterprises. Michael brings to Novera
experience in the management and implementation of successful growth strategies in small to medium
enterprises.

Michae! is a member of both the Remuneration Committee and Nominations Committee.

Brian Duckworth OBE, Non-executive Director
Brian spent 30 years with Severn Trent plc, before retiing as Managing Director of Severn Trent Water in
2005. Prior to joining Severn Trent he worked for four years for East Midlands Electricity.

Brian is also a Director of White Young Green plc where he chairs their Remuneration Committze and is a
member of the Audit and Compliance Commiltee. He holds the same roles in Novera and is the Group's
Senior Independent Director.

James Grace, Non-execulive Director

James ig a Director in the Corporate Finance Department of investec Investment Banking, a division of the
investec Bank (UK) Limited. James began his career at Price Waterhouse and then worked for James Capel
and Hoare Govell in corporate finance. After a subsequent period as a corporate recovery specialist, he
joined Investec Henderson Crosthwaile in 1995, James was a director of UK Land plc from 1993 lo 2003 and
is currently a non executive directar of Treat! ple.

James is Chairman of the Audit and Compliance Committee and a member of both the Remuneration
Committee and Nominations Committee.
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CORPORATE GOVERMANCE STATEMENT

COMPLIANCE WITH THE COMBINED CODE

Novera Energy plc is listed on the Allernative Investment Market ("AtM'} of the London Stock Exchange
('LSE". AlM-listed companies are not required 1o comply with the disclosure requiremants of the Combined
Code of Corporate Governance (‘the Combined Code') issued by the Financial Reporting Council in June
2006. However, the Board supports the principles contained in the Code, complies where appropriate and
cost-effective and is committed to maintaining Corporate Governance according to industry standards.

The following report summarises the current corporate governance processes that are in place.

DIRECTORS

THE BOARD

The Board mesets regulardy for scheduled Board Meetings and in addition undertakes a separate off-site

meeting annually to discuss strategy. The Board also meets as required to deal with urgent business.

The table below lists the number of Board Meetings, Board Committee Maetings, and Diractors’ attendance
during the year ended 31 December 2008.

Meetings of committees
Meetings of Audit &
Director Directors Compliance | Remuneration | Nominations
Number of Meetings 16 3 8 i
R. Franklin 16 ‘ * 1
M. Cairns 16 * 8 1
B. Duckworth 16 3 8 i
D. Fitzsimmons 16 ’ * -
J. Grace 16 3 8 1
R. Quinlan 15 ) v ‘

* Not a member of the relevant committee

The functions reserved for the Board and management are set outin the Corporate Governance Manual. The
Board of Directors are responsible tor the direction and oversight of the Group.

The current Directors bring to the Board considerable experience and expertise in their respective fields thus
enhancing the effectiveness of the decision-making process. Details of the Chairman, Chief Exacutive Officer
and Directors are set oul on page 18 of this Annual Report. .

The responsibilities of the Board include:

« approval of goals, strategy and plans for the Group's direction and monitoring implementation;

« approval of the Group's risk management and internal conirol framework;

« approval of Group policies such as remuneration, health & safety and environment;

* discussion and approval of management recommendations such as capital expenditure, capital
management, acquisitions and divestitures;

*  review of performance and results;

= review of statutory, regulatory and reporting requirements of the Companies Act and the Stock
Exchange {'AIM");

* review of Stock Exchange matiers;

* review of related party transactions; and

* appointment and dismissal of the Chief Executive Officer, Chiel Financial Officer and Company
Secretary, determining their conditions of service and monitoring their performance against
established objectives.

The Corporate Governance Manual and its policies are updaled and managed by the Company Secretary.

Responsibility tor the management of day-to-day opsrations and administration of the Group is detegated by
the Board to the Chief Executive Officer.

-19.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
The Chairman and Chief Executive Officer have separate clearly defined responsibilities that are not
exercised by the same person. Roy Franklin is Chairman and Qavid Fitzsimrmons is Chief Executive Officer.

.BOARD BALANCE AND INDEPENDENCE

The Board comprises of four non-executive directars and two executive directors, The Board considers that
all the Non-executive Directors; Hoy Franklin, Michael Cairns, Brian Duckworth and James Grace, are
independant. Brian Duckworth is the Senior Independent Director.

The independence criteria of the Combired Code are considered in all current and future appointments of
non-executive directors.

The Board’s size and composition is subject to the limits imposed by the Company's Articles of Association,
which provides far a minimum of three and a maximum of ten direclors.

The Group has detailed and prescribed guidelines on trading shares.

APPOINTMENTS TO THE BOARD

The Nominations Commiltee leads the process for Board appointments and makes recommendations to the
Board. They evaluate the balance of skills, knowledge and experience of the Board and prepare a description
of the roles and capabifities required for new Non-executive Directors to be appointed to the Board.

‘The Nominations Committee meets as necessary, but at least once a year. The current members are the
Non-executive Directors; Brian Duckworth, James Grace, Michae! Cairns and Roy Frankiin. The number of
meetings held by the Committee has been outlined on page 19.

INFORMATION AND PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

Prior to each scheduled Board Meeting, all Directors are presented with the Board Papsrs which comprise of
a CEO Repor and a Financial Report. The CEO briets the Board on results, key issues and strategy during
the Board Meelings.

All Directors have access to the advice and servicas of the Company Secretary. The Company Secretary
ensures that gaod information flows amongst the Board and its commiltees and between senior management
and non-executive directors. The Company Secretary also advises the Board through the Chairman on all
governance matters.

The Directors, where appropriale, are able to seek independent professional advice at the expense of the
Group and have unrestricted access to the records and information of the Group.

All Directors receive an induction on joining the Board and regularly update and refresh their skills and
knowledge of the business.

PERFORMANCE EVALUATION

Key execulives have performance expectations in latters of appointment and employment contracts. Al
executives and employees undergo a formal performance review by April each year by the Chairman or
allocated lina manager. Position descriplions are updated as part of the performance review process.

RE-ELECTION .

All directors are subject to election at the first Annual General Meeting (‘AGM') after appointment, and to re-
election thereafter at intervals of no more than three years. Biographies af all Directors are provided on page
18, and those Directars subject 1o re-election are notified in the Notice of the AGM,

REMUNERATION

REMUNERATION

Disclosure of directers’ remuneration is set out on pages 26 1o 29 of the Remuneration Report. The Board
befieves that levels of remuneration shall be sulficient to attract, retain and motivate directars of the guality
required to run the Group successfully. A significant proportion of executive directors’ remuneration shall be
structured as to link rewards to corporata and individuat performance.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
The responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee include:
*  seiting the remuneration policy;
« ensuring that the remuneration and terms of service of the directors are appropriate;
* raviewing the structure of the Board; and
* material changes to the rules of the Group pension or employes share scheme;

The Committee meets as necessary, but at least once a year. The current members are the three Non-
executive Directors, Brian Duckworth (Chairman), Michael Cairns and James Grace. The number of meetings
held by the Committee has been outlined on page 19,

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

FINANCIAL REPORTING
The Board is committed to ensuring that all communications with shareholders present a balanced,
understandable assessment of the Group’s position and prospects.

The responsibiiities of the Directors and Auditors are set out in the Directors' Report and Auditors’ Report on
pages 24 and 30 respectively.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Group's Audit and Compliance Committee {'ACC'} serves the function of reviewing management
practices in relation to the identification and managemeant of significant risk areas and regulatory compliancs.
Al least one member has recent and relevant financial experience,

The Group has in place clearly defined lines of rasponsibilty and limits of delegated authority.
Comprehensive procedures provide for the appraisal, approval, control and review of capital expenditure.

The Group maintains a comprehensive annual budgeting and management reporting system. A detailed
annual budgel is prepared in advance of each ysar and is supplemented by revised forecasts during the
course of the year. Actual financial results are reported monthly and compared to budget, revised forecasts
and prior year results.

AUDIT AND COMPLIANCE COMMITTEE
The members of the ACC are Non-executive Directors James Grace {Chairman) and Brian Duckworth,

The ACC's primary objectives ars to assist the Board in fulfilling its responsibilities in relation to financial
reporting and internal controls, and alse maintaining the relationship with the external auditors.

The responsibilities of the ACC include:
« rnaking recommendations to the Board on the appointment of external auditors;
*  reviewing the quafity and independence of the external auditors and the rotation of external audit
engagement partners; ; .
«  providing an independent, objective review of the adequacy and the integrity of the financiat
information provided by management 1o shareholders and regulatory authorities; and
* reviewing the changes to treasury policies.

The external auditors have a direct line of reporting to the ACC and have clear and open access to the
Committee members. The ACC's palicy is to appoint external auditors who cleardy demonstrate quality and
independence. The performance of the external auditors is reviewed annually,

The number of meetings held by lhe ACC has been oullined on page 19. The formal terms of reference for
the ACC are set out in the Corparate Governance Manual,

RELATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Group has a communications strategy to promote effactive communication with all shareholders and
encourage eftective participation. Communication initiatives undertaken by the Group include media
announcements and the Group's website. Gther than during a closed period the Chief Executive Officer and
Chief Financial Officer also maintain regular dialogue with institutional shareholders throughout the year.

All information disclosed to the London Stock Exchange ('LSE') is posted on the Group’s wabsite within three
days of being disclosed to the LSE. Access to price sensitive information Is rigorously controlied but
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procedures have been established lo ensure that any such information is immediately released o the market,
should it become inadverently disclosed.

The Chief Executive Officer has averall responsibility for management of the Group's continuous disclosure
obligations, as well as communication with analysts, brokers, shareholders, the media and the public, so as 1o
ensure that the announcements are timely, factual, clear and precise and omit no material information.

Board members attend the AGM and are available to answer questions. Resolutions are proposed on each
substantially separate issue, including in relation to the Report and Accounts and the Directors’ Remuneration
Report.

Notice of the AGM and related papers are sent to all shareholders ai least 21 days bafore the mesling.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

The Directors present their report and the audited financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2008.
Novera Energy ple is domiciled and incorporated in the UK.

DIRECTORS
The following persons were Directors of Novera Energy pic during the financial year and up to the date of this
report:

Mr Roy Franklin

Mr Michae! Cairns

Mr Brian Duckworth
Mr David Fitzsimmons
Mr James Grace

Mr Rory Quinlan

The qualifications and experience of the Directors are set out on page 18 of this Annual Report.

COMPANY SECRETARY
Ms Liz Oldroyd

MEETINGS OF DIRECTORS

The numbers of meetings of the Group's Board of Directors, of each Board Committee held during the year
ended 31 December 2008 and of the number attended by each Director, are disclosed in the Corporate
Governance Statement on page 19.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES
During the year the principal continuing activities of the Group, all of which are in the UK, comprised of:
« the operation of a renewable energy portfolio consisting of landlill gas, wind farms and hydroelectric;
« the operation of a water services business, providing operation and maintenance services to the
wastewater industry,
s the development of wind farm sites;
+ the development of the East London Sustainable Energy Facility (‘ELSEF") project; and
«  conslruction of a 12-turbine 30MW wind farm al Lisselt Airfield in East Riding of Yorkshire.

RESULTS
The consolidated loss for the year ended 31 December 2008 after income tax was £3.544 million {2007

£1.958 miltion).

DIVIDENDS
No dividend was declared or paid during the year ended 31 December 2008 (2007: £ nil).

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS
A review of operations including KPls is set out in the Operating Review and Financial Review included on

pages 4 to 6 and 13 to 15.

MATTERS SUBSEQUENT TO THE END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR

Thare has not arisen, in the period between the end of the linancial ysar and the date of this report, any item,
transaction or event of a material or unusual nature likely in the opinion of the Directors of the Group to
significantly affect the financiat statements.
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LIKELY DEVELOPMENTS AND EXPECTED RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
The Group will continue to pursue new opportunities in the UK,

Save as set out in this report and accounts, further information on likely developments in the operations of the
Group, and the expected results of those operations, has not been included in this Report as tha Directars
believe it would be likely {o result in unreasonable prejudice to the Group.

INSURANCE OF DIRECTORS AND OFFICERS

The Group has in place a global Directors' and Officers' insurance, insuring past, present and future Directors
and Oftticers of tha Group and its subsidiary Companies {as defined in the contract of insurance) against
cenrtain liabilittes incurred in that capacity. Disclosure of the nature of the liability covered by this contract of
insurance is prohibited by the contract of insurance. The premium payable for 2008 was £16,200 (2007:
£24,3686).

DIRECTOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES _
The directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report, the Directors’ Remuneration Report and the
Group and the parent Company Financial Statements in accordance with applicable faw and regulations.

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under that law the
directors have prepared the Group financial statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards {'IFRSs'} as adopted by the European Union and the parent Company Financial Statements in
accordance with applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally
Accepted Accounting Practice). The Group and parent Company financial statements are required by law to
give a true and fair view of the state of aftairs of the Company and the Group and of the profit or loss of the
Company and Group for that period.

In preparing those financial statements, the Directors are required to:

+ select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

+ make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

« state that the financial statements comply with IFASs as adopted by the Europsan Union and IFRSs
issued by International Accounting Standards Board (‘ASB'); and-

» prepare the financial statements on a going concern basis, unless it is inappropriate to presume that
the Group will continue in business, in which case there should be supporting assumptions or
qualifications as nacessary.

The Directors confirm that they have complied with the above requirements in preparing the financial
statements.

The Directors are responsible for keeping proper accounting racords that disclose with reasonable accuracy at
any time tha financial position of the Company and the Group and to enabie them to ensure that the financial
statements comply with the Companies Act 1985. They are also responsibie for safeguarding the asseis of
the Company and the Group and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud
and other irregularities.

The Directors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the Group's website. Legisiation in the
United Kingdom governing the preparation and dissemination of Financial Statements may differ from
legislation in other jurisdictions.

DISCLOSURE TO AUDITORS

So far as each Director is aware, there is no refevant audit information of which the Group's auditors are
unaware, Each Director has taken all the sleps he ought to have taken in his duly as a director in order to
make himself aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the Group's auditors are aware of
that information.
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ENVIRONMENTAL REGULATION

The Group is subject to environmental regulation in relation to its operations. The Group monitors compliance
with environmental regulations and has procedures fo be followed should an incident occur which adversely
impacts the environment. No material breaches of environmental requlations oceurred during the financial
year and up to the date of this report.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS I
The Group donated E500 to Cancer Research and £644 to Great Ormond Street Hospital during the year .
endad 31 Decermber 2008 (2007 £nil). No political donations wers mada. '

This Report has been approved by the Board of Directors.

A s G
<

DAVID FITZSIMMONS RORY QUINLAN
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

London, 20 February 2009
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REMUNERATION REPORT

This Report outlines the remuneration arrangements in place for Directors of Novera Energy ple.

REMUNERATION POLICY

The Group has designed a remuneration framework tc support both a performance culture and team focus by
adhering to agreed business objectives. The framewaork seeks to:

« attract, retain and motivate the high calibre professional, managerial and technological expertise
necessary to realise the Group's business objeclives;

« ensure that the remuneration policy is campetitive and fairly reflects the appropriate returns for
achieving the Group's business goals and achieving success in the markets within which the Group
operates; and

+ maintain the correct balance and linkage between individual, team and business performance 50 as to
effectively atign the interests of the employee with those of colleagues and shareholdars.

The objective of the Group's executive reward framework is to ensure reward for performance is competitive
and appropriate for the results delivered and conforms with market best practice for delivery by satisfying
criteria for alignment to shareholders’ interests and alignment to participants' interests.

The framework provides a mix of fixed and variable pay, and a blend of short and long-term incentives.
REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee reviews the compensation strategy and the compensation arrangemaents for all
key management personnel on an annual basis and makes recommendations to the Board. They have
access to independent external advisors as required.

The members of the Remuneration Committee during the year were the Non-executive Directors; Brian
Duckworth {Chairman), Michasl Cairns and James Grace.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR REMUNERATION

Fees and payments to non-executive directors reflect the demands which are made on, and the
responsibilities of, the directors. The chairman's fees are determined independently to the fees of non-
executive directors based on compearative roles in the external market.

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR REMUNERATION
The executive pay and reward framewaork has four components:
« Dbase pay and benefits;
= short-term performance incentives (cash bonuses);
» long-term incentives through participation in the Novera Energy Long Term Incentive Plan; and
« other compensation such as a pension scheme.

The combination of these comprises the executive's total compensation,
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BASE PAY AND BENEFITS

Base pay and bensfits are struclured as a total employment cost package which may be delivered as a
combination of cash and prescribed non-financial benefits. These are determined by a number of factors
including competence and performance criteria.

Where applicable, executives receive benefits including car allowances.

The Group does not offer a defined benefit pension scheme lo exsecutive directors. instead, it makes
contributions to the approved defined contributions pension scheme of the Group. Pension contributions
range from 0 per cent to 7 per cent of base salary. The amount of pension conltributions made in respect of
each executive director is set out on page 28.

SHORT-TERM PERFORMANCE INCENTIVES ('STPI"} '
Executive directors, management and staff have the opportunity to earn annual bonus payments. These
bonuses are finked to the overall corporate performance and are dependent on meeting both personal and/or
corporale goals. The proportion that is set in relation to individual performance ranges fram 0 -100Q per cent,
depending on seniority and the scope of the job. Tha Group expects a high level of achievement when it sets
its base and 'stretch’ bonus targets. The stretch targets require an achievement well beyond that which was
planned and involves making significant contribution to the Group's performance. The senior positions are
more exposed o corporate goals which include financial pertormance as a parameter.

LONG-TERM INCENTIVE PLAN (‘'LTIP")

tong-term incentives are a mechanism to link a significant portion of the executive's compensation to the
attainment of substantial growth in shareholder value by attracting and retaining employees who strive for
excellence, and to motivate those employees to achieve above-average financial objectives for the Group.

in July 2006, the Group established an LTIP, which is a scheme, based on a three-year rolling plan. LTIP

awards are conditional grants of shares that will vest and are released upon the Group meeting the raquired
criteria, Such a plan should ensure that key management personnal do not derive compensation benefits
without providing a direct contribution to the long-term superior perfformance of the Group.

The 2006 and 2007 LTIP awards vest shares ta the award holders in 2009 and 2010 respactively and are both
dependent on the Group's perforrnance against a total shareholder return measurs relative to the Financial
Times Stock Exchange ('FTSE’) Small Cap Index for the UK. The 2006 LTIP is also dependent on the
Grroup's performance against operating cash flow targets to end of 2008. The 2008 LTIP award vests shares
to award holders in 2011 and is dependent on a targel for the Group's share price.
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DETAILS OF COMPENSATION

DIRECTOR COMPENSATION

Far the year ended 31 December 2008, details of all the benefits paid are set out in the table below:

2008
2007
Total
Cash salaryf | Cash bonus Pension Total
Diractor fees
£ |4 £ £ |4

R. Franklin 60,000 - . 60,000 51,250
M. Caims 25000 - - 25000 22,981
B. Duckworth 30,000 - 30,000 18,077*
D. Fitzsimmons 214,000 B9,013 - 303,013 314,000
J. Grace 30,000 - - 30,000 18,077
A. Quinlan 150,000 62,830 B.385 221,195 196.207
J. Brown {a) - 10,417
M. Collopy (b} - - 8,124
D. Farrands (¢) - - - 8.124
D. Scaysbrook {d) . 7,500
TOTAL 509,000 151,843 8,365 563,208 651,757

* Part year only

{a) Resigned as Director and Chairman of Novera Energy Limited in May 2007.

{by M. Coliopy received £9,845 of faas in 2008 as a Director of Novera Energy Limited and Novera Renswable Engrgy Limitad and
£1,091 for financial accounting and company sacratarial sarvices in Australia on an 'as required’ basis at an agread hourly rate of

£50.

{c) Resigned as Director In Seplember 2007,
() Resigned as Director of Novera Energy Limited in May 2007,

No Director has the authority to determing their own remuneration.

SERVICE AGREEMENTS

Compensation and other terms of employment for the Chief Executive Officer and specified employees are

formalised in service agreements. Each of these agreements provides for the provision of performance-

refated benefits. Other major provisions of the agreements are set out as follows:

Date of

Fixed

Diractor Commencement of Term of | Compensation | Short-tarm ﬁ.zfg?:;:gz Comge:glaetlg:
ec Employment/Updatad Agreement - Base salary | Incentives Pori pay .
eriod termination
contract & Faos

Months Value

R, Franklin 20-Fab-07 {a) Y N/A 3 {c)

M. Cairns 10-May-07 (a) Y NIA 3 {c)

B. Duckworth 10-May-G7 {a) Y N/A 3 (<)

D. Fitzstmmons 01-Jan-08 Permanent Y {b) Y 6 €

J. Grace 10-May-07 -{a) Y NIA 3 {c)

A. Quinlan Q1-Jan-08 -Permanent Y Y e (d)

‘Includes pension

Noles;

{a) Non-exactitive directors are typically expected lo serve two three-year tarms.

(b} D. Fitzsimmons' fixed compensation includes a ¢ar allowance.
{c} Compensation payable on termination is equal to the nolice peried.
{d} R. Quinlan's compensation on terminalion is aquivalent to 50 per cent base salary.
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EQUITY INSTRUMENT DISCLOSURES RELATING TO DIRECTORS

SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION: LTIP
LTIP awards are conditional grants of shares that will be released upon the Group mesting the required

criteria.

Shares are awarded under the plan for no consideration and carry no dividend or voting rights.  Further
information on the LT!P is set out in note 21 of the Financial Report.

The following shares awarded as part of the LTIP were held, directly or beneficially, by each director, including
their personally related entities, during the reporting period:

Name LTIP

D. Filzsimmons 2006
2007
2008

A. Quinian 2006
2007
2008

Intereslts at
1 Jan-08 at

target
parfor-
mance

500,000
500,000

200,000
200,000

Shares
awarded Interasts at Market
during the 31 Dec-08 at Price at
year target*/actual -+ Award Date
which may parformance (p}
vest at larget
parformance
589,483"° 54.0
500,000° 69.5
385,000 385,000 82.0
235,793 54.0
- 200,000° 69.5
183,333 183,233 82.0

Periormance Period

01/01/2006 o 31/12/2008
01/01/2007 to 31/12/2009
03/06/2008 to 02/06/2011
01/01/2006 1o 31/12/2008
01/01/2007 to 31/12/2608
03/06/2008 to 02/06/2011

Vesting datss

if target
performance
reachad

30 May 2009
30 May 2010
24 June 2011
30 May 2009
30 May 2010
24 June 2011

‘“Number of shares which may vest al maximum performance = 157 per cent of shares which may vest at

target performance

** Actual vesling as at 31 December 2008

SHAREHOLDINGS

The numbers of shares in tha Group held during the reporting pericd and at the date of this Repart by each
Director of Novera Energy plc, including their personally related entities, are set out below;

Balance at Balance
1 January Changesin | at31 December
2008 Year 2008

Director
R, Franklin 50,000 "25,000 75,000
M. Caimns - 20,000 20,000
B. Duckworth 25,000 70,000 95,000
D, Fitzsimmons 583,187 382,000 965,187
J. Grace - 20,000 20,000
R, Quinlan 11,596 70,000 81,586

LOANS TO KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL

Key management do not maintain any loans from or to the Group.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF NOVERA ENERGY PLC

We have audited the Group financial statements of Novera Energy ple for the year ended 31 December 2008
which comprise the Consalidated Income Statement, the Consolidated Balance Shest, the Consolidated
Statement of Recognised Income and Expense, the Consolidaled Cash Flow Statement, and the related
notes. These Group financial statements have been prepared under the accounting policies set out therain.

We have reported separately on the parent company financial statements of Novera Energy plc for the year
ended 31 December 2008.

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors

The directors’ responsibilities for preparing the Annual Report and the Group financiai statements in
accordance with applicable law and International Financial Reporting Standards ('IFRS') as adopted by the
European Union are set out in the Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities.

QOur responsibility is to audit the Group financial statements in accordance with relevant legal and regulatory
requirements and International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland). This repon, including the opinion, has
been prepared for and anly for the company's members as a body in accordance with Section 235 of the
Companies Act 1985 and for no other purpose. We do not, in giving this opinion, accept or assume
responsibility for any other purpose or to any other person to whom this report is shown or intc whose hands it
may come save where expressly agreed by our prior consent in writing.

We report to you our opinion as to whether the Group financial statements give a trug and fair view and
whether the Group tinancial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with the Companies Act
1985, Wae also report to you whether in our opinion the information given in the Directors’ Report is consistent
with the Group financial statements. The information given in the Directors’ Report includes that speciic
information presented in the Operating Review and the Financial Review that is cross referred from the
Review of Operations section of tha Directors' Repont,

in addition we report to you if, in our opinion, we have not received all the information and explanations we
require for our audit, or if information specified by law regarding director's remuneration and other fransactions
is not disclosed.

We read other information contained in the Annual Report and consider whether it is consistent with the
audited Group financial statements. Thae other information comprises only the Chairman's Repon, the
Operating Review, the Financial Review, the Corporate Governance Statement and the Director's Repont.,
We consider the implications for our repont if we become aware of any apparent misstalements or material
inconsistencies with the Group linancial statements. Qur responsibilities do not extend to any other
information.

Basis of audit opinion

We conducled our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK and lreland) issued by
the Auditing Practices Board. An audit includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevanl to the
amounts and disclosures in the Group financial statements. 1t also includes an assessment of the significant
astimates and judgments made by the direclors in the preparation of the Group financial statements, and of
whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the Group's circumstances, consistently applied and
adequately disclosed.

We planned and performed our audit so as 1o obtain ail the information and explanations which we censidered
necessary in order to provide us with sufficient evidence to give reasonable assurance that the Group financial
statements are free from material misstatement, whether caused by fraud or other irregularity or error. In
forming our opinion we also evaluated the overall adequacy of the presentation of information In the Group
financial statements.
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Opinion
tn our opinioh:

» the Group financial statements give a true and fair view, in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the
European Union, of the state of the Group's affairs as at 31 December 2008 and of its loss and cash flows
for the year then ended;

+ the Group financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 1985,
and

« the information given in the Directors’ Report is consistent with the Group financial statermants.

(ke 2

PricowaterhouseCoopers LLFP

Chartered Accountamts and Registered Auditors
Manchester

20 February 2009
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CONSOLIDATED {INCOME STATEMENT

NOVERA ENERGY PLC
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2008

2008 2007
£'000 £'000
Notes
Revenue 4 35,514 32,148
Cost of sales before amontisation and depreciation (18,944) (17,239)
Gross profit betore depreciation and amortisation 15,570 14,909
Depreciation 5 {6,243} {5,275)
Amortisation 5 (4,178) {4,072)
Total cost of sales (29,365) {26,586)
Gross profit after depreciation and amortisation 6,149 5,562
Other income - 25
Pre-construction costs 1{K) {2,120) (1,179)
Administration expenseas (4,187) (3,505)
Operating (loss)/profit . (158) 903
Finance costs 7 (5,536) {5,644)
Finance income ' . 7 631 946
Shares of net profit of a joint venture - 269
Loss before income tax . 5 (5,063) {3,536)
Taxation 8 1,519 1,578
Loss for the year (3,544) (1,958)
The results above for both 2007 and 2008 relate to continuing operations.
LOSS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO THE EQUITY HOLDERS:
Notes 2008 2007
Pence Pence

Basic 9 2.7 {1.6)
Diluted 2 2.7 {1.8)

The above consolidated income staterment should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes on
pages 36 to 58,
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ASSETS

Non-current assets
Intangible assets

Property, plant & equipment
Receivables

Deferred tax assels

Total non-current assets

Current assets
Inventories

~ Trade and other receivables
Derivative financial instruments
Cash and cash equivalents
Total current agsets

LIABILITIES

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables
Derivative financial instruments
Borrowinygs

Total current liabilities

Net current (liabilities)assets

Non-current liabilities
Retirement benefit obligation
Borrowings

Deferred tax

Total non-current liabilities

MNet assets

EQUITY

Qrdinary shares
Share premium
Merger resarve
Other reservas
Accumulated losses
Total equity

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

NOVERA ENERGY PLC
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2008

2008 2007
Notss £000 £'000
10 78,456 82,634
11 89,796 76,422
12 607 700
18 1,034 881
169,893 160,837

128 .

13 7,786 7,752
16 - 642
14 20,385 10,803
28,299 19,197

15 (16,044) (10,075)
16 (9,657) .
17 (6,029) (4,634)
(31,730} (14,709)

(3,431) 4,488

25 (183) {(1586)
17 (84,903) {83,276)
18 {23,084) {24,464)
{108,170) (107,896)

58,292 57,229

19 7,177 6,203
19 13,476 -
19 61,979 61,979
23 (2,404) 7,399
22 (21,936) {18,352)
58,292 57,229

The above consolidated balance sheet should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes on pages 36 lo

58.

The financial staternents on pages 32 to 58 were approved by the Board of Directors on 20 February 2009 and

were signed on its behalf by:

DAVID FITZSIMMONS r———‘—"—ﬁ
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

) (/(/ L | .
£

RORY QUINLAN
CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
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- CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF RECOGNISED

INCOME AND EXPENSE
NOVERA ENERGY PLC
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2008

2008 2007
Notes £'000 £'000
Revaluation on acquisition of subsidiary 23 - 8,394
Hedging reserve movement 23 (10,299) (1,557)
Share ot movement in JV reserves 23 - 453
Actuarial losses on defined benefit pension scheme 22 (54) -
Tax on items taken directly to equity 22 14 -
Net (expense)income recognised directly in equity {10,339) 7,290
Loss for the year (3,544) (1,958)
Total recognised income and expense for the year
aitributable to:
Members of Novera Energy pic {13,883) 5,332

The above consolidaled statsments of recognised income and expense should be read in conjunction with
the accompanying notes on pages 36 10 58.
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

NOVERA ENERGY PLC
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2008

MNotes 2008 2007
£'000 £'000

Cash flows from operating activities
Cash generated from operations 24 10,790 10,933
Interest received 543 849
Interest paid - (5,479 (5,920)
Net cash inflow from operating activities 5,854 5,862

Cash flows from investing activities
Acquisition of subsidiaries (net of cash acquired) . (20,377)
Proceeds from sate of property, plant & equipment 27 448
Purchases for property, plant & equipment {13,900) (11,677)
Praceeds from vending of business 181 181
Refund of purchase consideration - 1.097
Net cash (outflow) from investing activities (13,692) (30,328}

Cash flows from financing activities
Net proceeds from issue of share capital 14,451 35,882
Procesds from borrowings 7,674 -
Repayment of borrowings {4,795) (4,308
Net cash inflow from financing activities 17,420 31,576
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 9,582 7.110
Cash at the beginning of the financiat year 10,803 3,693
Cash at end of year 14 20,385 10,803

The above consolidated cash fiow should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes on pages 36 to
58.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
NOVERA ENERGY PLC
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2008
1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the financial report are set out below,

These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise staled. The financial report
includes separate financial stalements for Novera Energy ple ('the Company’) as an individual entity and the Group
consisting of Novera Energy plc and its subsidiaries {'the Group').

{A) BASIS OF PREPARATION

The financial statements have been praparad under the historical cosis convention, modified where nacessary by the
rovaluation of financial assets and liabilities (including derivative instruments) as discussed in note 1.(P).

COMPLIANCE WiTH INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRS"), as adopted by the Eurapean Union IFRIC interpretations and the Company's Act 1985 applicable to companies
raporting under IFRS.

BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION

Novera Energy plc was Incorporated on 15 March 2007, and on 29 May 2007 under a scheme of arrangement approved
by shareholders and the Australian Supreme Court New South Wales replaced Novera Energy Limited (incorporated in
Australia) as the parent company of the Group. The shareholders and their inlerests in the business, immediately beforg
and alter this arrangement, were the same. These financial statemenis have been presented as if Novera Enargy plc had
been the parent throughout the reported period together with comparative information.

The diflerence between the nominal share capital of Novera Energy plc and the contribuled capital of Novera Energy
Limited is shown as merger reserve as permilted by section 131 of the Companies Act 1985. The consolidated financial
staternents comprise the financial statements of Novera Energy plc and its subsidiary undertakings drawn up to 31
December. The accounting years of the subsidiary undertakings are conterminous with that of the parent company. The
results and cash flows of subsidiary undertakings acquired or sold during the year are included from the effective date of
acquisition to disposal and accounted for under the acquisition methed of accounting. Intta Group sales and profits are
fully eliminated on consolidation.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

The preparation of financial staterments in conformity with IFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It
also requires management to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the Group accounting policies. Any areas
involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumption and eslimates are significant to the
financial staterments are disclosed by way of note 3.

NEW ACCOUNTING STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS

The following accounting standard has an eifeclive date for baginning on or alter 1 January 2008, but has been adopled
aarly by the Group:

+ IFAS 8 - Operating Segments

The company impiemented this interpretation early in 2007. The implementation of this new standard, other than making
additional disclosure impacts, did not have any significant impact on the Group's accounting policies or treatments.

The following new accounting standards and interpretations became effective far periods beginning on or after 1 January
2008:

+ IFRIC 14, IAS 19 - Defined benefit assets

The limit on a defined benefit asset, minimum funding requirements and their interactiory', provides guidance on assessing
the limit in IAS 19 on the amount of the surplus that can be recognised as an assel. It also explaing how the pension asset
or liability may be affected by a statutory or contractual minimurn funding requirement. This interpretation does not have
any impact on the group's linancial statements, as the group has a pension deficit and is not subject to any minimum
funding requirements. The interpretation is nol expected to have a material impact on the group.

Interpretations effeclive in 2008 but not retevant 1o the Group:
~  IFRIC 12 - Service concession arrangements
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The following standards and amendments to existing standards have been published and are mandatory for the group's
accounting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2009 or later periods, but the group has not early adopted them:

+ IAS 1 {Revised) - Presentation of financial statements revised version issued in January 2008, effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2009. This changes the presentation requiramants for other comprehensive
incoma and transactions with shareholders, and requires increased disclosures when there is a restatement of
comparatives. Adopting this standard wili not affect the recognition, measurement or disclosure of any transactions or
avents.

« IAS 23 (Revised) — Borrowing costs revised version issued in March 2007, eltective for annual periods beginning on
or alter 1 January 2009, This sliminates the option of expensing ail borrowing costs when they are incurred and is not
expecled to have a material impact on the Group.

» IFRS 2 (Amendment) ‘Share based payments’, issued January 2008, effective for annual periads beginning on or
after 1 January 2009, This provides a definition ot vesting conditions and specifies the accounting treatment for non-
vesting conditions. It is not expecied to materially affect the share-based payment charge recognised in the Group
accounts. :

+ IFRS 3 (Revised) ‘Business combinations', issued January 2008, effective for annual perieds beginning en or after 1
July 2009. This will significantly changs the recognition of goodwill, acquisition costs and contingent consideration
relating to acquisitions. Howaver, it only applies to acquisitions mads after it has been adopted.

The Group will also perform a detailed review of the annual improvements project published by the International
Accounting Standards Board in May 2008. .

(B) PRINCIPLES OF CONSOLIDATION

{l) SUBSIDIARIES

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the assets and fiabiliies of all subsidiaries of Novera Energy plc
(‘Company') as at 31 December 2008 and the results of ail subsidiaries for the year then ended. Novesa Energy pic and
its subsidiaries together are refarred to in this report as the 'Group’.

Subsidiaries are all those entities over which the Group has the power to govemn the financial and operating policies,
generally accompanying a shareholding of more than one-half of the veling rights. The existence and sffect of potential
voting rights that are currenlly exercisable or convertible are considered when assessing whether the Group conirols
ancther entity,

Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the Group. They are de-consolidated
from the date control ceases. Piecemeal acquisitions are accounted for using step acquisition principals and changes to
fair valus relating to the previously owned investments (including joint ventures) are accounted for as revaluations. Each
year a part of the revaluation reflecting the usage of the underlying assels is transferred to the profil and loss reserves.

The purchase method cof accounting is used to account for the acquisition of subsidiaries by the Group {refer to note 1.(1).
Intercornpany transactions, balances and unrealised gains on transactions betwecn Group companies are eliminated,
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of the impairmant of the asset transferred.
Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed where necessary 16 ensure consistency with the policies adopted
by the Group.

(11} JOINT VENTURE ENTITIES

The intersst in joint venture entities is accounted for in the consclidated financial statements using the equity method.
Under the equily methad, the share of the profit or loss of the entity is recognised in the income statement and the share
of movements in reserves is recogrised as a movement in reserves, The cumulalive post-acquisition movements are
adjusted against the carrying amount of the investment.

{C) SEGMENT REPORTING

The Group is organised into operating segments which form the basis of interal reporting for management and the Board
for strategic decision making, such divisions are referred to as operaling segments. A geographical segment is gngaged
in providing products or services within a particular economic environment. The Group only operates within the United
Kingdom,

(D) FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSLATION

{1 FUNCTIONAL AND PRESENTATION CURRENCY

lterns included in the financial statements of gach of the Group's entities are measured using the currency of the primary
etonomic environment in which the entity operates {‘the functional currengy’). The consofidated financial statements are
presented in GBP which is Novera Energy plc's functional and presentational currency. The Directors of the Company
have adopted GBP as its presentational currency as they believe it is lhe most relevant currency which reflacts the risk
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“With the successes we have achieved in
implementing our onshore wind development
programme, we can look forward with confidence to
making a significant contribution to a growing, low

carbon economy.”

Roy A Franklin, Chairman, Novera Energy plc

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS >>

Revenue

£35.5m

* Pro-torma, unaudited

Cash (inciuding restricted at end year) £20.4m
OPERATIONS >>
Generation 554GWh
Average price realised per MW £60/MWh
Operating Asset Oetail Capacity Generation
Landfill Gas 486 sites 87MW 468GWh
Hydro 10 sites 16MW 51GWh
Wind 1 site 15MW 35GWh
57 sites 118MW 554GWh
DEVELOPMENT >>
Lissett Airfietd Wind Farm starts production
Capacity . oMW
Power 74.5GWh
2 further planning consents
Glenkerie 22-27TMW
A'Chruach 40-46MW

{2007: £34.4m)*
(2007: £10.8m)"

(2007: 564GWh)*
(2007: £57/MWh)”
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3% GROWTH IN REVENUE
>> STEADY OPERATIONAL PERFORMANCE

>> INCREASED AVERAGE SALE PRICE

MEASURABLE PROGRESS IN BUILDING WIND PORFOLIO
>> OPERATING: Mynydd Clogau (15MW)

>> CONSTRUCTION: Lissett (30MW)

>> CONSENTED: Glenkerie and A’Chruach (62-73MW)

>> IN PLANNING: 7 sites (7OMW)

>> IN PRE-PLANNING: (248MW)
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CHAIRMAN’S REPORT
“Novera is in a sound financial position and well placed to strengthen
its presence within the renewables market.”

Business Overview
I am pleased to report that Novera Energy continued to make good progress in 2008 in delivering its strategy,
ending the year confident of future expansion and success despite the turmoil in global financial markets.

Novera's strategy is to maximise the financial and operational performance of ils generating assels and to
reinvest the cash generated in the development of new renewable energy assets, with a focus on UK onshore
wind.

Operational performance improvements continued during 2008 wilh increased in-house maintenance of
engines and the introduction of new performance monitoring and data collection systems. Revenue increased
by 3 per cant on a pro forma basis to £35.5 million, due to higher sales prices compensating for a 2 per cent
decrease in generation to 554GWh (2007: 564GWh). Gross profit before depreciation and amortisation also
increased by 4 per cent (on a pro forma basis) to £16.6 million due to increasing revenues and continued
focus on cost controt.

The Group also made substantial progress in developing its wind business. Construction of Lissett Airfield
Wind Farm (30MW} was largely completed during 2008, with first production achieved in February 2009, This
was just over two and a half years after the planning applicationfor the project was submilted, making it one
of the quickest onshore wind farm developments of this scale successfully delivered. Lissett is on track to
have all turbines operational in March 2009 and the project is expected to be completed under budget.

During the year, Novera was granted planning consents for two wind farms in Scolland, taking the total
consented wind capacity to a potential 118MW, depending on turbing selection. The newly consented wind
farm sites, which have a combined potential capacity of 62-73MW, ara Glenkerie (Scottish Borders) and
A'Chruach (Argyll and Bute). Furthermore, the Group currently has seven sites in planning, 13 sites in pre-
planning and a number of additional, less-advanced sites under evaluation with a potential capacity of
approximately 70MW, 250MW and 300MW respectivaly.

In July 2008, Novera raised £15.0 millicn through a share pacing to fund the Group’s wind development
programme. Tha Group ended the year with a cash balance of £20.4 million of which £6.1 million was in
restricted bank accounts. The Group has two non-recourse, long-term {14 and 15 years) finance facilities in
place: one for existing operations of £83.3 million; the other for the Lisseti Airfield Wind Farm, which will be
_ approximately £29.5 million on project completion.

Cutlook

Novera is in a sound financial position and is well placed to strangthen its presence within the renewables
market. With the successes we have achieved to date in implementing our onshore wind development
programmae, we can lock forward with confidence to making a significant contribution to a growing, low carbon
economy and further successes for the Group.

Employees .

2008 was a challenging year for the Group, and staff responded with a positive attitude and a strong work
ethic tha! delivered another good result. On behalf of the Board and all shareholders | would like to take this
- opportunity to thank them for all their effonts.

YL
C?\’Q‘L\'\

HOY A FRANKLIN
CHAIRMAN
20 February 2008
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' CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S REVIEW

“Novera had a successful year in 2008, with operational improvements implemented in the landfill gas
generation business and significant progress achieved in our wind development pipaline including
the construction of the Lissett Airtield Wind Farm.”

Novera had a successful year in 2008, with operational improvements implemented in the landfill gas
generation business and significant progress achieved in our wind development pipeline, lnciudrng the
conslruction of the Lissett Airfield Wind Farm (30MW) which is scheduled to be fully operational ln March
2009.

Novera has an established, diverse portfolio of renewable energy assets with a total capacity of 118MW in
operation at the end of 2008: landfill gas (87MW); hydroelectric (16MW); and wind {(15MW). Whilst the
majority of our operational capacity is currantly fuelled by landfill gas, over the next few years our strategy is {o
deliver a significant level of growth from onshore wind.

Our wind development portfolio currently comprises sites across the UK at various slages of davelopment
from early investigation through to construction, giving us confidence as we work towards our growth targets.

OPERATIONS

The Key Performance Indicators ('KPIs") for our operauons are based on power generation, revenue, costs
and gross profit. The 2007 comparative figures are presented on a pro-forma basis as axplained fully within
the Financial Review.

The Group’s revenue increased by 3 per cent with higher contract prices more than compensating for a 2 per
cent decline in production, further details of which are set out below. These prices were achieved due to the
higher one-year Power Purchase Agreement {'PPA") price, inflationary increase to the UK Government's Non
Fossil Fuel Obligation ('NFFQ'} contracts, and a decrease in the proportion of less profitable energy
generation sold under NFFQ contracts. B7 per cent of Novera's 2008 power output was sold under long-term
contracts (2007: 90 per cent). As these contracts expire Novera can expect 1o achieve market prices, which
are currently higher, compared to Novera's 2008 average sales price of E60/MWh,

The main risks to our operations relate to asset pedormance, health & salety and environmental standards
and the impact of weather, Qperational performance is now monitored in real tima with the establishment of a
24-hour controt which assists us in identitying improvement opportunities and managing risk. Environmental
and, health & safety risks are key priorities for Novera and we have appointed dedicated resources to assess
and manage these risks. The gepgraphical spread of our porifolio and weather predictions included in our
financial models {acilitate our assassment of the impact of weather on our results.

LANDFILL GAS

Novera's landfill gas portfolio generated 468GWh during 2008 (2007: 487GWh). During 2008, we
experienced a series of operational issues, common to the industry, such as delays to capping and over-
tipping carried out by the waste companies at certain sites in our portfolio. We are working with waste
operators to overcome these issues. Qur major partners in the waste industry are: WRG, Sita and Viridor, as
well as with Clarke Energy, the main third party provider of external operations and maintenance services 1o
the Group’s fleet of engines.

Further progress was made during the year with the Group's operating improvements programrme. In-house
engine maintanance was ingreased to include an additional 16 engines, previously out-sourced, to 1mprove
quality control, cost management and engine availability,

HYDROELECTRIC
The 16MW hydro portfolio pedormed weell in 2008 generalting 51GWh (2007: 49GWh). The inCcrease was
largely the result of higher lavels of rainfall.

WIND
Generation from Mynydd Clogau (15MW} increased by 25 per cenl to 35GWh (2007: 28GWh) as a result of
favourable wind conditions.

INDUSTRIAL AND WATER SERVICES

Novera is the UK's largest independent operator of sludge drying and dewatering faciliies. The Group
manages the operaticns and maintenance of sludge drying and dewatering plants in Cardiff, Newport and Port
Talbot for Kelda Water Services, a role we have fulfilied for the last ten years. Novera also operates and
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maintains a sludge drying facility in Edinburgh for Veolia Water Services. Revenue from this activity was up 2
per cent to £2.4 million.

WIND DEVELOPMENT

The KPls for Novera's development arm are based an megawatt targets established on an annual basis for
each stage of the planning process: appraisal, pre-planning, sites into planning and consent. Progress
against all of these measures is tracked on a monthly basis. :

CONSTRUCTION :
The construction of our 12-turbine, 30MW Lissett Airfield Wind Farm was underway throughout 2008 under a
turnkey design and build contract with turbine supplier, Nordex, and project managed by Novera's in-house
construction team. Lissett started generating in February 2009, just over two and a half years aiter the
planning application for the project was submitted. We are not aware of any other development of this size
reaching first production in this timeframe. The project is expected to be completed under the budget of £38.5
million.

CONSENTED SITES

During 2008, we were granted consents for two further wind farm applications: 11-turbine Glenkerte (22-
27MW) in the Scottish Borders; and 20-turbine A'Chruach {40-46MW) in Argyll and Bute. Work is underway in
respect of construction plans and finanging for Glenkerie.

IN PLANNING
The Group ended the year with eight wind farm sites in the planning system with a tolal capacity of
approximately B0MW. One site, Fleeter Woad (10MW), has since been withdrawn while concarns regarding

radar are addressed in liaison with National Air Traific Services. Planning decisions on the remaining seven
applications are anticipated during 2008.

PRE-PLANNING AND APPRAISAL

Our pipeline remains strong with 13 sites in the pre-planning stage, with a total potential capacity of
approximately 250MW. For each of these sites we have completed a scoping study to confirm its suitabitity
for a wind farm and have initiated a 12-month bird survey. We also have a number of additional, less-
advanced sites in the ‘appraisal’ stage with an additional, combined potential in excess of 300MW.

Novera's wind development team expanded in 2008 in line wiih the growth of our portiolio. This has also
allowed the Group to take elements of the specialist environmental impact expertise in-house.

ENERGY FROM WASTE
Novera holids the exclusive UK ficence for a proven gasification technology which may be utilised at the
consentad East London Sustainabla Energy Facility (‘ELSEF’) project.

in May 2008, a 15-year fuel agreement for the supply of 98,000 tonnes per annum of Solid Recovered Fuel
was agreed with Shanks Waste Management Limited. In July 2008, an agreement was also signed with Ford
Motor Company Limited {*Ford’) for the supply of up to 13MW of electricity generated from ELSEF to use at
their Dagenham Estate, and for the use of the fand in Dagenham for the construction and operation ot ELSEF.

In Dacember 2008, the Energy Bill was passed into law confirming that Novera’s gasification technology will
be classed as ‘Advanced Gasification’ and qualifies for two Renewables Obligation Certificates ('ROCS’) under
the proposed banding by the UK Government.

The pre-development work on the ELSEF project is now nearing completion and Novera is- currently in
discussion with potential partners to take the project torward to linancial close.
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Outlook

Under the European Union's Renewable Energy Directive, the UK has been set a target of generating 15 per
cent of its ensrgy from renawable enargy sources by 2020. The UK Government has reported that, in 2007,
only 4.9 per cent of total electricity generation came from renewable sources while recent targets published in
the UK Renewable Energy Strategy call for this to increase to 30-35 per centby 2020, highlighting the
urgency to move quickiy towards a lower carbon economy.

At the end of 2008, we are confident in our ability to deliver fuither improvements from our new Cperations
Centre and retain our strong track record in achieving planning consent for our wind sites. Generation from
our wind portfolio will increase with the start of production from Lissett Airfield, with the prospect of Glenkerie
and A'Chruach to follow.

-6 -
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OPERATIONS

Novera's portfolio comprises landfill gas, hydro and wind assets at 57 sites across the UK. The Group's
renewable capacity at the end of 2008 was 118MW and this will rise to 148MW on completion of Lissett
Airfield Wind Farm.

-—— gross profit
— revenue

average sales price
16| generation
1.5
14
1.3
1.2

1.1

18
1.7

indexation to 2005 performance

0.9
0.8

2005 2006 2007 2008

During 2008, revenue from operations increased by 3 per cent in 2008 10 £35.5 million and gross profit (before
depreciation and amortisation) increased by 4 per cent to £16.6 million. 1t is expected that generation from
our landfill assets will remain on plateau and then decline. :

Novera is addressing this movement by:

Achieving higher average sales price as NFFO contracts explre;

o Delivering operational improvermnants by increasing in-house CaM;
o Enhancing periormance monitoring and cost-saving initfatives; and
o Increasing up generation from our wind portfalio,

o

2006: identifying operational improvements post-acquisition of the Novera Macquarie Renewable Energy
(‘NMRE") operations business.

2007: Re-location of the operations headquarters to premises with in-house engine warkshop; improved
management of external engine maintenance contracts; the optimisation of engine use 1o maximise the time
between overhauls; and the renegoetiation of lower royalty rales.

2008: During the year, various cost-saving, quality cantrol and availability improvements were implemented,
One of the main drivers was bringing the day-to-day operations and maintenance ol 16 previously cut-sourced
engings o our in-house maintenance facility in Warrington. Here we are also able to undertake major rebuilds
on several engines. The lastar turnaround times have led to further benefits through increased availability
achieved.

o A new 24/7 control room was established to remotely monitor the engines to alfow them to be
remotely restarted.

& Novera's bespoke engine and site automation system was ailso extended to cover an additional 26
engines, allowing full-engine fault diagnosis and remote restarting capability.

o New controls were fitted to nine engines which replaced out of date systems, bringing the benefit of
connecting into the Novera Automation system.

A Novera Operations intranet was astablished (o facilitate the electronic weekly reporting of key enviranmental
and site-refated data. The facility has provided management with a clear overview of site activities. A new
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half-hourly etectricity data collection system was also inlroduced, alfowing day +1 gengration analysis and
reporting Lo ensure resources are focussed where required.

Finally, in response to the changing profile of gas production across our portfolio of sites, we continued with
our programme of fleet optimisation and relocated a number of engines, maximising generation fram the same
installed capacity.

POWER SALES AND TRADING

Novera's average price for power sales in 2008 was £60/MWh (2007: £57/MWHh), an increase of 5 per cent.
Our generation is sold under Power Purchase Agreemenis {'PPAs'), under which a customer takes all the
electricity generated from specified assets for the contractuat period, whether short term (one-year} or long
term (15 to 20 years). 87 per cent of Novera's energy generation was sold under long-term contracts in 2008
(2007: 90 per cent).

in 2008, 56 per cent of our generation was from sites developed under the UK Government's Non Fossil Fuei
Obligation {‘NFFQ') programme (2007: 59 per cent). Output from these sites is sold via the Government's
Non Fossil Purchase Agency ('NFPA'). The percentage of Novera's output sold under these NFFQ contracts
is expected to continue to fall as these contracts expire and, based on current market pricing, our average
price is expected lo rise as a result. The average price for our NFFO sales in 2008 was £46/MWh (2007:
£44/MWh), an increase af 2 per cent, reflecting the APl indexing of these contracts.

31 per cent of generation in 2008 was sold under long-term contracts to energy retailers such as EON and
Centrica under Henewable Obligation PPAs. In Aprit 2010, the Centrica PPA contract prices will change from
fixed prices to market-based prices.

The remaining 13 per cent of generation in 2008 was sold under & one-year PPA at a sales price of £98/MWh
compared to £81/MWh in 2007. in July 2008, Novera announced the sale of 31GWh at a price of £136 per
MWh under a one year PPA for the period 1 April 2009 to 31 March 2010

The PPA for generation from the Lissett Airfield Wind Farm is a 15-year contrac with Scottish and Southern
Energy, under which prices will be set annually on market-based prices fram March 2009,
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Lissett Airfield Wind Farm
“Propellers back at Lissett.” Rev. Ken Skidmore (ex Flight Engineer at Lissett)

The first turbines at Novera’s Lissett Aidield Wind Farm in the East Riding of Yorkshire were erected in
December 2008 and the remainder completed in February 2009. Energy generation from the first turbine was
achieved in February when commissioning of the turbines commenced. The project was under construction
throughout 2008 under a turnkey design & build contract with the turbine supplier Nordex UK Ltd, project
managed by Novera's in-house construction team.

The project has involved the construction of roads, crane platforms, turbine foundations, a site substation and
on-site elactrical and communications network, in addition to the wind turbines. Heaith and Safety has been
given the utmost importance throughout and the Censtruction (Design and Management) Regulations 2007
have been rigorously adhered to by Novera, acting in its role as cliant,

Works were mobilised at site in Decembar 2007 with the start of the construction of the new road network and
crana platforms to gain access to the turbine locations. Difficult underlying ground conditions meant that deep
foundaticns were required; all 12 of the bases had to be piled to depths of up to 30m through bands of sand
and gravel to the undedying chalk with each base requiring a minimum of 30 pre-cas! driven piles to be
installed in order to carry the wind turbine loads.

Works were suspended at the start of March 2008 in ling with the planning consent conditions which stipulated
a bird breeding season restriction.

On re-mobilisation works continued on the piling and road construction before works started in eamest on the
construction of the pile caps and foundations. After installation of the elecirical and communications network,
erection of the wind turbines commenced in late November 2008 when the project took delivery of the 1000"™
Ng0 turbine produced by Nordex. The 2.5MW Nordex NS0 wind turbines have a hub haight of 80m and 90m
diameter blades requiring the combined operation of a 500-tonna and 250-tonne crane for their installation.

Yorkshire Electricity Distribution Limited ('YEDL"), the local electricity company, supplied the grid connection
works for the site via 12km 66KV underground connection from their existing grid supply point at Driffield,

Challenges have been encountered and successfully overcome throughout the year. These included
balancing the competing needs of the construction works against activities on an intensely farmed arable site,
as wall as the need to accommodate problems encountered from munitions left over from the site’s previous
use as a former RAF bomber command airfield.

The scheme is Novera’s second wind farm site and the first that it has project managed directly. The Group
currently has generation capacity of 118MW from renewable sources and this rises to 148MW on the
integration of Lissett Airfield into the operational portiolio.

Development timeline

2005 ' Site identification
Exclusivity and Access Agreement with Landowner
2006 | July Planning application
2007 February Planning consent granted
QOctover Financial close

December | Project construction commenced
2008 November | First turbines delivered

2009 February First production

March Due to be {ully commissioned

Project Fact File
Budget £38.5m
Power 74.5GWh
Main Contractor Nordex UK Lid
Grid Contractor YEDL
Technical Advisor | Entec
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RAF 158 SQUADRON

During the Second World War, Lissett was home to the Rayal Air Force ‘158" Sguadron. RAF Lissatt Airfield
was built between 1341 and 1943 and was the closest Yorkshire bomber airfield to Germany during WWII. As
well as the 3-runway airfield, there was accommodation for around 1,800 personne! on and around the site.
Around 250 raids werg made from the airfield during the war. 144 Halifax Bombers failed o return or were
destroyed in operational crashes with the loss of over 600 aircrew from Lissett Airfield.

MEMORIAL SCULPTURE

Given Lisselt Airfield's fascinating history, Novera was pleased to include in its planning application the
construction of a memarial to the 851 members of 158 Squadron who died in aclive service, and a site
interpretation board explaining the airield’s history.

In consultation with the 158 Sgquadron Assocciation and East Riding of Yorkshire Council ('ERYC), Novera
held a design compstition for a memorial sculpture as tribute to the contribution that the Squadron made 1o the
war effort during its operation. The memorial unveiling ceremony for RAF veterans and members of the
Squadron Association will be held in 2009.

NAMING OF THE TURBINES

At the suggestion ol 158 Squadron Association, elaven of the turbines erected at Lissett will be named after
aircraft that flew with the 158 Squadron: Friday the 13th, Goofy's Gilt, Lili Marlene, Jane, Xpress Delivery, The
Menace, Blondie, Zombi, Maori Chief, Git up dem Stairs and Minnie the Moocher. The twellth will
commaemorate the six aircraftmen who perished on 2 July 1943,

The six who perished, due to the Bomb Dump incident, were Corporal Leslie Fielding, Aircrattman Lewis
Moore, Aircraftman William Mithan, Aircraftman Kenneth Taylor, Aircraftman Robert Mills .and Aircraftman
Jack Laycock.

Official naming of the turbines will take place as pan of the annual reunion of 158 Squadron Association in
September 2009.

COMMUNITY FORUM

Novera's approach as a rasponsible developer and operator of renewable eneigy involves consulfing widely
with local communities and others with an interest in the development. As soon as projacts aenter the
construction phase, a Cormunity Liaison Forum is established primarily as a vehicle for disseminating
updates to the wider community.

At Lisselt, the Construction Director, Gregor Bryce, and Communications Manager, Sarila Bansal, managed
the Forum throughout 2008, alternating months betwsen issuing a newsletter updates to over 12,000
residents local to the site and holding open Forum meetings at the local village hall. This ensured that any
concerns could be dealt with as soon as they arose.

- 10 -
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WIND DEVELOPMENT EXPERTISE

During 2008, Novera increased its wind development resources by six staif to include in-house expertise in
the specialist areas of site selection, planning, grid, ecology, environmeantal impact assessment, construction
and operations and maintenance.,

The strengthening of the team has increased the Group's efficiency of project management and decreased
the dependency on external consultancies.

CONSENTED SITES (62-73MW)

GLENKERIE )

The 1i-turbine Glenkerie site liss between two tributaries of the River Tweed in the Scottish Borders. The
planning application was submitted in December 2007 and was approved by bath Scottish Borders Council
and the Scottish Government in September 2008.

The wind farm site is well elevated, remote from residential properties and used for sheep-grazing. Glenkerie
will have a capacity of 22-27MW, encugh to power approximately 16,400 households*. This is the equivalent
of aver 30 per cent of the population of Scottish Borders local authority area.

Detailed design work on the connection to the grid has started and Novera is in discussions with several
turbine suppliers to provide wind turbines for Glenkerie as well as for other sites in the Group's portfolio.

A'CHRUACH

A planning application for the 20-turbine A'Chruach Wind Farm in Argyll, Scotland, was submitted in
December 2007, consented with no statutory objections five months later in May 2008 and the planning notice
issued in September 2008.

The wind farm will be constructed on land owned by Forestry Commission Scotland ('FCS'} which is secured
under an option and lease agreement. National Grid and Scottish Hydro-Electric Transmission Lid are
concluding work to delermine the timing of a connection.

Depending on turbine selection, A'Chruach will have a capacity of 40-46MW and the renewable energy
expected to be generated is equivalent to the average annual electricity demand of approximately 25,000
households®, ropresenting more than 64 per cent of the population househotds of Argyll and Bute,

* Based on 4,700kWh average annual househoid electricity consumption, recommended by BWEA and
sourced from BERR (previously DTI) Digest of UK Energy Statistics, 2005).

IN PLANNING (70MW)

Novera has seven wind farm sites in the planning system. All of the locations were selected as having a
number of attributes which aliow for the development of a wind farm with minimal environmentat effects. The
selected areas will typically have excellent potential due to their exposed nature and high wind speeds and no
designations on the site. The planning decisions for these seven applications which have a combined
potential capacity of approximately 70MW are anticipated during 2009.

PRE-PLANNING (248MW)
There are currently 13 sites for which feasibility studies have been undertaken and bird surveys have
commenced. Several of these sites are anticipated 1o be laken forward into the planning stage during 2009.

APPRAISAL (300MW)

Further site search activity to identify new areas potantially suitable for wind farms has been ongoing and has
afready yielded results with a number of sites now under appraisal by the Group with a combined potential
capacity of 300MW.
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IN PLANNING

Wingates 12-15MW 6 TURBINES 110M 8LADE TIP HEIGHT

Application to Alnwick District Council: December 2008

The site is located approximately Bkm south of Longframiington and 4km north of Netherwitton in
Northumberland. Situated on farmiand used for sheep grazing and soma recently planted mixed broadisaf
woodland, the land is relatively flat and open with a mixture of wire fences and hedges forming the principal
land divisions.

Gordonstown Hill 10-12.5MW 5 TURBINES 100M BLADE TIP HEIGHT

Application to Aberdeenshire Council: December 2008 '

The land currently comprises agricultural farmland at Gordonstown Hill, near Kirkion of Auchterless and
approximately 9km south of Turriff, Aberdeenshire.

Sillfield Wind Farm** 6MW 3 TURBINES 110M BLADE TIP HEIGHT

Application to South Lakeland District Council: September 2008

Tha site is adjacent to the main transport corridor of the M6 (640m from the nearest turbine) and 2.5km from
Endmoor in South Lakeland, Cumbria. The landowners have been investigating the possibility of a wind
energy development on their land since 2003, as a form of diversification.

** Silifield is owned by a joint venture between Novera and an independent developar and which will be 100
per cent owned by Novera, should consent be granted.

Todd Hill 8-10MW 4 TURBINES 101M BLADE TIP HEIGHT

Application to Castle Morpeth Borough Council: December 2008

The sita lies on agricultural land north of Pigdon and east of Stanton, some 8km northwest of Morpeth, in
Northumberland. The site is dominated by intensively grazed grassland and arable farmland. -The site is
bordered by hedgerows, with areas of woodland and commercial forestry plantation.

Bullamoor 10-12MW 4 TURBINES 130M BLADE TIP HEIGHT

Application to Hambleton District Council: December 2008

The exposed tocation on a broad ridge, elevated above surrgunding fand which typically creates good wind
conditions is situated approximately 4km northeast of Northallerton and 2km southeast of Brompton in North
Yorkshire. The site is mainly managed farmland bordered by hedgerows.

Mynydd Clogau 2 16MW 19 TURBINES 81M BLADE TIP HEIGHT

Application to Powys County Council: March 2008

Tha site is adjacent to Novera's operating wind farm in mid-Wales, approximately 10km northwest of Newtown
in Powys.

Mountboy MW 3 TURBINES 105M BLADE TiP HEIGHT

Application to-Angus Council: January 2007

The site is [ocated approximately 6km south west of Montrose in Angus, Scotland. The application is currently
the subject of a public local inguiry. .
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CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER’'S REVIEW

“In 2008, we strengthened the Company’s balance sheet and increased
our investment in our wind development pipeline.”

FINANCIAL REVIEW

In 2008, we strengthened the Company's balance sheet and increased our investment in the wind
development pipeline. Highlights for 2008 were:

- Raising £15.0 million {before costs) in cash through a placing of 19.5 million shares to fund the continuing
investment in our wind portfolio;
£20.4 million cash in bank at the year end, of which £6.1 miflion was restricted cash;
Net debt at £70.5 million at the year end;
Secure, long-term finance facilities in place;
£14.2 million Invested in construction of 12-turbing Lissett Airfield Wind Farm {30MW); and
Significant cash flow from operations available to be re-invested in development activities.

FINANCIAL OVERVIEW

The consolidated resuits of the Group are prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards {IFRS) and include the following figures:

31 Dec 08 31 Dec 07
e e o o et ememrmarerr e e OO0 000
Revenue T T U351 T 32,148
Cost of _s_glgi (18,944) (17,239)
Grossyroilt before d deprec:atlon and amomsatlon 1570 14,909
" Administration costs S T @aa8n) T 3,480)
Pre- co‘nstrucuon costs . o {2,120) {1,179)
EBTOA T T 10,263 10,250
Net loss after tax . _ ) {3,544) {1.958)
“Tangible & intangible assets """ ""168,252 159,056
Cashbalance T T TTTTTTTTT 20385 T 10,803
Bowowings e __.fs0932) " (87,910)
_Netassets 8282 57,229

For the purposes of comparison the Directors have also produced the 2007 resulls of the Group on a pro-
forma basis which better reflect the underlying performance of the businesses comprising the Group. The
2007 comparative period assumes 100 per cent ownership of Novera Macquarie Renewable Energy
('NMRE"); the Group actually owned 50 per cent of NMRE until 22 January 2007.

31 Dec 08 M Dec 07

£'000 Pro forma

£'000

U _ e - _Junaudited)

Revenue _ ] B ) 35,514 34,440
Cost of sales L (18,944) . {18,449}

Gross prom before deprecnatlon and amortisatlon 16,570 15,991

Administration costs T T ey (3,582)

Pre-construction cosls (21200 {1, 179)

EBITDA 10,263 11,230

Tanglble & intangible assets ) . 1es252 158,056

Cash balance : 20,385 10,803
Borrowings . . : ... {90832) (87910}

Net assets ) 58,292 57,229
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On a pro-forma basis the key financial highlights for the year ended 31 December 2008 include:

Annual revenue of £35.5 million up 3 per cent:
* Landfill Gas increased by 1 per cent to £27.2 mitlion
» Hydroelectric increased by 7 per cent to £3.4 million
*  Wind increasad by 31 per cent to £2.5 million
s+ Water services and industrial increased by 2 per cent to £2.4 million

Avarage sales price across the portfolio increased to E60/MWh in 2008 (2007: £57/MWh). Higher
prices were achieved due ta a higher average one-year PPA price and an inflationary rise on
NFFO contracts. The increase in revenue also reflects the evolution of the Group’s coniract
structure, with the proportion of our production bsing sold under lower value NFFO contracts
fafling from 59 per cent in 2007 to 56 per cent in 2008.

Gross profit {before depreciation and amortisation) increased by 4 per cent to £16.6 million due to
increasing revenues and continuation of cost-saving measures.

EBITDA decreased by 9 per cent to £10.3 million due to increased investment in our development
pipeline, ingreasing pre-construction expense, and ane-off administration costs (£0.5 million) in
the first half of 2008 relating to approaches from 3i Infrastructure Limited and Infinis Acquisitions
Limited.

Pre-construction expenditure incurred in cash was £4.3 million {2007: £3.0 million) of which £2.5
miflion (2007: £1.8 million) was capitalised and £1.8 million was expensed {2007: £0.6 million). A
further £0.3 million of pre-construction costs in the Income Statement relates to previously
capitalised projects that are no longer moving forward and have been expensed. Pre-construction
expenditure is capitalised when the operational and financial viability of the project has been
astablished with reasonable ceriainty and the decision made 10 take the project forward to
planning.

«  Wind cash expenditure increased by £1.6 million to £4.0 milion {£2.5 million
capitalised}, reflecting the increase of activity with five planning applications submitted
during the year, ' :

v ELSEF-related expenditure was £0.3 million (2007: £0.6 million).

PLACING TO RAISE £15 MILLION

In July 2008 Novera placed 19.5 million shares with institutional and other investors and Directors at a price of
77 pence per share, raising a total of £15.0 million befare costs.

The proceeds of the Placing are being used to further the Group’s wind development programme:

To submit additional wind farm sites into planning;
To fund reservation fees to secure wind turbines;
To fund future wind projects; and

For working capital purposes.

CONSTRUCTION OF LISSETT AIRFIELD WIND FARM

The Lissett Airfield Wind Farm was substantially constructed during the year, with completion expected in
March 2009, Capital cost {including accruals) incurrad in the year was £14.2 million, bringing tolal incurred for
the project to £22.3 million. The project s expected to come in balow budget of £38.5 million.

Tha first draw down on the foan facility was made in October 2008, and at 31 Oecember 2008 £7.1 million had
been drawn down. The remaining debl is due lo be drawn down during the first quarter of 2009 as the project
is completed. The remainder of the capital cost was funded from exisling cash reserves.

CASH POSITION AND FINANCE FACILITIES

At the end of 2008 Novera had a closing cash position of £20.4 million (including £6.1 million in restricted
cashy}, and all debt funding of £90.9 million under Project Finance arrangements,
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The Group had two non-recourse long-term project finance facilities in place: £83.3 million for existing
operations with 14 years remaining; and £7.1 million drawn down for Lissett Airfield Wind Farm, with 15 years
remaining. No refinancing obligations are attached to either facility. There is aiso a batance of £0.5 million
held in a monthly, revolving VAT facility for the Lissett construction.

The existing operations have a syndicated loan facility secured by a floating=cha!ge over the assets of Novera
Energy (Holdings 2) Limited Greup. The debt is 39 per.cent fixed untit 31 December 2009 and 82 per cent
fixed until 2014 with a weighted average interest rate of 6.2 per cent.

The Lissett Airfield Wind Farm has been financed by a combination of equity and debt. The equity amount
(£9.0 million) has been fully funded. The total debt is expected to be approximately £29.5 million on project
completion, with the remaining debt due to be drawn down during the first quarter of 2009 as the construction
of the project is completed. 95 per cent of the debt is fixed at an interest rate of 6.13 per cent over the term of
the facility.

The mark-to-market on the interest rate swaps in place over the Novera Energy Holdings 2 loan has moved
from an asset of £0.6 million in 2007 to a liability of £5.9 million in 2008 due to a fall in long-term interest
rates. In addition to this, the interest rates swaps entered into financial close in November 2007, for the
Lissett facility represent a liability of £3.7 million or the 31 December 2008 Balance Sheet,

Novera focuses on operating cash flow to maximise shareholder value over the long-term. Novera is in the
tortunate position to be able to use cash generated by our operational business o invest in our development
pipelina. Once operational, Lissett Airfield Wind Farm will provide a step increase o the Group's operating
cash flow. Options for financing future wind farm sites include debt, equity and asset sale of whole or part of a
consentad or operating site.

POWER SALES AND TRADING

Novera has entered into various PPAs under which a customer takes all the electricity generated from
specifiad assets for the contractual period, typically between one and 15 years.

The Lisseit PPA is over 15 years with the price being fixed annually based on market price. These
arrangements are similar in nature to operating leases with no minimum committed payments. Reveanue from
PPAs and the relevant assels used to generate the electricity are reported in the segment relevant to the type
of asset used to generale the electricity. Revenue is recognised as electricity is generated at the contracled
rate on the date of generation, except where that rale cannot be detsrmined with reasonable accuracy in
which case it is recognised when the rate can be determined wilh reasonable certainty.

RISK MANAGEMENT
The Group's aclivities expose it to a variety of financial risks such as market, economic, interest, and credit
risk. A risk management plan is prepared regularly and reviewed by the Board.

Novera's risk management programme includes the predictability of revenue and control over cosis io
maximise financial performance. Long-term PPAs and generation forecasts provide prediclability of revenue.
Actual operational and financial performance is monitored against budget on a monthly basis to optimise
performance and address any areas of risk. The renewable energy industry is supported by legislative, long-
term renewable energy targets.

Intérest rate swaps are used to manage exposure to inlerest rate fluctuation. All deposits are hold with an AA-
financial institution. Movera's customer base comprises mainly of large electricity retailers and water utilities,
and the Government's NFPA, The risks faced by Novera are discussed in further detail within the notes to
these accounts.

DIVIDEND
The direclors are not proposing o pay a dividend.

—_—
DAVID FITZSIMMONS RORY QUINLAN

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
20 February 2009 20 February 2009
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Sustainability Review

As a leading independent renewable energy company, central to Novera's strategy is the generation of green
electricity. Novera strives to maximise production of clean energy and minimise energy consumption in arder
to reduce our overall carbon dioxide emissions. Novera is commitied to the continual improvement of its
sustainability perlormance.

Novera's approach to sustainability encompasses all aspects of the business, from office recycling initiatives
and car sharing incentives through to staff welfare schemes and community engagement programmes for
development programmes.

HEALTH, SAFETY, ENVIRONMENTAL AND QUALITY MANAGEMENT

Novera seeks to operate its sites 1o the highest industry standards at all times. Procedures have been
implemented for an Environmental Management System to meet the requirements of [SO 14001 the standard
to which it became fully compliant in August 2008.

Novera also holds cerification standard 1SO 9001 accredited by British Standards Institution ('BSt'} and,
during the year, was also awarded the Occupational Health & Safety Assessment Series 18001 standard.
MNovera employs dedicated staff to manage the heaith, safety and environmental standards of the Group and
furthermore, has achieved BSI accreditation for our respective OHSAS, Environmental and Quality systems.

ENGAGING WITH KEY STAKEHOLDERS

Novera recognises the importance of consulting early with the local community in its wind development
programme and comments by local residents provide important focal knowledge which contributes to the final
ptanning application. Consultation continues after a planning application has been submitted and, if granted
planning consent, during the construction and throughout the operational life of the asset.

Prior to submitting its planning application far the Lissett Airfield Wind Farm, Novera consulted with the East
Riding of Yorkshira Council, professicnal entities with a direct interest in the proposed wind farm, the local
community and potential local construction partrers. Before construction started a Community Liaison Forum
was established to provide representatives from neighbouring Parish Councils with regular updates aon the
conslruction process.

As a direct response to commants from the local residents and the Community Forum, Novera has made a
contribution of £20,000 to HEYwoods a local initiative whose purpose is to plant trees in the East Riding ot
Yorkshire. :

Novera is a member of the British Wind Energy Association, the Renewable Energy Association and Scottish
Renewables. The Group s alsc a Corporate Patron of the Royal Scciety for the Pratection of Birds ('RSPB').

CONSULTATION: A RESPONSIBLE APPROACH TO WIND DEVELOPMENT

All of Novera's planning applications are accompanied by a detailed assessment of the suitability of the site
for the proposed wind farm. Important areas of assessment include the impact on local wildlife, in paricular
local bird populations. Bird surveys are conducted over a period of at least 12 months belore assessment by
axperienced ornithologists. Consuliation with Natural England and the RSPB also form part of this
assessment.

The RSPB Conservation Officer reported on Novera's approach to the development of Lissett:

“I would also like to take this cpportunity to pass on my sincere thanks to Novera Energy... for the
considerable time and effort they have invested in this proposal in order to try to ensure that the wind
farm will be a positive example of sustainable development which delivers the environmental benefits
of renewable energy whilst safeguarding the considerable biodiversity and conservation interest at
the site.”

- 16 -




i
S

novera energy
“Novera actively encourages using local contractors for construction,

operation and maintenance work.”

LOCAL EMPLOYMENT

Novera actively encourages using local contractors for construction, operation and maintenance work
wherever possible. For example at Lissett Airfield we sourced local aggregates and concrete from the quarry
adjacent to the airfield. Novera is pleased to be working with a focal artist, Peter Naylor, on the Lissett
memorial, the construction of which will invelve matenials and resources of a locally-based firm, Campbells.

COMMUNITY FUNDS

The Trust set up at Mynydd Clogau Wind Farm in Wales has funded educational projects and equipment for
the local youth football team. Beneficiaries lo date include Adfa Village Hall, Cwm Uanllugan Community
Centre, Tregynon Dragons Football Team, Adfa Chapel, St Mary's Church, Cefn Coch Training Group,
Tregynon Luncheon Club, Bethany Youth Group, Ti a Fi Rhiwbechan, Rhiw Valley Youth Club and Ysgot
Rhiwbechan. Also, a number of students have received financial suppor to assist with their course cosls.

Once Lissett Aifiald Wind Farm is fully operational, Novera will make a donation into a local Trust Fund to
ensure that some of the revenue generated by the wind farm directly benefits the local communily through
investment in local initiatives.

Simitar Trust Funds will be established for the next round of sites, post canstruction. In Argyll and Bute where
Novera's 40-46MW A'Chruach has been consented and a fund will also be established, we are proud to have
been a supporter of the annual Lantern Festival for the past two years and we [ook forward to making a
contribution to other cultural and community-based initiatives in the area.

With all Movera's Trust Funds, the contributions are managed by local people and used for sustainable, local
projects and Initiatives of their chaice.

CHARITABLE DONATICNS

As a renewable energy company, Novera recognises the importance of supporting positive, community
initiatives and we strive to be active in our community involvement. Novera will donate to etigible
organisations with consideration given to those in the fialds of education, community, health care and
sustainability.

HUMAN RESQURCES POLICY

Novera Energy is commilted lo investing in staff across the business through ongeing training and
development and by means of a range of employee benefits o promote staff retention. HR policies including
perormance review, recruitment planning and equal opportunities are continuously refined in-line with
business needs. Regular communication on company issues remains central to engendaring Novera's
culture of continuous improvement and growing our talent.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Roy A Franklin OBE, Chairman
Roy is Chairman of Novera Energy ple; he is also Non-executive Director and sits on the Group's Nominalion
Committes. :

Roy was formerly Chief Executive of independent oil company Paladin Resources pic, prior to which he was
Group Managing Director of Clyde Petroleum plc. Before joining Clyde in 1881, he worked at BP for 18 years,
latterly heading up BP Exploration’s acquisition and divestitures group.

Roy is also a non-executive director of StatoilHydro ASA, the Norwegian oil and gas company, Santos Ltd, the
Australian independent oil and gas exploration company and Kefler Group ple, the FTSE 250 ground
engineering specialist. He is a member of the StatoilHydro and Keller Audit Commiltees,
the Keller Remuneration Committee and the SANTOS Environmental Heaith Safety and  Sustainability
Commitiee. He is also Chairman and a non-executive director of both AlM-listed Bateman Litwin N.V., and TS
Marine Ltd, an Aberdeen-based private oilfield services company.

David Fitzsimmons, Chief Executive Officer

David joined Novera in Qctober 2005, since which lime the company has completed its transition from
Australia to the UK, acquired the remaining 50 per cent of its pravious JV with Macquarie and established a
strong portfolio of development opportunities. Before joining Novera, David spent 27 years with BP. There he
held senior positions in all core businesses, including CEQ of BP's oil trading, President of BP Asia and
Commercial Director for BP's Gas, Power and Fenewable business.

David brings to Novera in-depth knowledge of energy markets together with proven management and
strategic skills, and experience in leading growth businesses.

Rory Quinlan, Chief Financial Officer

Rory has extensive experience in the development, structuring, financing and management of complex energy
infrastructure businesses. In addition, he has substantial M&A, equity market and public company
experience. Prior to joining Novera, Rory held senior positions with Ergon Energy and Xstrata (MIM
Holdings).

Rory commenced with Novera in 2004 and has since led ait of Novera's corporate and commercial initiatives
to date including all acquisitions, and debt and equity financings.

Michael A Cairns OBE, Non-executive Director

Michael is an experienced executive having held positions as Chairman, CEQ, COO and non-executive
director of a variety of private equily, government and listed public enterprises. Michael brings to Novera
experience in the management and implementation of successful growth strategies in small to medium
enterprises.

Michael is a member of both the Remuneration Committee and Nominations Committee,

Brian Duckworth OBE, Non-executive Director
Brian spent 30 years with Severn Trent plc, betore reliring as Managing Director of Severn Trent Water in
2005. Prior to joining Severn Trent he workad for four years for East Midlands Electicity.

Brian is also a Director of White Young Green plc where he chairs their Remuneration Committee and is a
member of the Audit and Compliance Committee. He holds the same roles in Novera and is the Group's
Senior Independent Director.

James Grace, Non-executive Director

James is a Director in the Corporate Finance Depariment of lnvestec Investment Banking, a division of the
Investec Bank (UK} Limitad. James began his carser at Price Waterhouse and then worked for James Capel
and Hoare Govelt in corporate finance.  After a subsequent period as a corporate recovery specialist, he
joined Investec Henderson Crosthwaite in 1995. Jamas was a director of UK Land pic from 1993 to 2003 and
is curcently a non executive director of Treatt plc.

James is Chairman of the Audit and Compliance Commiltee and a member ol both the Remuneration
Committee and Nominations Committee.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STATEMENT

COMPLIANCE WITH THE COMBINED CODE

Novera Energy plc is fisted on the Alternative Investment Market ("AIM'} of the London Stock Exchange
("LSE'"). AlM-listed companies are not required to comply with the disclosure requirements of the Combined
Code of Corporate Governance (‘the Combined Coda") issued by the Financial Reporting Council in June
2006. However, the Board supports the principles contained in the Code, complies where appropriate and
cost-effective and is committed to maintaining Corporale Governance according to industry standards.

The following report summarises the current corporale governance processes that are in place.

DIRECTORS

THE BOARD

The Board meets reqularly for scheduled Board Meetings and in addilion undertakes a separate off-site

meeting annually to discuss strategy. The Board also meets as required to deal with urgent business.

The table below lists the number of Board Meetings, Board Committee Meelings, and Directors’ attendance
during the year ended 31 December 2008. )

Meetings of committees
Meetings of Audit &
Director Directors Compliance Hemuneration Nominations
Number of Maetings 16 3 8 1
R. Franklin 16 i * 1
M. Cairns 16 * 8 i
B. Duckworth 16 3 8 1
D. Fitzsimmons 16 * * -
J. Grace 16 3 B 1
R. Quinlan 15 : v :

*  Not a mernber of the relevant committee

The functions reserved for the Board and management are set out in the Corporate Governance Manual. The
Board of Directors are responsible for the direction and oversight of the Group.

The current Directors bring to the Board considerable experience and expertise in their respective fields thus
enhancing the effectiveness of the decision-making process, Details of the Chairman, Chief Executive Officer
and Directors are set out on page 18 of this Annual Report. .

The responsibilities of the Board include:
* approval of goals, strategy and plans for the Group’s diraction and monitoring implamentation;
» approval of the Group's risk managemant and internal conirol framework;
« approval of Group policies such as remuneration, health & safety and enviranment;
* discusslon and approval of management recommendations such as capital expenditure, capital
management, acquisitions and divestitures;
review of performance and resuits;
= review of statulory, regulatory and reporing requirements of the Companies Act and the Stock
Exchange (‘AIM');
* review of Stock Exchange matters;
* review of related party transactions; and .
* appointment and dismissal of the Chief Executive OQfficer, Chief Financial Officer and Company
Secretary, determining their conditions of service and monitoring their perdormance against
established objectives.

The Corporate Governance Manual and its policies are updated and managed by the Company Secretary.
Responsibility tor the management of day-to-day operations and administration of the Group is delagated by
the Board to the Chief Executive Officer.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
The Chairman and Chief Execulive Officer have separale clearly defined responsibilities that are not
exarcised by the same person. Roy Franklin is Chairman and David Fitzsimmons is Chief Executive Officer.

.BOARD BALANCE AND INDEPENDENCE

The Board comprises of four non-executive directors and two executive directors. The Board considers that
all the Non-executive Directors; Roy Franklin, Michael Cairns, Brian Duckworth and James Grace, are
independent. Brian Duckwonh is the Senior Independent Director.

The indspendence criteria of the Combined Code are considered in all currant and future appointments of
non-executive directors. .

The Board's size and composition is subject to the limits imposed by the Company's Articles of Association,
which provides for a minimum of three and a maximum of ten directors.

The Group has detailed and prescribed guidelings on frading shares.

APPOINTMENTS TO THE BOARD

The Nominations Committee leads the process for Board appointments and makes recommendations to the
Board. They evaluate the balance of skills, knowledge and experience of the Board and prepare a description
of the roles and capabilities required for new Non-executive Directors to be appointed to the Board.

The Nominations Committee meeis as necessary, but at least once a year. The current members are the
Non-executive Directors; Brian Duckwarth, James Grace, Michael Cairns and Roy Frankiin. Ths number of
meetings held by the Committee has been oullined on page 19.

INFORMATION AND PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

Prior to each scheduled Board Meeting, all Diractors are presented with the Board Papers which comprise of
a CEO Report and a Financial Report. The CEQ briels the Board on results, key issues and strategy during
the Board Mestings. :

All Direclors have access to the advice and services of the Company Secretary. The Company Secretary
ensures that good information flows amongst the Board and its commiltees and between senior management
and non-execulive directors. The Company Secretary also advises the Board through the Chairman on all
governance maiters.

The Directors, where appropriate, are able to seek independent professional advice at the expense of the
Group and have unrestricted access 10 the records and information of the Group.

All Directors receive an induction on joining the Board and regularly update and refresh their skills and
knowledge of the business.

PERFORMANCE EVALUATION

Key executives have performance expectations in letters of appoiniment and smployment contracts. All
executives and employees undergo a formal performance review by April each year by the Chairman or
allocated line manager. Position descriptions are updated as part of the performance review process.

RE-ELECTION :

All directors are subject to election at the first Annual Genaral Meeting ('AGM') after appointment, and to re-
elaction thereafter at intervals of no more than three years. Biographies of all Directors are provided on page
18, and those Diractors subject to re-election are notified in the Notice of the AGM,

REMUNERATION

REMUNERATION

Disclosure of directers’ remuneration is set out on pages 26 to 29 of the Remuneration Report. The Board
believes that levels of remuneration shall be sufficient to attract, retain and molivate directors of the quality
required to run the Group successiuily. A significant proportion of axecutive directors’ remuneration shall be
structured as 10 link rewards o corporate and individual performance.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee include:

setting the remuneration policy;

ensuring that the remuneration and terms of service of the direclors are appropriate;
raviewing the structure of the Board; and

malerial changes to the rules of the Group pension or employes share scheme;

The Committee meets as necaessary, but at least once a year. The current members are the three Non-
executive Directars, Brian Duckworth (Chairman), Michael Cairns and James Grace. The number of meetings
held by the Committee has been outlined on page 19,

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

FINANCIAL REPORTING
The Board is committed to ensuring that all communications with shareholders present a balanced,
understandable assessment of the Group’s position and prospects.

The responsibilities of the Directors and Auditors are set out in the Directors’ Report and Auditors’ Report on
pages 24 and 30 respectively.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Group's Audit and Compliance Committee (‘'ACC) serves the function of reviewing management
practices in relation to the identification and management of significant risk areas and regulatory compliance.
At least one member has recent and relevant financial experianca,

The Group has in place clearly defined lines of responsibility and limits of delegated authority.
Comprehensive procedures provide for the appraisal, approval, control and review of capital expeanditure.

The Group maintains a comprehensive annual budgeting and management reporting system. A detaited
annual budget is prepared in advance of each year and is supplemenled by revised forecasts during the
course of the year. Actual financial results are reported monthly and compared to budget, revised forecasts
and prior year results,

AUDIT AND COMPLIANCE COMMITTEE
The members of the ACC are Non-exacutive Directors James Grace {Chairman} and Brian Duckworth.

The ACC's primary objectives are to assist the Board in fulfilling its responsibilities in relation to financial
reporting and internal controls, and also maintaining the relationship with the external auditors.

The responsibilities of the ACC include:
« making recommendations to the Board on the appointment of external auditors;
*  reviewing the quality and independence of the external auditors and the rotation of extermal audit
engagement partners; : .
« providing an independent, objective review of the adequacy and the integiity of the financial
information provided by management to shareholders and regulatory authorities; and
+ raviewing the changes to treasury policies.

The exiarnal auditors have a direct line of reporting to the ACC and have clear and open access to the
Committee members. The ACC's palicy is to appoint external auditors who cleary demonstrate quality and
independence. The performance of the external auditors is reviewed annually.

The number of meetings held by the ACC has been oullined on page 19. The formal terms of reference for
the ACC are sat oul in the Corporate Governance Manual,

RELATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Group has a communications strategy to promote effective communication vith all shareholders and
encourage sffective participation. Communicalion initiatives undertaken by the Group include media
announcements and the Group's website. Other than during a closed peried the Chief Executive Officer and
Chief Financial Olficer also maintain regutar dialogue with institutional shareholders throughout the year.

All information disclosed to the Londen Stock Exchange {'LSE') is posted an the Group's website within three
days of being disclosed lo the LSE. Access lo price sensitive information is rigorously controlied but
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procedures have been eslablished to ensure that any such information is immediately released to the market,
should it become inadvertently disciosed,

The Chief Executive Officer has overall responsibility for management of the Group's continuous disclosure
obtigations, as well as communication with analysts, brokers, sharehoiders, the media and the public, so as to
ensure that the announcements are timely, factual, clear and precise and omit no material information.

Board members attend the AGM and are available to answer queslions. Resolutions are proposed on each
substantially separate issue, including in relation to the Report and Accounts and the Directors’ Remuneration
Report.

Notice of the AGM and related papers are sent to all shareholders at least 21 days before the masting.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

The Directors present their report and the audited financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2008.
Novera Energy plc is domiciled and incorporated in the UK.

DIRECTORS
The following persons were Directors of Novera Energy pic during the financial year and up to the date of this
report:

Mr Roy Franklin

Mr Michael Cairns

Mr Brian Duckworth
Mr David Fitzsimmons
Mr James Grace

Mr Rory Quinlan

The qualifications and experience of the Directors are set out on page 18 of this Annual Raport.

COMPANY SECRETARY
Ms Liz Oldroyd

MEETINGS OF DIRECTORS

The numbers of mestings of the Group's Board of Directors, of each Board Committee held during the year
ended 31 December 2008 and of the number attended by each Director, are disclosed in the Corporate
Governance Statement on page 19.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES
During the year the principat continuing activities of the Group, all of which are in the UK, comprised of:
«  the operation of a renewable energy portfolio consisting of landfill gas, wind farms and hydroelectric,
« the operation of a water services business, providing operation and maintenance services o the
wastewater industry;
» ihe development of wind farm sites;
«  the development of the East London Sustainable Energy Facility {ELSEF') project; and
+  construction of a 12-turbine 30MW wind farm at Lissett Airfield in East Riding of Yorkshire.

RESULTS
The consolidated loss for the year ended 31 December 2008 after income tax was £3.544 million {2007:

£1.958 million).

DIVIDENDS
No dividend was declared or paid during the year ended 31 December 2008 {2007: £ nil}.

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS
A review of operations including KPls is set out in the Operaling Review and Financial Review included on

pages 4 lo 6 and 13 to 15,

MATTERS SUBSEQUENT TO THE END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR

Thare has not arisen, in the period between the end of the financial year and the date of this report, any item,
transaction or event of a materiat or unusual nature likely in the opinion of the Directors of the Group to
significantly affect the financial statements.
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LIKELY DEVELOPMENTS AND EXPECTED RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
The Group will continue to pursue new opportunities in the UK,

Save as set out in this report and accounts, further inforrnation on likely developments in the operations of the
Group, and the expected results of those operations, has not been included in this Report as the Directors
believe it would be likely to result in unreasonable prejudice to the Group.

INSURAMCE OF DIRECTORS AND OFFICERS

The Group has in place a global Directors' and Officers' insurance, insuring past, present and future Directors
and Officers of the Group and its subsidiary Companies (as defined in the contract of insurance} against
certain liabilities incurred in that capacity. Disclosure of the nature of the liability covered by this contract of
insurance is prohibited by the contract of insurance. The premium payable tor 2008 was £16,200 (2007.
£24,366).

DIRECTOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES _
The directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Repon, the Directors’ Remuneration Report and the
Group and the parent Company Financial Statements in accordance with applicable law and regulations.

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under that law the
directors have prepared the Group financial statements in accordance with Intemational Financial Reporting
Standards ('\FRSs") as adopied by the European Union and the parent Company Financial Statements in
accordance with applicable law and United Kingdem Accounting Standards {United Kingdom Generally
Accepled Accounting Praclice). The Group and parent Company financial statements are required by law to
give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and the Group and of the profit or loss of the
Company and Group for that period.

In preparing those financial statements, the Directors are required to:

« select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

+ make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

= state that the financial statements comply with IFRSs as adopted by the European Union and IFRSs
issued by international Accounting Standards Board ('[ASB'); and

« prapare the financial statemants on a going cancern basis, unless it is inappropriate to presume that
the Group will continue in business, in which case there should be supporting assumptions or
qualifications as necessary.

The Directors confirm that they have complied with the above requirements in preparing the financial
statements.

The Directors are responsible for keeping proper accounting records that disclose with reasonable accuracy at
any time the financial position of the Company and the Group and to enable them to ensure that the financial
staterents comply with the Companies Act 1985. They are also responsibla for safeguarding the assels of
the Company and the Group and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud
and other irregularities.

The Direclors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the Group's website. Legislation in the
United Kingdom governing the preparation and dissemination of Financial Statements may differ from
legisfation in other jurisdictions.

DISCLOSURE TO AUDITORS

So far as each Director is aware, thers is no relevant audit information of which the Group's auditors are
unaware. Each Director has taken all the steps he ought to have taken in his duly as a diractor in order to
make himself aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the Group's auditors are aware of
that information.
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ENVIRONMENTAL REGULATION

The Group is subject to environmental regulation in relation to its operations. The Group monitors compliance
with environmental regulations and has procedures to be followed should an incident occur which adversely
impacts the environment. No malerial breaches of environmental regulations occurred during the financial
year and up to the date of this report.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS
The Group donated £500 to Cancer Research and £644 to Great Ormond Street Hospital during the year
ended 31 December 2008 (2007: Enil}. No political donations were mada.

This Report has been approved by the Board of Directors.

DAVID FITZSIMMONS RORY QUINLAN
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

London, 20 February 2009
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REMUNERATION REPORT

This Report outlines the remuneration arrangements in place for Directors of Novera Energy pic.

REMUNERATION POLICY

The Group has designed a remuneration framewark ta support both a performance culture and teamn focus by
adhering to agreed business objectives. The framework seeks to:

» attract, retain and motivate the high calibre professional, managerial and technological expertise
necessary 1o realise the Group's business objectives;

« ensure that the remuneration policy is competitive and fairly reflects the appropriate returns for
achieving the Group’s business goals and achieving success in the markets within which the Group
operates; and

» maintain the correct balance and linkage between individual, team and business performance so as to
effectively align the interests of the employee with those of colleagues and shareholders.

The objective of the Group's executive reward framework is to ensure reward for performance is competitive
and appropriate for the results delivered and conforms with market best practice for delivery by salistying
criteria for alignment ko shareholders' interests and alignment to participants’ interasts.

The framework provides a mix of fixed and variable pay, and a blend of short and fong-term incentives.
REMUNERATION COMMITYEE

The Remuneration Committee reviews the compensation strategy and the compensation arrangements for all
key management personnel on an annual basis and makes recommendations to the Board. They have
access to independent external advisors as required.

The members of the Remuneration Committee during the year were the Non-executive Direclors; Brian
Duckworth {Chairman), Michael Cairns and James Grace.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR REMUNERATION

Fees and payments to non-executive directors reflact the demands which are made on, and the
responsibilities of, the direclors. The chairman's fees are determined independently to the fees of non-
executive directors based on comparative roles in the external market.

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR REMUNERATION
The executive pay and reward framewark has four components:
s base pay and benefits;
«  short-term performance incentives (cash bonuses);
« long-term incentives through participation in the Novera Energy Long Term Incentive Plan; and
» gther compensation such as a pension schema.

The combination of these comprises the executive's total compensation.
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BASE PAY AND BENEFITS

Base pay and benefits are struclured as a total employment cost package which may be delivered as a
combination of cash and prescribed non-inancial benefits. These are deiermined by a number of factors
including competence and performance criteria.

Where applicable, executives receive benefits including car allowances,

The Group does not offer a defined benefit pension scheme to executive directors. Instead, it makes
contributions to the approved defined contributions pension scheme of the Group. Pension contributions
range from O per cent to 7 per cent of base salary. The amount of pension condributions made in respect of
each executive director is set out on page 28.

SHORT-TERM PERFORMANCE INCENTIVES ('STPH) ‘
Executive directors, management and stalf have the opportunity to eamn annual bonus payments. These
bonuses are linked to the overall corporate performance and are dependent on mesting both personal and/or
corporate goals. The proportion that is set in relation to individual performance ranges from 0 -100 per cent,
depending on seniority and the scope of the job. The Group expects a high level of achievemsnt when it sets
its base and 'stretch’ bonus targets. The stretch targets require an achievement welt beyond that which was
planned and involves making significant contribution to the Group’s performance. The sanior positions are
maore exposad to corporate goals which include financial performance as a parameter.

LONG-TERM INCENTIVE PLAN ('LTIP")

Long-term incentives are a mechanism to link a significant portion of the executive's compensation to the
attainment of substantial growth in sharsholder value by aftracting and relaining employees who strive for
excellence, and to motivate those employees to achieve above-average financial objectives for the Group.

In July 2006, the Group established an LTIP, which is a scheme, based on a three-year rolling plan. LTIP
awards are conditional grants of shares that will vest and are released upon the Group meeting the raquired
criteria. Such a plan should ensure that key management personnel do not derive compensation benefits
without providing a direct contribution to the long-term superior performance of the Group.

The 2006 and 2007 LTIP awards vest shares 1o the award holders in 2009 and 2010 respectively and are both
dependent on the Group's perormance against a total shareholdar return measure relative to the Financial
Times Stock Exchange (‘FTSE" Small Cap Index for the UK. The 2006 LTIP is also dependent on the
Group's performance against operaling cash flow targets to end of 2008. The 2008 LTIP award vests shares
te award holders in 2011 and is dependent on a target for the Group's share price,
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DETAILS OF COMPENSATION

DIRECTOR COMPENSATION
For the year endad 31 December 2008, datails of all the benefits paid are set out in the table below:

2008
2007
Total
Cash satary/ | Cash bonus Pension Total
Diractor tees
£ £ £ £ £

R. Frankiin 60,000 - 60,000 51,250°
M, Caims 25000 - - 25,000 22,981
B. Duckworth 30,000 - - 30,000 18,077*
D, Fitzsimmons 214,000 89.013 303,013 311,000
J. Grace 30,000 - - 30,000 18,077*
H. Quinlan 150,000 62,830 8,365 221,195 196,207
J. Brown (a) - - 10,417
M. Collopy (B) : - - 8,124
D. Farrands (¢) - - - B,124
D. Scaysbrook (d) - - - 7.500
TOTAL 599,000 151,843 8,365 669,208 651,757

* Part year only

{a) Rasigned as Diractor and Chaimman of Novera Energy Limited in May 2007.

{b) M. Collopy received £9,845 of lass in 2008 as a Director of Novara Energy Limited and Novera Renewable Energy Limited and
£1,091 {or financial accounting and cempany secratariat services in Australia on an ‘as required’ basis at an agreed houdy rate of

£50.

{c) HReslgned as Diractor in Septamber 2007.
(d) Resigned as Director of Novera Energy Limited in May 2007.

No Director has the authority to determing their own remuneration.

SERVICE AGREEMENTS

Compensation and other terms of employment for the Chief Executive Oificer and specified employees are

formalised in service agreements. Each of these agreements provides for the provision of performance-

reiated benefits. Other major provisions of the agreements are set out as follows:

Date of Fixed Lo

Ghsoor | golemmensamental | Tormot | Oompansston | shorviern | Sominton | peyaie o
contract & Foos Period termination

Manths Value

R. Franklin 20-Feb-07 {a} Y N/A 3 {€)
M. Cairns 10-May-07 (a} Y N/A 3 {c}
8. Duckworth 10-May-07 (a) Y NA 3 {c)
D. Fitzsimmons 01-Jan-08 Parmanent Y (b) Y 6 {c)
J. Grace 10-May-07 - (a) Y N/A 3 {c)
A. Quintan 01-Jan-0B Permanent Y Y X6 {d)

‘Includes pension
MNotes;

{a) Non-executive directors are lypically expected o serve two threa-year lerms.

(b) D. Fitzsimmons' fixed compensation includes a car allowance.
(¢} Compensaticn payable on termination is equal to the nolice pericd.

(&) R. Quinlan's compensation on termination is aquivalant to 50 per cent base salary.
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EQUITY INSTRUMENT DISCLOSURES RELATING TO DIRECTORS

SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION: LTIP
LTIP awards are conditional grants of shares that will be released upon the Group meeting the required

criteria.

Shares are awarded under the plan for no consideration and carry no dividend or voting rights. Further
information on the LTIP is set out in nota 21 of the Financial Report.

The following shares awarded as part of the LTIP were held, directly or beneficially, by each director, including
their personally related entities, during the reporting period:

Name

D. Fitzsimmons

R. Quinlan

LTIP Interests at

1 Jan-08 at

targe!

perfor-

mance

2006 500,000

2007 500,000
2008

2006 200,000

2007 200,000
2008

Shares
awarded Interests at Marksl Paroimance Pariod
during the 21 Dec-08 at Price al
year  target‘/actugl **  Award Dala
which may performance {2
vest al targat
parformance
589,483 54.0 01/01/2006 10 31/12/2008
500,000 69.5  01/01/2007 to 31/12/2009
385,000 385,000 82.0  03/06/2008 to 02/06/2011
235,793 54.0  01/01/2006 to 31/12/2008
206,000" 69.5  01/01/2007 to 31/12/2009
183,333 183,333 82.0  03/06/2008 to 02/06/2011

Vesting dates

il target
periormance
reached

30 May 2009
30 May 2010
24 June 2011
30 May 2009
30 May 2010
24 June 2011

*Number of shares which may vest at maximum performance = 157 per cent of shares which may vest af

target performance
=+ Actual vesting as at 31 December 2008

SHAREHROLDINGS

The numbers of shares in the Group held during the reporting period and at the date of this Report by each
Director of Novera Energy plc, including their personally related entities, are set out balow:

Balance at Balance
1 January Changes in | at 31 December
2008 Year 2008

Director
R. Franklin 50,000 25,000 75,000
M. Caims - 20,000 20,000
8. Duckworth 25,000 70,000 95,000
D. Fitzsimmons 583,187 382,000 965,187
J. Grace - 20,000 20,000
f. Quinlan 11,596 70,000 81,595

LOANS TO KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL

Key managerment do not maintain any loans from or to the Group.

-20 .




novera energy
INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF NOVERA ENERGY PLC

We have audited the Group financial statements of Novera Energy ple for the year ended 31 December 2008
which cornprise the Consolidated Income Statement, the Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated
Statement of Recognised Income and Expense, the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement, and the related
notes, These Group financial slatements have been prepared under the accounting policies set out therein.

We have reported separately on the parent company financial statements of Novera Energy plc for the year
ended 31 December 2008.

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors

The directors' responsibilities for prepating the Annual Report and the Group financial statements in
accordance with applicable law and International Financial Reporting Standards {'IFRS') as adoptad by the
European Union are set out in the Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities.

Our responsibility is to audit the Group financial statements in accordance with relevant legal and regulatory
requirements and international Standards on Auditing (UK and lreland). This repon, including the opinion, has
been prepared for and only for the company's members as a body in accordance with Section 235 of the
Companies Act 1985 and for no other purpose. We do not, in giving this opinion, accept or assumae
responsibility for any other purpose or to any other person to wham this report is shown or into whoss hands it
may come save where expressly agreed by our prior consent in writing.

We report {0 you our opinion as to whether the Group financial statements give a true and fair view and
wheather the Group financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with the Companies Act
1985. We also report to you whether in our opinion the information given in the Directors' Report is consistent
with the Group financial statements. The information given in the Directors' Report includes tha! specilic
information presented in the Operating Review and the Financial Review that is cross referred from the
Reaview of Operations section of the Direclors’ Report.

In addition we report to you i, in our opinion, we have not received all the information and explanations we
require for our audit, or if information specified by law regarding director's remuneration and other transactions
is not disclosed.

We read other information contained in the Annual Report and consider whether it is consistent with the
audited Group financial statements. The other information comprises only the Chairman's Report, the
Operating Review, the Financial Review, the Corporate Governance Statement andthe Director's Report.
We consider the implications for our report if we become awars of any apparent misstatements or material
inconsistancies with the Group financial statements. Our responsibilities do not extend to any other
information.

Basis of audit opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) issued by
the Auditing Practices Board. An audit includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the
amounts and disclosures in the Group financial statements. [t also includes an assessment of the significant
estimales and judgments made by the directors in the preparation of the Group financial statements, and of
whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the Group's circumstances, consistently applied and
adequately disclosed.

We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain afl the information and explanations which we considered
necessary in ordes to provide us with sufficient evidence to give reasonable assurance that the Group financial
statemants are free from material misstatement, whether caused by fraud or other irregularity or error. In
forming our opinion we also evaluated the overall adequacy of the presantation of information in the Group
financial statements.
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Opinion
In our opinion;

¢ the Group financial statements give a true and fair view, in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the
European Union, of the state of the Group's affairs as at 31 December 2008 and of its loss and cash flows
for the year then ended,;

« the Group linancial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 1985,
and

« the information given in the Directors’ Report is consistent with the Group financial stalements.

Chartered Accountants and Registered Auditors

Manchester
20 February 2009
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
NOVERA ENERGY PLC
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2008

2008 2007
£'000 £'000
Notes
Revanue 4 35,514 32,148
Cost of sales before amnortisation and depreciation (18,944) {17,239)
Gross profit before depreciation and amortisation 16,570 14,808
Depreciation 5 {6,243) {5.275)
Amortisation 5 {4,178) {4,072)
Total cost of sales (29,265} (26,586)
Gross profit afler depreciation and amortisation 6,149 5,562
QOther income - 25
Pre-construction costs 1K) (2,120) (1,179)
Administration expenses (4,187) {3,505)
Operating (loss)profit . (158) 903
Finance costs 7 (5,536} (5,644)
Finance income ' . 7 631 9485
Shares of net profit of a joint venture - 259
Loss before income tax . 5 (5,063) (3,536)
Taxation 8 1,519 1,578
Loss for the year (3,544} (1,958}
The results above for both 2007 and 2008 relate to continuing operations.
LOSS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO THE EQUITY HOLDERS:
Notes 2008 2007
Pence Pence
Basic 9 (2.7} (1.6)
Diluted 9 (2.7} (1.5)

The above consolidated income statement should be read in canjunction with the accompanying notes on
pages 36 10 58.
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
NOVERA ENERGY PLC
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2008

2008 2007
Notes £'000 E'000
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Intangible assels 10 78,456 82,634
Property, plant & equipment 11 89,796 76,422
Receivables 12 607 700
Deferred tax assels 18 1,034 881
Total nan-current assets 169,893 160,637
Current assets
Inventorias 128 . -
 Trade and other receivables i3 7,786 7,752
Derivative financial instruments 16 - 642
Cash and cash squivalents 14 20,385 10,803
Total current assets 28,299 19,197
LIABILITIES
Current liahilities
Trade and other payables ' 15 (16,044) (10,075)
Derivative financial instruments 18 (9,657) -
Borrowings 17 (6,029} {4,634)
Total current liabilities {31,730) {14,709)
Net current (liabilities)/assetls (3,431) 4,488
Non-current liabilities
Retirement benefit abligation - 25 (183) {156)
Borrowings 17 {84,903) (83,276)
Deferred tax 18 {23,084) {24,464}
Total non-current liabilities . {108,170) (107,896}
Met asseots 58,292 57,229
EQUITY
Ordinary shares 19 717 6,203
Share premium 19 13,476 -
Merger reserve 19 61,979 51,979
Other reserves : 23 (2,404) 7,399
Accumulated losses 22 {21,936) (18,352)
Total equity 58,292 57,229

The above consolidated balance sheet should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes on pages 36 {0
58. :

The financial statements on pages 32 to 58 ware approved by the Board of Directors on 20 February 2009 and
were signed on its behalf by:

i

e
<R e
= CUAAA DR 7
DAVID FITZSIMMONS (\’——ﬁ RORY QUINLAN
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER CHIEF FINANGIAL OFFICER
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- CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF RECOGNISED

INCOME AND EXPENSE
NOVERA ENERGY PLC
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2008

2008 2007
Notes £'000 £'000
Aevaluation on acquisition of subsidiary 23 - 8,394
Hedging reserve movement 23 {10,299) (1,557)
Share of movement in JV reserves 23 - 453
Actuarial losses on defined benelit pension scheme 22 {54) -
Tax on iterns taken directly to equity 22 14 -
Net (expense)fincome recognised directly in equity {10,339) 7,290
Loss for the year (3,544) (1.958)
Total recognised income and expense for the year
attributable to:
Members of Novera Energy plc (13,883) 5,332

The above consolidated statements of recognised income and expense should be read in conjunction with
the accompanying notes on pages 36 to 58.
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
NOVERA ENERGY PLC
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2008

Notes 2008 2007
£'000 £'000

Cash flows from operating activities
Cash generaled from operations 24 10,790 10,933
Interest received 543 849
interest paid - {5,479) {5,920}
Net cash inflow from operating activities 5,854 5,862

Cash flows from investing activities
Acquisition of subsidiaries (net of cash acquired) - (20,377}
Proceeds trom sale of property, plant & equipment 27 448
Purchases for property, plant & equipment {13,900} (11,677)
Proceeds from vending of business 181 181
Refund of purchase consideration . 1,097
Net cash (outflow) from investing activities (13,692) {30,328)

Cash Rows from financing activities
Net proceeds from issue of share capital 14,451 35,882
Proceeds from borrowings 7,674 -
Repayment of borrowings {4,705} {4,306)
Net cash inflow from financing activities 17,420 31,576
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 9,582 7,110
Cash al the beginning of the financial year 10,803 3,693
Cash at end of year 14 20,385 10,803

The above consolidated cash Hlow should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes on pages 36to
58,
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
NOVERA ENERGY PLC
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2008
1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the financial report are set out helow.

These pelicies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated. The financiat report
includes separate financial stataments for Novera Energy plc (the Company’) as an individual entity and the Group
consisting of Novera Energy pic and its subsidiaries {'the Group').

(A) BASIS OF PREPARATION

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical costs convention, modified where necessary by the
revaluation of financial assets and liabilities (including darivative instruments) as discussed in note 1.{P).

COMPLIANCE WITH INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

The consclidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
('fFRSY), as adopted by the Eurcpean Union IFRIC interpretations and the Company's Act 1985 applicable to companies
reporting under IFRS.

BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION

Novera Energy plc was incorporated on 15 March 2007, and on 29 May 2007 under a scheme of arrangement approved
by shareholders and the Australian Supreme Court New South Wales replaced Novera Energy Limited (incorporated in
Australia) as the parent company of the Group. The shareholders and their interests in the businass, immediately before
and after this arrangement, were the same. These financial statements have been presented as it Novera Ensrgy plc had
boen the parent throughout the reported period together with comparative information.

The difference between the nominal share capital ol Novera Energy pic and the contribuled capital of Novera Energy
Limited is shown as merger reserve as permilted by section 131 of the Companies Act 1985. The consolidated tinancial
statements comprise the financial statements of Novera Energy plc and its subsidiary undertakings drawn up o 31
December. The accounting years of the subsidiary undertakings are conterminous with that of the parent company. The
results and cash flows of subsidiary undertakings acquired or sold during the year are included from the eifective date of
acquisition to disposal and accounted for under the acquisition method of accounting. Intra Group sales and profits are
fully eliminated on consolidation.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with 1FRS requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates, It
also requires management to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the Group accounting policies. Any areas
involving a higher degree of judgement or complexily, or areas where assumption and estimates are significant to the
financial statements are dis¢losed by way of note 3.

NEW ACCOUNTING STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS

The following accounting standard has an elfective date for beginning on or alter 1 January 2008, but has been adopled
parly by the Group:

+ IFAS 8 - Operating Segments

The company implemented this inlerpratation early in 2007. The implementation of this new standard, other than making
additional disclosure impacts, did not havs any significant impact on the Group's accounting policies or treatmonils.

The following new accounting standards and interpretations became effsctive for periods beginning on or alter 1 January
2008:

¢ IFRIC 14, 1AS 19 — Defined benelit assets

The limit on a defined benefit asset, minimum funding requiremients and their interaction’, provides guidance on assessing
the timit in IAS 19 on the amount of the surplus that can be recagnised as an asset. || also exptains how the pension asset
or liability may be affected by a statutory or contractual minimum funding requirement. This interpretation does not have
any impact on the group’s financial statements, as the group has a pension deficit and is not subject to any minimum
funding requirements. The interpretation is not expectad to have a material impact on the group.

interpretations eftective in 2008 but not relevant to the Group:
« JFRIC 12 - Service concession arrangements
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The following standards and amendments to existing standards have been published and are mandatory for the group’s
accounting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2009 or later periods, but the group has not early adopted them:

» |AS 1 (Revised) — Presentation of financial statements revised version issued in January 2008, effective for annual
perlods beginning on or after 1 January 2009. This changes the presentation requirements for other comprehensive
income and transactions with shareholders, and requires increased disclosures when there is a restatement of
comparatives. Adopting this standard will not affect the recognition, measurement or disclosure of any transactions or
avents.

« IAS 23 {Revised) — Borrowing costs revised version issuad in March 2607, effective for annual periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2009. This eliminates the option of expensing all borrowing costs when they are ingurred and is not
expected to have a matesial impact an the Group.

« IFRS 2 {Amendment) ‘Share based payments', issued January 2008, effectiva for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2009. This provides a definition of vesting conditions and specifies the accounting treatment for non-
vesting conditions. It is nol expected to matsrially aifect the share-based payment charge recognised in the Group
accounts. :

+ IFAS 3 (Revised) ‘Business combinations', issued January 2008, eifective for annual pericds beginning on or after 1
July 2009. This will significantly change tha recegnition of goodwill, acquisition costs and contingent consideration
relaling to acquisitions. However, it only applies to acquisitions made after it has baen adopted.

The Group will also pertorm a detailed review of the annual improvements peoject published by the International
Accounting Standards Board in May 2008. .

(8) PRINCIPLES OF CONSOLIDATION

(1) SUBSID!IARIES

The consolidated linancial statements incorporate the assets and liabilities of all subsidiaries of Novera Energy plc
{‘Company') as at 31 December 2008 and the results of all subsidiaries for the year then ended. Novera Energy pic and
its subsidiaries together are referred to in this report as the 'Group’.

Subsidiaries are all those entities over which the Group has the power to govern the financial and opaerating policies,
generally accompanying a shareholding of more than one-half of the voting rights. The existence and stfect of potential
voting rights that are currently exercisable or convertible are considered when assessing whether the Group controls
another entity.

Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which control is transterred to the Group. They are de-consolidated
from the date control ceases. Piecemeal acquisitions are accounted for using step acquisition ptincipals and changes to
fair value refating to the previously owned invesiments {including joint ventures} are accounted for as revaluations. Each
year a part of the revaluation reflecting the usage of the underlying assets is transferred 1o the profit and loss raserves.

The purchase method of accounting is used to account for the acquisition of subsidiaries by the Group (refer to note 1.(9).
Intercompany transactions, balances and unreatised gains on transactions betwcen Group companies are eliminated.
Unrealised losses are alsc eliminatad unless the transaction provides evidence of the impairment of the asset transferred,
Accounling policies of subsidiaries have bgen ¢hanged where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted
by the Group.

(1) JOINT VENTURE ENTITIES

The intersst in joint venture enlities is accounted for in the consolidated financial stalements using the equity method.
Under the equity method, the share of the profit or loss of the entity is recognised in the income statement and the share
of movements in reserves is rocognised as a movement in reserves. The cumulative post-acquisition movements are
adjusted against the carrying amount of the investment.

(C) SEGMENT REPORTING

The Group is organised into operating segments which form the basis of intermal teporting for management and tho Board
for strategic decision making, such divisions are seferred to as operating segments. A geographical segment is engaged
in providing products or services within a particular economic environment. The Group only operates within the United
Kingdom.

{D) FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSLATION

() FUNCTIONAL AND PRESENTATION CURRENCY

iters included in the linancial statements of each of the Group's entilies are measured using tha currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates ('the lunctional currency’}. The consclidated financial statements are
presented in GBP which is Novera Energy plc's funclional and presentational currency. The Directors of the Company
have adopted GBP as its presentational currency as they believe it is the most relevant currency which ceflacts the risk
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and retums associated with the operations of the Group as the significant operations of the Group are either UK based or
controlied from the UK,

(i) TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES

Foreign currency transactions are translatad into the funclional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates
of the tfansactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the
translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets and labilities denominated in foreign currencies are recognised
in the income statement, excepl when deferred in equity as gualilying cash flow hedges and qualifying net investment
hedges. '

(E) REVENUE RECOGNITION

Revenue for the Group is measured at the fair value of the consideration receivad or receivable. Amounts disclosed as
ravenue are net of trade allowances and duties and taxes paid. Revenus [s recognised for the major business activiies as
follows:

RENEWABLE ENERGY GENERATION

Revenue generated from Landfill gas, Hydra and Wind operations is recognised where there is a signed unconditional
contract of sale and as eleclricity is generated at the conlracted rate on the date of generation, except where that rate
cannot be determined with reasonable accuracy in which case it is recognised when the rate can be determined with
reasonable certainty.

WATER SERVICES
Ravenue I5 recognised when there is a signed contract lor the provision of operations and services for studge drying
plants owned by third parly utilities once the service has been performed.

(F) INCOME TAX

The income tax expense or revenue for the period is the tax payable on the current period's taxable income, based on the
national income tax for each jurisdiction adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities, aitributable to
temporary difterences between the tax bases of assels and liabilies, and their earrying amounts in the financial
statements, and to the unused tax losses. :

Deferred tax assets and liabilties are recognised far temporary differences at the tax rates expected to apply when the
assets ars recaverad or liabilities are setiled, based on those taxes which are enactad or substantively enacted for each
jurisdiction, The relevant tax rates are applied to the cumulative amounts of deductible and taxable lemporary differences
to measure the daferred tax asset or liability, An exception is made for certain temporary differences arising from the
initial racognition of an asset or liability. No deferred tax asset of liahility is recognised in relation lo these temporary
differences it they arose in a transaction, other than a business combination, that at the time of the transaction did not
affect either accounting profit or taxable profit or loss.

Delerred tax assets are recognised for deductible temporary diflerences and unused tax losses only if it is probable that
futura laxable amounts will be available to ulilise those temporary differences and losses.

Deterrad tax fiabiliies and assets are nol recognised for temporary differences between the carrying amount and tax base
of investments in controlled entities where the parent entily is able to control the timing of the reversal of the tamporary
differances and it is probable that the ditferences will not be reversed in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to oliset current tax assels and
liabilities and when the deferrad tax balances relate to the same taxation authority. Current fax assets and lax liabilities
ars offsel where the entity has a legally enforceable right to offset and intends either to seltle on a net basis, or to realise
the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Current and deferred tax batances attribulable o amounts recognised directly in equity are also recognised directly in
equity.

(G) POWER PURCHASE AGREEMENTS (PPAs)

The Group has entared into PPAs under which, a customer takes all the electricity generated from specified assets for the
conteactual period typically betwoen one and fifteen years and fificen 1o wenly years under NFFQ conlracts. The unit
price paid for electricity is specified in the PPA which is ficed in the shorter term and based on market prices in the longer
term. These arrangements are similar in nature 10 operating leases with no minimum commiltad payments. Revenue from
PPAs and the relevant assels used o generate the electricily are reported in the segment relevan lo tha lype of asset
used to genesate the electdcity. Aevenue is recognised as electricity is generatec at the coniracted rate on lhe date of
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generation, except where that rate cannot be delermined with reasonable accuracy in which case it is recognised when
the rate can be determined with reascnable certainty.

{H) OPERATING LLEASES

Rental costs under other operating leases are charged to the profil and loss account in equal annual amounts over the
periods of the leases.

(1) BUSINESS COMBINATIONS

The acquisition of subsidiaries is accounted for using the purchase method. The cost of the acquisition is measured al the
aggregate of the fair values, at the date of exchange, of assets given, liabilities incurred or assumed, and aquity
instruments issued by the Group in axchange for control ol the acquiree, plus any cosis directly attributable to the
pusiness combination. The acquiree’s identifiable assets and liabilities are recognised at their fair values at the acquisition
date. Transaction costs arising on the issue of equity instrumen!s are recognised directly in equity.

Goodwill arising on acquisition is recognised as an asset and initially measured at cost, being the excess of the cast of the
business combination over the Group's interest in the net fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities recognised. The interast of minorily sharehelders in the acquiree is initially measured at the minority's proportion
of the net fair value of the assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities recognised.

Previously heid identifiable assets, llabilities and contingent fiabilities of the acquired entity are rovalued to their fair value
at the date of acquisition, being the date at which the Group achieves control of the acquires. The movement in fair value
is taken to the assel revaiuation surplus.

{J) IAPAIRMENT OF NON-FINANCIAL ASSETS

Goodwill and intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to amertisation and are tested annually for
impairment; or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate that they might be impaired. Other assets
are raviswed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be
recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the assel's carrying value exceeds its recoverable
amount. The racoverabls amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use, For the
purposas of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the towest lsvels for which there are separately identitiable cash
flows which are largely independent of the cash flows from olher assals or groups of assets (cash gencrating units). Non-
financtal assels other than goodwill that suffered impairment are reviewed for possible reversal ol the impairment at sach
reporting date,

(K} PROPERTY, PLANT & EQUIPMENT

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-ine method to altocate their cost, net of their residual values, over their
estimated useful lives, as follows:

Piant & Equipment 8o 20 years

Wind Assels 20 yoars

Hydro Assets 40 years

Furniture & Fittings Jto S years

Leasehold Improvemeants Shorer of useful expected life or remaining fife of lease

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each balance sheet date. An
asset's carrying amount is written down immediately to ils recoverable amount if he asset's carrying amount is greater
than its estimated recoverable amount {note 1.{J}}. .

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with the carrying amount. These are included in the
income slatement.

Project costs related to assets in pre-construction and construction are capitalised where, in the opinion of the Directors,
the related project is likely to be successiully developed and the economic benefits ansing from future operations wili at
ieast equal the amount of capitalised expenditure incurred o date. Other projects costs ars written off as incurred and are
included wilhin pre-construction costs. Costs capitalised 1o assels in pre-construction retate to costs incurred to the
income statement in bringing a project lo the consented stage. Costs associated with reaching the consented stage
include planning application costs and envirenmental impact sludies. Construction costs relate to costs incurred in
bringing the asset from the consentad stage to completed construction. Depreciation commences when the asset is
substantially complete and ready lor its intended use. Fulf provision is made tor any impaimant in the value of the assetl.
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knterast costs incurred on assets consltructed by the business are capitalised. The amount of interest cost capitalised is
limited to the interest cost incurred during the construction period. During the accounting period, the amount of interast to
be capitalised for each qualifying asset shall be based on the intsrest rate as detarmined by the facility agreement as
confirmed by quarerly statements.

(L) INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Intangible assets acquired on a business combination are capitalised separately Irom goodwill if the fair value can be -
measured reliably on initial recognition. Intangible assets so acquired are carried at cost less accumulated amorisation
and any impairment losses. Amortisation is provided on a straight-line basis to allocate the cost of the asset over its
astimated useful life. The Diractors expect the ussful fife of the Group’s intangibie assets to be up 1o a maximum of 40
years,

Intangible assets are allocaled to cash-generating units for the purpose of impairment lesting. Each of those cash-
generating units represents the Group's investment in each locatian of operation by each primary reporting segment.

{M} INVENTORIES
" Invenlories are stated at the lower of cost or net realisable value . Inventories consist of engineering spares. The cost ol

raw materials and consumables is average cost. The cost of finished goods and work in progress comprises malerals,
excise duly where appropriate, taliour and attributable production overheads. (N) CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Faor cash flow stalement presentation purposes, cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand, deposits held at call
with financial institutions, other short-term, highly iquid investments with original maturities of three months or less thal are
readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value, and bank
overdrafts. Bank overdrafts are shown with borrowings in current labilities on the balance sheel.

(O) TRADE RECEIVABLES

Trade receivables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost, less provision for
doubtful debts. Trade debtors are generally receivable within 30 days.

Collectability of trade receivables is reviewed on an ongoing basis. Debts which are known to be uncollectible are written
off. A provision for doubtiul receivables is established when there is objective evidence that the Group will not be able to
collect all amounts due according to the original lerms of recsivables. The amount of the provision is the difference
between the asset’s carrying value amount and the present valug of estimated luture cash flows, discountsd at the
effective interast rale. The amount of the provision is recognised in the incoma statement. Cash flows relating to short
term receivables are not discounted if the sifect of discounting is immaterial.

{P) FINANCIAL LIABILITIES AND ASSETS INCLUDING INVESTMENTS

The Group classilies its investments in the follawing categories: financial asssls at fair value through profit or {oss, loans
and receivables, held-to-maturily investmenis, and available-for-sale financial assets. The classification depends on the
purpose lor which the investments were acquired. Management determines the classification of its investments at initial
recognition and re-evaluales this designation at each reporting date.

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assels with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an
aclive market. They arise when the Group provides money, goods or services directly to a debtor with no intention of
selling the receivable. They are included in currant assets, except for those with maturities greater than 12 months alter
the batance dale which are classified as non-current assets. Loans and receivables are Included in receivables in the
balance sheet.

The Group did not hold any financial assets at fair vatue through profit or loss, held-to-maturity investments or available-
for-sale financial assets during the period.

Financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair valug, nel of transaction costs incurrad. Fixed rate berrowings are
subsequently stated al amorlised cost, any difference between the proceeds {net of transaction costs) and the redomption
value is recognised in the income statement over the period of the borrowings using the elfective interesl method. Floating
rate borrowings are subsequently stated at the contraclual outstanding repayable principal amount at cach balance sheet
date.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilties unless the Group has an unconditional right {0 defer settlement cf the liability
for at least 12 months after the balance sheet date. Fees paid on the esiablishment of ban facilities, which are notl
incremental costs relating to the actual diaw-down of the facility, are recognised as a deduction from debt and amodtised
on a straight-line basis ovar the term ol the lacility.
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The fair value of linancial assets and linancial liabiliies must be estimated for recognition and measurement or for
disclosure purposes. The nominal value less estimated credil adjustments of trade receivables and payables are
assumed lo approximate their fair valuss. The fair value of the Group's interest rate swaps and other non-current financiat
liabilities is eslimated by discounting the future contractual cash flows at the current market interest rate that is available to
Ihe Group for similar financial instruments. The fair value of the Group's current other financial liabilities are assumed io

approximate to their book values.
{Q) FINANCE COSTS

Finance costs include interest on bank overdrafls and short-term borrowings, amortisalion of discounts or premiums to
borrowings, amotisation of ancillary costs incurred in connection with the arrangement of and commitment to, finance
tacilities and finance lease charges.

(R) ACCOUNTING FOR DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND HEDGING ACTIVITIES

The Group only enters into derivative financial instruments in order to minimise the Groug's underlying exposures to
intaresi rate risk. Darivatives are initially recognised and measured al fair value on the date a derivative contract is
entered into and subsequently measured at fair value,

in order to qualify for hedge accounting, the Group is required to document in advance the setationship between the item
belng hedged and the hedging instrument. The Group is also required to documant the relationship between the hedged
item and the hedging instrument and demonstrate that the hedge will be highly effective on an on-going basis. This
effectiveness lesting is re-pertormed at each period end to ensure that the hedge remains highly effective. The Group has
only entered into cash flow hedges during the period.

Gains or losses on cash flow hedges that are regarded as highly eifective are recognised in equity. Where tha forecast
transaction results In a financial asset or Yiability gains or losses previously recognised in equity are reclassified to profit or
loss in the same period as the assel of liability affects profit or loss. Where the forecasted transaction or commitment
results in a non-financial asset or a liability, then any gains or losses previously deferred in equily are included in the
carrying amount of the related asset or liability. 1f the torecasted transaction or commitment results in future income or
expenditure, gains of losses deferred in squity are transierred to the income statement in the same period as the
underlying income or expenditure. The ineffective portions of the gain or loss on the hedging instrument are not
recognised in equity; rather thoy are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

For the portion of haedges deemed ineftective or transactions that do not qualify for hedge accounting under IAS 39, any
change in assets or liabilities is recognised immediately in the Income Statement. Where a hedge no longer maets the
sifectiveness criteria, any gains or losses deferred in equity are only transferred 1o tha Income Statement when the
commitled or forecasted transaction is recognised in the Incoma Statement. Howaver, where an entity applied cash flow
hedge accounting for a lorecasted or committed transaction lhal is no fonger expected to occur, then the curmulalive gain
or loss that has been recorded in equity is transtarced 10 the Income Statement. When a hadging instrument expires or is
sold, any cumutative gain or loss existing in equity at that time remains in equity and is recognised when the forecast
transaction is ultimately recognised in the Income statement.

(5) RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT PROJECTS
Research and development expenditura is recognised as an expense when incurred, except as discussed in note 1.{K).
(T) TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided lo the Group prior to the end of the financiel year
which are unpaid. These amounts are unsecured and are usually paid within 30 days of recognition.

{U) EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

(1) WAGES AND SALARIES, ANNUAL LEAVE AND SICK LEAVE

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-manetary benelils, annual [eave and aceumulating sick leave expected to
be settled within 12 manths of the reporting date are recognised in other payables in respect of employees’ services up 10
the reporting date and are measured at the amounis expected to bs paid when the liabilities are seftled.

{I) SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS
Share-based compensation benefits are provided to employees via the Novera Energy plc 2008, 2007 and 2008 Long
Term Incontive Plan ('LTIP).
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The fair value at grant date is independently determined using a Monte-Carlo pricing model for the 2006, 2007 and 2008
LTIP. The model takes into account the exercise price (where applicable), the term of the option, the vesting and
performance criteria, the impact of dilution, the non-tradeable nature of the aption, the share price at grant date and
expecied price volatility of the underlying share, the expected dividend yield and the risk-free interest rate for the term of
the option. .

The fair value ol the options granted excludes the impact of any non-market, vesting conditions (for example, profitability
and sales growth targets). Non.market, vesting conditions are inciuded in the assumptions about the number of options
that are expected to become exercisable. Al each balance sheet date, the entity revises its estimate of the number of
oplions that are expected to become exercisable. The employee benefil expense recognised each period takes inte
accounl the maost recent estimate,

Under the exercise of options, the batance of the share-based paymeants reserve relating to those options is transferred to
share capital.

The market valus of shares issued to employees for no cash consideration under the employee share scheme is
recognised as an employee bensfits expense with a corresponding increase in equity when the employaes become
entitled to the shares.

{li PROFIT-SHARING AND BONUS PLANS

The Group recognises a liability and an expense for bonuses and profit-sharing based on a formula that takes into
consideration the profit attributable to the Company's sharehclders after certain adjustments. The Group tecognises a
provision where contractually obliged or where there is a past practice that has created a constructive obligation.

{V RETIREMENT BENEFITS

The Group participates on bebhalf of certain employees in the Industry Wide Coal Staff Superannuation pension schems, a
final salary defined benefit pension scheme providing benefits based on final pensionable salary. The defined benefit
scheme definegs the amount of pension benslit that an employee will receive on retirement, dependent on ong or more
factors including age, years of service and salary. This scheme has now been closed to new members. The lasl lriennial
valuation was carried out during 2008 by the Government Actuary's Depariment and has been updated to 31 December
2008 by a qualitied independent actuary to take account of 1AS 19 requirements. Under IAS 19, the defined benefit
surplus or deficit is included on the Group's Balance Shest. Liabilities are calculated based on the current yields on high
quality corporate bonds and on market conditions. Surpluses are only included to the exient thal they are recoverable
through reduced contributions in the future or through refunds from the scheme.

The current service cost and any pasl service costs are included in the Income Slatement within stalf costs. The expected
relurn on the scheme assets, net of the impact of the unwinding of the discount on scheme liabitities, is includad within
staff costs.

Actuarial gains and lossss arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumplions are charged or
credited, each period to reserves.

Past-service costs are recognised immediately in income, unless the changes to the pension plan are conditioned on the
amployees remaining in service for a specified period of time (the vesting period). in this case, the past-service costs are
amortised on a straight-line basls over the vesting period.

The Group alse provides pension arrangements for employaes and certain Dirsctors who are members of the Friends

Provident Stakeholder defined contribution scheme. Conlributions for this scheme is charged to the Income Statement in
the period in which they are payable.

{W) DIVIDENDS

Dividend distribution to the Company's shareholders is recognised as a fiability in the Group's financial statements in the
period in which the dividends are approved by the Company's sharehoiders.

(X) EARNINGS PER SHARE

{h BASIC EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit altributable to equity holders of the Company, excluding any
costs of servicing equity other than ordinary shares, by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding
during the year, adjusled for bonus elements in ordinary shares issued during the year.

{1} DILUTED EARNINGS PER SHARE
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Diluted samings per share is calculated by adjusting the weighted average number of crdinary shares outstanding to
assume the conversion of all dilutive potenlial ordinary shares. The Group has only LTIPs which may lead to a
contingently dilutive potential of ordinary shares. No adjustment has been made to dilution for LTIPS due to its contingent
naturg.

2, FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group's aclivitiss expose it to a variety of financial risks such as market, economic, credit and liquidily {including cash
flow and interest rate risk).

The Group's overall risk management program focuses on the predictability of revenue and control over operating costs to
maximise the financial performance of the Group. The unpredictability of financial markets is minimised by the use of
financial instruments to hedge certain risk exposures. Our policies require us to prepare a risk management plan that is
raviewed by the Board.

MARKET RISK

The majority of electricity generated is supplied under contractual arrangements which are either fixed price or fully or
partially, RPI index-inflated. The remainder of electricity generated is sold at market-related prices which are subject to
market fluctuations.

ECONOMIC RISK

The renewatle energy businesses are supported through the UK Government renewable energy largats legislation. The
Group actively promotes initialives with Govemment in relation to developing sustainable energy projects. Successiul
involvement in such initiatives aids in presenting to Government bodies tha concept that renewable energy can be a viable
alternative to other methods of generaling energy and aids in maintaining their future support. Future amendmaent of such
legistation may either benefit or datract from the Group’s profitability.

CREDIT RISK

All deposits are held with an AA-rated financial institution. The Group has no significant concentrations of customer credit
risk and no cradit limits were exceeded during the financial year, The Groups’ customer based comprises mainly of large
electricity retailers, the UK Government's NFPA and water utility companies.

LIQUIDITY: INCLUDING CASH FLOW AND INTEREST RISK

The debt facility held by the Group is on a non-recourse project finance basis. The Group manages its cash flow interest-
rate risk by using floating to fixed interest rates swaps. Such interest rate swaps have the economic benefit of converting
99 per cent of the Group’s borrowings from floating rates to fixed rates. Under the interest-rate swaps, the Group agrees
with other parties to exchange, at specified intervals (bi-annually), the difference between fixed contract rates and floating
rate interest amounts calculated by reference 1o the agreed notional principal amounts.

3. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are confinually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors, inciuding
expectations of future avents that ara believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group has made critical accounting estimates and judgements in relation to the cagilafisation of pre-construction
costs and in the fair vatue of the intangible asset acquired.

Pre-conshruction cosls, associated with reaching the consented planning stage, are capitalised where, in the opinion of the
Direclors, the related project is likely to be successfully developed and the economic benefits arising from future
oparations will at least equal the amount of capitalised expenditure incurred to dale.

On acquisition of NMRE fair value adjustments have been identified relating to Energy Usage Rights, within the intangible
assets acquired. The fair value has been derived using a discounted cash flow method over the expected useful life of the
assets. To comply with IFRS 3 the valuation has been adjusted for tax. The fair value adjustment has been recognised in
a revaluation reserve.

The Group is no! exposed to any other matenial adjustments lor accounting estimates, judgements or assumptions excepl
through whether its intangible assets have sulfered any impairment, in accordance with the accounting policy stated in
note 1.{J}. The recoverable amounts of cash generating units have been determined on a value in use calculation,

4, SEGMENT INFORMATION
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Segment information is prepared in conformity with the accounting policies of the entity as disclosed in note 1 and IFRS
accounting standards {FRS 8 Operating Segments.

Segment revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities are those directly altributable to a segment and the relevant portion
that can be aflocated to the segment on a reasonable basis. Segment liabilities consist primarily of trade and other
creditors, employee henefits and deferred revenue.

(A) DESCRIPTION OF SEGMENTS

OPERATING SEGMENTS

The Group is organised into the following segments all of which operale in the UK and form the basis of reporting for
management and the Board:

Landfill Gas
The Landfill gas segmenl operates and maintains electricity generators, fuelied by the methane gas exiracted from landlill
siles across the UK, operating at fory six sites with a capacity of 87MW.

Hydro
The Hydroelectric segment operates ten hydroslectric generators at sites across the UK, witha capacity of 16MW.

Wind
The Wind segment containg one operationat 17-turbine wind farm in Wales with a capacity of 16MW, and one 12- turbine
site (30MW) under censtruclion in North Yorkshire,

Industrial and Water Services

This sagment includes the Water Sarvices business, which manages the thermal processing of sewage sludge for several
UK water utililies, on a contract basis. Industrial division operates one diesel-powered generation ‘stand-by’ site.

(8) PRIMARY REPORTING FORMAT - OPERATING SEGMENTS

Landfili gas Hydro Wind Industrial & Consolidated
Waier Services

2008 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Sales to extarnal customers 27,2214 3,358 2,481 2,454 35,614
Operating expenses (13,825) {1,705} (1,260) (2,154} (18,944}
Adjusted EBITDA 13,396 1,653 1,224 ] 300 16,570
Depreciation and amoddisation expense (8,124} (1,450) (847) - {10,421}
Segment assets 121,715 27,724 48 439 314 198,192
Segment liabilities (102,632) {21,350} {15,838) (80} (139,900}
Fixed asset additions 3,201 - 16,817 - 20,018

A reconciliation of adjusted EBITDA to loss before tax is provided as follows:

2008

£'000

Adjusted EBITDA 16,570
Central administration costs (4,187)
Pre-construction costs (2.120)
Depraciation and amartisation costs {10,421)
Net interest payable (4.905)
Loss before tax ) {5,063)

Novera's main customers are: the UK Government's NFPA (revenue £16.3 million); and energy relailers EON
{revanue £9.6 millicn); Centrica {revenue £6.4 mifiion) and N Power. Through our Water Services, Novera
delivers oparations and maintenance services for Kelda Water Services and siudge drying and dewatering
facilities in Cardilf, Newpart and Port Talbot, as well as to Seafigki Sewage Treatmenl Works for Veolia Water.
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SN

2007

Salgs to external customers

Qperating expenses

Adjusled EBITOA

Depreciation and amortisation expense
Share of net profit of joint venture entity

Segment assets
Segment fiabilities

Fixed asset additions

A reconciliation of adjusted EBITDA to loss bafore tax is provided as follows:

Adjusted EBITDA

Other income

Central administration costs
Pre-construction costs

Depreciation and amortisation costs
Net interest (payable)

Share of net profit of joint ventures
Loss before tax

5. LOSS BEFORE INCOME TAX

Loss before income lax is stated after charging
(crediting) the following specific expenses;
Employee benafits expense
Restructuring ¢osts
Corporate activity
Amaortisation
Depreciation
Loss on disposal of fixed assels
Other operaling lease rentals payable:
Plant and machinery
Property
Net fareign exchange losses/ (gains} recognised

Landfili gas
£000

25,403
(14,238)
11,165
(7,267}
259

119,125
94,175

2,643

Hydro
£'000

2,758
{533)
2,225
(1,205)

31,389
20,741

55

2007
£'000
14,909
25
(3,505)
{3,179)
(9,347)
(4,698)
259

(3.536)

Notes

10
11

2008
£'o00

6,951

526
4,178
6,152

91

212
168
32

-Wind

£000

1,57¢
(387}
1,212
(873)

29,017

7,607

9,527

2007
£'900

5,788
652

4,072
5,259
16

221
180

&)

{ndustrnal &
Water Services

£'000

2,408
{2,101
307
2

303
82

Consolidated
£000

32,148
(17.239)
14,909
(9.347)
259

179,834
122,605

12,225

During the year the Group (including its overseas subsidiaries) obtained the following services from the Company's

auditor and its associates.

Slatutory audit services
Tax compliance services
Other

2008 2007
£'000 £'000
117 112
29 30

7 12
153 154

It is the Groups' poficy to employ PricewatarhouseCoopers LLP {'PwC’} on assignments, on compelitive basis,
additional to their statutory audit cuties where PwC expertise and experience with the Group are important.
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Pwp is awar@ed ass_ignments on a competitive basis. It is the Group policy {o seek compstitive tenders for all
tmajor consulting projects. The ACC of the Groups' Board has determined that PwC is and acls independently of
the Group in its role as statutory auditors.

6. EMPLOYEE INFORMATION .
2008 2007

. £'000 £'000
The average monthly number of persons (including
executive directors} employsd by the Group during
tha year was:
Production 115 116
Adminisiration 47 33
Directors 2 2
164 151
Stalf costs (for the above persons):
Wages and salaries 6,002 5,023
Social security costs 658 538
Penslon costs (note 25) 293 227
6,953 5,788

In 2008 £224,000 (2007: £101,000) of salary costs have been capitalised within construction and pre-
construction projects.

7. NET FINANCE COS5TS

2008 2007
£'000 £'000

Interest payable and similar charges
Interest payable and similar charges {5,464) (5.548)
Amaortisation of issue costs of bank borrowings {72) (96)
{5,536) {5.644)
Interest receivable 631 946
Net finance costs (4,905) {4,698}
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8. INCOME TAX EXPENSE

2008 2007
£'000 £'000

ANALYSIS OF CREDIT IN THE PERIOD
Current lax . .
Deferred tax {1,519} {1.578)
Totaf current tax {1,519} (1,578)
Deterred tax {nota 18} :
Origination and reversal of timing differences {1,399) (1,710} ‘
Adjustments in respect of prior years {120) 132 i
Total Deferred Tax (1,519) {1.578) |
Income Tax credit {1,519) (1,578)
TAX RECONCILIATION

The difference between the income lax expense shown above and the amount calculated by applying the
standard rate of UK Corporation Tax is as follows:

2008 2007
£'000 £'000
Loss on ordinary activitigs belore tax {5,063) (3,536}
Loss on ordinary activilies multiplied by rate of
corporation tax in the UK of (28.5 per cent) {2007; 30
per cant) {1,443} {1,061}
Eftects of:
Adjustments to tax in respect of prior period {120) 132
Recognition of previously unrecognised 108583 . (976)
Eifect of change of corporata tax rate of deferred tax - 141
balances
Effect of tax on joint venture - 78
Expenses not deductible for tax purposss 44 108 ‘
(1,519) {1,578) !
{1,519) {1,578)

Delarrad tax has nol been recognised on tax tasses Incurred in Austraia which may only be recoverable against
Austratian sourced incame should there be sulficient taxable profits arising from appropriate trades 2008: £1 3
milion ( 2007; £1.3 million).

9. EARNINGS PER SHARE

As explained in note 1.{X) basic earmings per share have been calculated by dividing the eamings attributable 10
ordinary shareholders by the weighted average numbar of ordinary shares in issue during the period.

Earnings per share attributable to the equity holders:

2008 2007
Loss Weighted Loss per Loss Weighted Loss per
average number share average number share
of shares ol shares
£'000 000 Pence £000 ‘000 Pence
Basic loss per share {3.544) 132,575 {2.7) | {1,958} 119,822 {1.6)
Diluted loss per share (3.5384) 132,576 {2.7) {1,958) 119,822 {1.8)

The impact of the LTIP has nol been shown as il is anti-dilutive. i
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10. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Cost
At 1 January 2008
At 31 December 2008

Accumulated Amortisation
At 1 January 2008

Charge for the year

At 31 December 2008

Net Book Value at 31 December 2007
Net Book Value at 31 December 2008

Cost

At 1 January 2007
Acquisition of Subsidiaries
Goodwill on acquisition

At 31 December 2007

Amortisation

At 1 January 2007
Charge for the year

At 31 December 2007

Net Book Value at 31 December 2006
Net Bool Value at 31 December 2007

Energy Usage Rights Goodwill Total
Landfili Gas Hydro Wind
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
58,377 15,468 9,407 3,434 86,706
58,377 15,488 9,407 3,434 86,706
(3,233) (379) (460) {4,072)
(3,317) (389) {472) - {4.178)
(8,650} (768) (932) {8,250)
55,144 15,109 8,947 3,434 82,634
51,827 14,720 8,475 3,434 78,456
Energy Usage Rights Goodwill Total
Landfill Gas Hydro Wind
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
58,377 15,488 9,407 - 83,272
- - - 3.434 3,434
58,377 15,488 9,407 3,434 86,708
(3,233) (379} (480) - {4,072}
{3,233) (379) (460) {4,072
55,144 15,109 8,947 3,434 82,634

The inlangible assets associated with energy usage rights have been determined from the different fuel
sources of generation on a site by sile basis. The gas field rights and wind rights are being amortised on a

straight line basis over up to 20 years, with hydro rights ov

over which the rights exist.

er 40 years. These periods are the average lifetime

The fair value of the intangible has been derived using a discounted cash flow method over the expacted useful

life of the assets.
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11, PROPERTY, PLANT & EQUIPMENT

Fixtures Plant Wind Assets Pre-
and and farm under construction
Fittings  machinery assets construction Assels Total
Cost £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
At 1 January 2008 347 58,007 12,345 9,243 1,789 81,734
Additions 240 185 - 17,070 2,523 20,018
Transfers - 2,776 {2,776) - -
Disposals (2) {596) {11) - (609}
Impairment - - . - (361) (361)
At 31 December 2008 585 60,372 12,345 23,526 3,951 100,779
Accumulated Depreciation
At 1 January 2008 106 4,590 613 - 5,309
Charge for the year 155 5,345 652 - 6,152
Dispesals - {478) - - (478)
At 31 December 2008 261 9457 1,265 10,983
Net Book Value at 3t December 2007 241 53,417 11,732 9,243 1,789 76,422
Net Book Value at 31 December 2008 324 50,915 11,080 23,526 3,951 89,796
Fixtures Plant Wind Assets Pre-
and and farm under construction
Fittings machinery assets construction Assets Total
Cost £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Al 1 January 2007 70 56 - - . 126
Acquisition of subsidiaries 40 55,941 12,345 1,625 - 69,951
Additions 237 97 - 10,102 1,789 12,225
Transfers - 2,484 {2,484) . .
Disposals - (571) - - - {571)
At 31 December 2007 347 58,007 12,345 9,243 1,789 81,731
Accumutated Depreclation
At 1 January 2007 35 15. - - 50
Charge for the year 71 4,575 613 - 5,259
Disposals - - - - .
At 31 December 2007 106 4 590 613 - 5,309
Net Book Value at 31 December 2006 35 41 - - - 76
241 53,417 11,732 9,243 1,789 76,422

Net Book Value at 31 December 2007

- 40 -
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12 NON-CURRENT ASSETS - RECEIVABLES

2009 2007 |
£'000 £'000 |
Long-term receivable 607 700 !

Long-term receivabte relates to the deferred consideration on the sale of the Ampley Facifity in 2004.

13. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

2008 2007
£'000 £'000
Trade receivables and accrued income 6,874 6,784
Other debtors 530 514
Prepayments 382 454
7,786 7,752

Included in other debtors above is £306,000 (2007 £336,000) due from a related party {refer to note 27},

CURRBENCY AND DOUBTFUL DEBT ALLOWANCE
All of the Group's trade and other receivables are denominated in sterling. At 31 December all debts were
considered recoverable and therefore there is no allowance for doubtful debis (2007: £nil)

AGED ANALYSIS OF TRADE RECEIVABLES

Trade receivables that are past due but not impaired relate to a number of independent customers for wham
there is no recent history of default and are aged as follows: '

2008 2007
£'000 £'000
Up to 3 months B 58
3 to 6 months 78 22
] 84 80
14, CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

2008 2007

£'000 £'000

Cash at bark and in hand - 350 356
Short-term bank deposits 13,887 3,954
Restricled cash 5,148 6,493
20,385 10,803

The Group has restricted cash for the existing operations facility loan of £5.2 million and £0.6 million for the
Lissett tacility. The restricted cash relates to the principat and interest paymenis payable on 3¢ June 2009,
Thers is also £0.3 million of restricted cash held within a Lissett bank account.

The elfectiva interest rate on short-term deposits was 4.08 per cent (2007: 4.75 per cent).
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15, TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES - CURRENT

2008 2007

£'000 £'000

Trade payables 3,264 2,970
Other tax and sacial securily payable 316 267
Other creditors - 676
Accruals 12,464 6,162

16,044 10,075

16. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

FAIR VALUES OF DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

2008 2007

(Liabitity} Assets

£'000 £1000

tnterest rale swaps ~ maturing in < 12 months (9,657) 642
Interesi rate swaps ~ maturing in > 12 months - -
Total {9,657) 842

INTEREST RATE SWAPS

The Group utillses derivative financial instruments in the normal course of business in order to hedgs its
exposura 1o fluctuations in interest rates.

Bank loans of tha Group currently bear an average variable interest rate of LIBOR plus margin. it is policy 10
protect at least 90 per cent of the loans from exposure to increasing interest rates. Accordingly, the Group
has entered into interest rate swap contracts under which it is obliged to receive interast al variable rates and
pay interest at fixed rates.

Al 31 December 2008, swaps in place cover approximately 99 per cent of the loan principle outstanding and
are timed lo expire as gach loan repayment falis dus. The fixed interest rates varied between 4.9 per cent and
5.3 per cent and the variable rates are based on LIBOR.

The contracts require settlement of net intcrest receivable or payable every six months. The seltlement dates
coincida with the dates on which interast is payable on the underiying debf. The contracts are settied on a net
Dasis.

The gain or loss from re-measuting the hedge instruments at fair value is deferred in equity in he hedging
reserve, to the axient that ths hedge is effective, and reclassified into profit and loss when the hadged interest
expense is recognised. The ineffective portion is recognised in the Income Statement immeadiately.

The notional principal amount of the outstanding interest rate swap contracts at 31 December 2008 was
£104,141,829 {2007: £88.990,427).
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17. BORROWINGS

2007 :
£'000

(4,634)

{4.634)

2007
2000

(83,276)

2008
£'000
Current
Bank lpans and overdrafts due within one year or on
demand (6,029)
{6,829)
2008
£'060
Non-current
Bank loans {84,903)
{84,903)

(83,276)

The syndicated loan facility of £83.2 million {2007: £87.9 million} is secured by a floating rate charge over the
assets of the Novera Energy (Holdings 2) Limited Group, a substdiary of the Group, which comprises of
substantially all the tangible and intangible assets of the 2007 acquired NRE Group.

The Lisselt loan facility of £7. 1 million (2007: £nil) is secured by a floaling rate charge over the assets of the
Novera Energy plc Group. £0.5 million {2007: £nil} bas been drawn down at the year end within the one

month VAT facility.

Bank loans are staled net ol unamontised issue costs of £1,009,698 {2007: £1,081,000). These costs are
aflocated {o the profit and loss account over the 20 yaar term of the lita of the loan a! a constant rate on the

carrying amount.

The sffective interest rate of the above borrowings, as at the Balance Sheet date, was 6.3 per cent.

Fair value of non-current borrowings 2008 2007
Book value Fair value Book. value Fair value
£'000 E'000 £'000 £'000
Long-term borrowings {84,903) (77,340) {83,276) (82,557)

The fair value of other financial assets and financial liabilities equals their carrying value,

MATURITY OF FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

The maturity profile of the carrying amount of the Group's non-current liabilities, at 31 December 2008 was as

follows:

Maturity of financial liabilities

The matuiity profile of the carrying amount of the Group’s non-currant liabilities, at 31 December 2008 was as follows:

2008 2007

Debt Ocbt

£'000 £'600

in more than one year but not more than two years {4,555) {5.241)

In more than two years bul not more than five years {21,391) (19,492}
In more than five years (58,857) (58,543}
(84,903) (83,276) _
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UNDRAWN FACILITIES

The Group has an undrawn revolving credit facility within the syndicated loan laciliies of £5.0 million. This

expires in December 2009, The Group also has an undrawn facility of £24.4 million ring fenced for the

construction of Lissstt,

18, DEFERRED TAX

Dofarred tax is calcutated in full on temporary differences under the liability method using a tax rate of 28.5 per cent (2007:

30.0 per cent).

At 1 January 2008
Acquisition

Profit and toss credit
Charged directly to equity
At 31 December 2008

Deferred tax liabilities

At 1 January 2008

Credited to protit and loss account
Al 3% December 2008

Deferred tax assels

At 1t January 2008

Credited to profit and loss account
Cradited directly to equity

At 31 December 2008

Net deferred tax Hability as at 31 December 2008

Net deferred tax liability as at 31 December 2007

Defarred tax has not been recognised on tax losses incurred in Australia which may only be recaverable against
Australian sourced income should there be sufficient taxable profits ansing from appropriate trades, {2008: £1.3

millian, 2007: £1.3 mitlion).

2008
£000
(23,583)

1,519
14
(22,050}

Accalerated
tax
depreciation
£000
(2,229)

201

(2,028}

Share-based
payments

£'000
86

139
225
(1,803}

(2,143)

2007
£'000

(25,161)
1,678

(23,583;

Energy Usage
Rights

£'000
{22,235)
1,179
{21,056)
Tax losses

E'000
795

795
(20,251}

(21,440)

Retirement
benefit
obligation
£'000

14
14

14

Total

£'000
(24,464)

1,380
(23,084)

Tatal

£°000
281
139
14
1,034

{22,050}
(23,583)
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19. CALLED UP SHARE CAPITAL

Number of Qrdinary Share Merger
Shares Shares  Premium Reserve Total
000 £'000 £ro00 £'000 £'000 .
Al 1 January 2007 54,867 32,243 - - 32,243
issue of shares (net of transaclion cosis} 69,091 35,883 - . 35,883 l
Closing position Novera Energy Limited 123,958 68,126 - - 68,126 I
Opening Novera Energy pic 123,956 6,198 - 61,928 68,126
Exercise of Options 100 5 - 51 56
At 31 December 2007 124,058 6,203 - 61,979 68,182
Al 1 January 2008 124,058 6,203 - 61,979 68,182
Issue of shares (net of transaction cosls} 19,485 974 13,476 - 14,450
At 31 December 2008 143,543 7177 13,476 51,979 82,632

The total number of authorised ordinary shares is 200.0 million (2007: 200.0 million shares) and issued is 143.5
million shares (2007: 124.1 miltion shares) with a par value of £0.05 per share. Al issued shares are fully paid.

The Company issued 12.5 million shares on 24 July 2008 to fund the development side of the business raising

£15.0 million. £0.5 million of costs were incurred associatad with this sharse issue.

in 2007, the Company issued 69.1 million shares on the acquisition of 50 per cent of NMRE raising £38.0
million. £2.1 million of costs were incurred associaled with this share issue.

Novera Energy ple was incorporated on 15 March 2007 and on 29 May 2007 under a scheme of arrangement
appraved by shareholders and the Australian Supreme Court Naw South Wales replaced Novera Energy
Limiled {incorporated in Australia) as the parent company of the Group. The shareholders and their interests in

the businass immediately before and after this arrangement were the same.
The Employee's Share Option Plan has now ceased. In 2007, 100,000 of options were exercised at £0.56.

20. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARY UNDERTAKINGS
Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at 31 December 2008 are as tottows:

Percentage of equity
Gountry of ordinary shares &
Name of Company incorporation | Nature of Business voting rights held
Novera Energy Ltd Australia Intermediate holding company 100% |
Novera Renawable Energy Lid Bermuda Intermediate holding company 100% 2
Novera Energy (Holdings 1) Limited UK intermediate holding company 100% °
Novera Energy (Holdings 2) Limited UK Intermediate holding company 100% 2
Ganeration of electricily from
Novera Energy Generation No. 1 Limited | UK renawable energy sources 100% 2
Generation of electricity from wind
Mynydd Clogau Wind Farm Limited UK power 100% °
) Generation of electricity rom
Novera Energy Generation No, 3 Limited | UK renawable energy sources 100% *
Novera Enegrgy Services {UK) Limited UK Operalion of water services 100% °
Davelopment of renewable energy
Novera Energy Ventures Limited UK projecis 100% °
Canstruction of wind farm and
Lissett Aidield Wind Farm Limited UK generation of electricity from wind, 100% *
T Shares held by the Comparny
* Ghares held by the Group

All the subsidiaries above are included in the Group consolidation.
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21. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

EMPLOYEE LONG TERM INCENTIVE PLAN

In July 2006 Novera Energy Limited eslablished a Long Term Incentive Plan (‘LTIP") which is a scheme based on a
three year rolling plan. LTIP awards are conditional grants of sharas that will be released upon the Novera Energy
Limited meeting the required criterda. Such a policy should ensure that key managemarnt personnet do nol derive
compensation benefits without providing a direct cantribution to the fong-term supericr performance of the Group.

The 2008 LTIP award has a payout of shares in 2011 and is dependent on a target for the Group’s share price. The
2007 LTIP award has a payout of shares in 2010 and is dependent on the Group's performance against a total
shareholder return maasure relative 1o the FTSE Small Cap Index for the UK.

The 2006 LTIP award which is due for award in 2009 was dependant on performance against a total shareholder
return measure relative 1o the FTSE Smail Cap Index for the UK and operating cash tlow targets to end of 2008.
The number of shares to be awarded under this schema is above target with 1,287,039 shares awarded.

Set out below are summaries of shares awarded under the plan to employees and key management personnel,

Avrard date Expiry of | Balance of shara Shares awarded | Performance/ Balance of share which
Award | which may vest at | which may vest at vesting may vest at target
Period target target Period performance’ at
performance* at performance 31 December2008
1 January 2008

02/06/2008 30/05/2010 ' 03/06/2008 —
1,674,716 02/06/20 11 1,674,716

2410472007 30/05/2010 1,410,000 01/01/2007 -
31/12/2009 1,410,000

1,105,000 01/01/2006 -
R 1,105,000

| 14/07/2006 | 30/05/2009 31/12/2008

“Number of shares which may vest at maximum performance = 157 per cent of shares which may vest at

target performance

Total expenses arising from LTIP share-based payment transactions recognised during the period as pant of

employee benefit expenses was £496,000 {2007; £308,000).

The weighted average fair value share price of the LT!Ps granted during the period was £0.27 in 2008 (2007: £0.
55). The significant inputs into the madel were weighted average share price ot £0.820 in 2008 (2007 £0.695) at
grant date, volatility of 31.2 per cent (2007: 26.7 per cent), dividend yield 0 per cent (2007: 0 per cent), and an

annual risk free rate of 5.1 per cent (2007: 4.2 per cent). Th

o volatility measured at the standard deviation of

continuously compounded share returns is based on statistical analysis of daily share prices over the last three

years.

At 31 December 2008, awards under the LTIPs refated to shares in Novera Energy plc regardless of the period lo

which the LTIP relates.

EMPLOYEE OPTION PLAN

The amployee option plan lapsed at 31 December 2007.

22. ACCUMULATED LOSSES

Noles
Al 1 January 2008
Loss altributable to members
Movement in Revaluation Reserve 23

Actuarial losses on defined benefil pension
Tax on items taken directly to equity
At 31 December 2008

2008
£'000
{18,352)
(3,544)
(54)

14
(21,936)

2007
£'000
(17,088)
(1,958)
694

(18,352)
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23. OTHER RESERVES

Notes
At 1 January 2007
Share of movement in joint venture reserve
Acquisition of subsidiary
Share-based payment expense 21
Expiry of options 21
Exercise of options 21
Transfer to retained profits 22
Movement in hedging reserve
At 31 December 2007
At 1 January 2008
Share-based payment expense 21

Movement in hedging reserve
31 December 2008

MATURE AND PURPOSE OF RESERVES

Share- Jaint Hedging  Revaluation Total
based Venture reserve reserve reserves
payment  reserve
reserve
£'000 £'0600 £'000 £'000 £'0600
100 433 - - 533
- 453 - . 453
- {886) 886 8,304 8,394
308 . - - 308
{32 - {32)
(6) - (6}
- . (694) (694)
- {1,557} - (1,557
370 - (671) 7,700 7,399
370 - (671} 7,700 7,389
496 - - - 496
- {10,299} - {10,299)
866 {10,970) 7,700 (2,404)

(i) Share-based payment reserve: The shara-based payment reserva is used lo recognise the fair value of

oplions issued but not exercised.

() Joint venture reserve: The joint venture reserve was used to recogn

(mainly hedging) in joint ventures.

ise the Groups' share of reserves

{111 Hedging reserve: The hedging reserve is used to recognise the fair value of financial instruments in

place within the entity.

(V) Revajuation reserve: The revaluation reserve arose on the fair value review of the intangible assets on

the acquisition of NMRE,

24, CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Loss from ordinary activilies before income tax
Depresiation

Ameortisation

Foreign exchange dilferences

Roleass of discounted delerred revenue
Interest income

Interest expense

Share of profits of associates and JV partnerships not
received as dividends or distributions
(Decrease) in receivables

{Decrease} in trade and other payables
Increase in share-based payments resarve
Net cash inflow from operating aclivities

2008 2007
£'000 £'600
(5,063) {3,536)
5,243 5,275
4,178 4,072
32 (6

- {2)

(631) (946)
5,536 5,544

- {259)

590 969
(591) (554)
496 275
10,790 10.933
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25, PENSIONS
The Group operates a defined benelit pension scheme with assets held in a separately administered fund. in addition,

the majority of employees are members of the Friends Provident Stakeholder defined contributions pension scheme.
Dafined contributions for the year ended 31 December 2008 were £233,000 {2007: £227,000).

DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION SCHEME
An actuarial valuation of the Industry Wide Coal Slaff Superannuation pension scheme using the projected unit basis was

carried out during 2006 by the Government Acluary’s Department, Consulting Acluaries. An actuarial report updated for
the year ended 31 December 2008 in accordance with IAS 18 has been prepared for the Annual Report.

The arnounts recognised in the balance sheet are determined as follows:

2008 2007
£'000 000
Present value of funded obligations {790}  (904)
Fair value of plan assels 807 748
(183} (156}
] 2008 2007
Plan Liabilities £'000 €000
Beginning of year 904 -
Acquisition of subsidiaries - 863
Current service cost 36 35
Interest cost 52 45
Benefits paid (32} .
Acluarial logses (170} {39)
End of year 790 904
The movement in the fair value of plan assets of the year is as foltows:
2008 2007
Plan Assets £'000  £'900
" Beginning of year 748 -
Acquisition of subsidiaries - 588
Expected return on plan assets 57 53
Contributions employsr and employee 60 24
Benefits paid (32} .
Actuarial losses {226y (17}
End of year 607 748
The amounts recognised in the income statement are as follows:
2008 2007
2000 €000
Current service cost 29 29
Interest cost 52 45
Expected return on plan assets . {57) {53)
. Totalincluded in staff costs (note 6) 24 21
The major assumptions used by the actuaries are:
2008 2007
per cent per cent
Future salary increases 3.6 4.2
Future pension increases 2.6 3.2
Discount rate 6.4 5.6
|nflation rate 2.6 3.2
Expected return ont plan assets at year end 7.7 7.5

Assumptions regarding future mortality experience are set based on advice in accordance with published
slatistics and exparience. The average life expectancy of a pensioner retiring at age 60 on 31 December 2008
was 24.5 years [2007: 24.5 yoars) for cusrent pensioners and 24.5 years {2007: 24.5 years) for luture pensioners.
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26. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

OPERATING LEASES —MOTOR VEHICLES
The future aggregate minimum lease payments under nen-cancellable operating leases are as follows:

2008 2007

£'000 £'000

Within one year 212 171
Between two and five years 215 101
Greater than five years - -
427 272

QPERATING LEASES - OTHER
The future aggregate minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases are as follows:

2008 2007

£'000 £'000

Within one year ’ B9 148
Between twa and five years 213 230
Greater than five years 68 90
370 468

27. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Group has an interest in an immalerial joint venture. During the year the joint venture was charged by Novera £228,000
(2007: £294,000) of management charges as an arms fength transaction. At 31 December 2008 a receivable of £308,000
(2007: £336,000) is due from this joint venture.

The above balance is not secured and is reguired to be settled in cash. No guarantees have beeri received in respsct of
these balances. No bad debt provisions have been made against the above balances and the bad and doubiful debt expense
in the year in respect of these balances was Enil.

28. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

The Group has a letter of credit of £18.7 million ring fenced for the construction of Lisset!.

29. EVENTS OCCURING AFTER REPORTING DATE

No events have occurred after reporting date,
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF NOVERA ENERGY PLC

We have audited the parent company linancial slatements of Novera Energy ple for the year
ended 31 December 2008 which comprise the Balance Sheet and the related notes. These
parent company financial statements have been prepared under the accounting policies set out
therein.

We have reported separately on the Group financial statements of Novera Energy plc for the
year ended 31 December 2008.

RESPECTIVE RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND AUDITORS

The directors’ responsibilities for preparing the Annual Report and the parent company financial
statements in accordance with applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards
(United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice) are set out in the Statement of
Directors’ Responsibilities.

Our responsibility is to audit the parent company financial statements in accordance with
relevant legal and regulatory requirements and International Standards on Auditing {UK and
ireland). This report, including the opinion, has been prepared for and enly for the Company's
members as a body in accordance with Section 235 of the Companies Act 1985 and for no
other purpose. We do not, in giving this opinion, accep! or assume responsibility for any other
purpose or to any other person to whom this report is shown or into whose hands it may come
save where expressly agreed by our prior consent in writing.

We report to you our opinion as to whether the parent company financial statements give a true
and fair view and whether the parent company financial statements have been properly
prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 1985. We also report to you whether in our
opinion the information given in the Directors’ Repont is consistent with the parent company
financial stalements.

In addition we report 1o you if, in our oginion, the Company has not kept proper accounting
records, if we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit, or
if information specified by law regarding directors’ remuneration and other transactions is not
disclosed. The information given in the Directors' Report includes thal specific information
presented in the Operating Review and the Financial Review that is cross referred from the
Aeview of operations section of the Diractors’ Report.

We read other information contained in the Annual Report and consider whether it is consistent
with the audited parent company financial stalements. The other information comprises only the
Chairman’s Report, the Operating Review, Financial Review, the Directors, the Corporate
Governance Statement, the Director's Report, and the Remuneralion Repon. We consider the
implications for our report if we become aware of any apparent misstalements or material
inconsistencies with the parent company financial statements. Our responsibilities do not extend
1o any other information.

BASIS OF AUDIT OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with international Standards on Auditing (UK and
Ireland) issued by the Audiling Practices Board. An audit includes examination, on & test basis,
of evidence relevant to the amounts and disclosures in the parent company financial
statements. It also includes an assessment of the significant estimates and judgments made by
the directors in the preparation of the parent company financial statements, and of whether the
accounting policies are appropriale to the Company's circumstances, consistently applied and
adequately disclosed.
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We planned and performed cur audit o as to obtain all the information and explanations which
we considered necessary in order to provide us with sufficient evidence lo give reasonable
assurance that the parent company financial statements are free from material misstatement,
whether caused by fraud or other irregularity or error. In forming our opinion we also evaluated
the overall adequacy of the presentation of information in the parent company financia
statements.

OPINION
tn our opinion:

« the parent company financial statements give a true and fair view, in accordance with
United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice, of the state of the Company's
affairs as at 31 December 2008; .

+ the parent company financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with
the Companies Act 1985; and

« the information given in the Directors' Report is consistent with the parent company financial
statements.

8

PricewaterhouseCoopef’s LLP

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS AND REGISTERED AUDITORS
MANCHESTER

20 February 2009
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COMPANY BALANCE SHEET
NOVERA ENERGY plc
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2008

2008 2007
Notes £'000 £'000
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Invastments 2 68,306 68,306
68,306 68,306
Current assets
Trade and other receivables 3 14,506 56
Net current assets 14,506 56
Net assets 82,812 68,362
EQUITY
Ordinary shares 4 7177 6,203
Merger reserve 4 61,979 61,979
Share pramium 4 13,476
Other reservas 5 180 180
Total Equity 82,812 68.362

The Company has not presented its own profit and loss account as permitted by section 230 of the
Companies Act 1985. The profit for the year was £nil (2007: £nif).

The Company has laken the exernption from praparing a cash flow statement under the terms of FRS 1
{revised 1996) ‘Cash flow statements’.

The Company has no recognised gains/(losses) other than thase included in the profit and loss acgount
and tharelore no Statement of Total Recognised Gains and Losses has been presented,

The financial statements on pages 61 to 64 were authorised by the Board of Directors on 20 February
2009 and were signed on its behalf by:

DAVID FITZSIMMONS RORY QUINLAN
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

\ %CMDf?

~ .
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NOVERA ENERGY PLC
NOTES TO THE COMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2008

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The principal accounting pelicies adopted in the preparation of the financial report are set out below,

(A} BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial slatements have been prepared on the going concern basis undsr the historical cost
convention and in accordance with the Companies Act 1985 and applicable accounting standards in the
United Kingdom. A summary of the more important company accounting policies, which have been
applied consistently, is set out below.

Novera Enargy plc was incorporated in the United Kingdom on 15 March 2007.

{B) INVESTMENTS
investments held as fixed assets are stated at cosl less any provision lor impairment in value.

(C) RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
The Company has taken advantage of the exemption permitted by FRS 8 not 1o disclose any transactions
or balances that are par of the Novera Energy plc.

(D) DIVIDENDS

Interim dividends are recognised when paid and final dividends are booked as a liability when they are
approved by the membaers passing a written resolution. Dividends paid are not disclosed on the lace of
the profit and foss account but as a distribution out of profit and loss reserves.

{E} FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSLATION

(1) FUNCTIONAL AND PRESENTATION CURRENCY

items included in the financial slatements are measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates (‘the functional currency’). The Company financial statements
are presented in GBP which is Novera Energy plc’s functional and presentational currency. The Directors
of the Company have adopted GBP as ils presentational currancy as they befieve il is the most relevant
currency which reflects the rsk and retumns associated with the operations of the Company as the
significant operations of the Company are either UK-based or controlled from the UK.

{1} TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES

Foreign currency transactions are translaled into the functional currency using the exchange rates
prevailing al the dales of ihe iransactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the
seftlement of such transaclions and from the translation al yeai-end exchange rates of monetary assels
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in the Income Statement, except when
deferred in equily as qualifying cash flow hedges and qualitying net investment hedges.

Tianslation differences on non-monetary items, such as invesiments in associates and joint venluwe
entities accounted for using the equily method, are reported as part of the fair value gain or loss.

(F) TRADE RECEIVABLES
Trade receivables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost, less
provision for doubtful debts. All rade debtors are receivable within 30 days.

Collectability of trade receivables is reviewsd on an ongeing basis. Debls which are known to be
uncollectible are written off. A provision for doublful raceivables is established when there is objective
evidence that the Group will not be abls lo coliect all amounts due according to the original terms of
receivables. The amount of the provision is the difterence between the asset's carrying valug amount and
the present value of estimated {ulure cash flows, discounted at the effective interest rate. The amount of
the provision is recognised in the income statement. Cash flows relating to short term receivables are not
dissounted il the effect of discounting is immaterial.
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{G) SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

The costs for share-based incenlives in raspect of shares in the Company granted for services 1o

subsidiary compantes is treated as an increase in investment with the corresponding credit taken directly

to reserves.

2. INVESTMENTS

2008 2007

£°000 £000

Investment in Novera Energy Limitad {100 per cent} 68,126 68,126
Capital contribution in share-based payments 180 180
68,306 68,306

Novera Energy Limited in incorporated in Australia. Itis an intermadiate holding company.

3. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

2008 2007

£'000 €000

Intercompany receivable 14,506 56
14,506 56

The above balance is not secured and is required to be settled in cash. No guarantees have been

received in respect of this balance. No bad debt pravision has been mada against the abave balance and
the bad and doubiful debt expense in the year in respact of this balance was £nil.

4. CALLED UP SHARE CAPITAL & RESERVES

Number of Ordinary Merger Share
Shares Shares Reserve Premium 2007
000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

At 15 March 2007 . - -
Acquisition of Novera 123,958 6,198 61,928 68,126

Energy Limited

Exercise of options 100 5 51 56
At 31 December 2007 124,058 6,203 61,879 - 68,182
Number of Ordinary Merger Share 2008
Shares Shares Reserve Pramium £'000

000 £'000 £'000 £'000
At 1 January 2008 124,058 6,203 61,979 68,182
Equity Issue 19,485 974 - 13,476 14,450

Exercise of options . - . .
At 31 December 2006 143,543 777 61,979 13,476 82,632

The total number of authorised ordinary shares is 200.0 miltion and issued is 143.5 million shares with a

par value of £0.05 per share, All issued shares are fully paid.
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5, OTHER RESERVES

2008
£'000
At 1 January 2008 180
Movement in reserves -
At 31 December 2008 180

Other reserves relate to share-based payments,

6. DIRECTORS

2003 2007

£'000 £'000

Total emaluments 661 385
Pension 8 3
669 388

Highest paid director remuneration 303 110

Highest paid director pension

The Company has no dsfined benefit pension cbligations in respect of any of the Directors. The fees of

£145,000 lor the Directors have been borne by the Group.

7. AUDIT FEES

The audit fees for the Company'have been boma by the Group. Group audit fees for the year ended 31
December 2008 wers £117,000 (2007; £112,000) and non audit fees wera £29,000 (2007: £30,000).
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